*kkk

kkkk

kkkk

10

TO:

Public Document Pack
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL

Development Control Committee

Date: Wednesday, 4th April, 2018
Time: 2.00 pm
Place: Jubilee Room, Civic Centre, Victoria Avenue

Contact: Tim Row - Principal Democratic Services Officer
Email: committeesection@southend.gov.uk

AGENDA

Apologies for Absence
Declarations of Interest
Supplementary Report

Introduction

Reports on Applications following Pre-Meeting Site Visits

17/02179/FULM - Crowstone Preparatory School, 121-123 Crowstone Road,
Westcliff-on-Sea, Essex, SS0 8LH (Chalkwell Ward) (Pages 7 - 54)

18/00076/FUL - 423-425 Sutton Road, Southend-on-Sea, Essex (Victoria Ward)
(Pages 55 - 96)

17/02280/FUL - Scout Hall 52 High Street, Leigh-on-Sea, Essex SS9 2EP
(Leigh Ward) (Pages 97 - 120)

1. 17/02074/FUL and 2. 17/02075/LBC - 138 - 140 Hamlet Court Road, Westcliff-
on-Sea, Essex SS0 7LN (Milton) (Pages 121 - 182)

18/00084/FUL - 76A Herschell Road, Leigh-on-Sea, Essex, SS9 2PU
(West Leigh Ward) (Pages 183 - 220)

Main Plans List

17/01115/FULM - Prospects House, 10 Fairfax Drive, Westcliff-on-Sea, Essex,
SS0 9AG (Prittlewell Ward) (Pages 221 - 322)

18/00045/ADV - Unit 4, Greyhound Trading Park, Greyhound Way, Southend-on-
Sea, Essex, SS2 5PY (Victoria Ward) (Pages 323 - 344)

The Chairman & Members of the Development Control Committee:

Councillor F Waterworth (Chair)

Councillors D Garston (Vice-Chair), B Arscott, B Ayling, M Borton, H Boyd, S Buckley,
T Callaghan, N Folkard, J Garston, R Hadley, H McDonald, C Mulroney,
D Norman MBE, P Van Looy, C Walker and N Ward

PLEASE NOTE: The minibus for the site visits will depart from the bus stop at the front
of the Civic Centre at 10.30 a.m.



This page is intentionally left blank



DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

AGENDA: 4t April 2018

WARD APP/REF NO. ADDRESS
Pre Site Plans Report
Crowstone Preparatory School
Chalkwell 17/02179/FULM
121 — 123 Crowstone Road
Victoria 18/00076/FUL 423 — 425 Sutton Road
Scout Hall
Leigh 17/02280/FUL .
52 High Street
Milton 17/02074/FUL 138 - 140 Hamlet Court Road
18/00084/FUL
West Leigh 76A Herschell Road
17/02075/LBC
Main Plans Report
Prospects House
Prittlewell 17/01115/FULM
10 Fairfax Drive
Unit 4
Victoria 18/00045/ADV

Greyhound Trading Park




(i)

(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

INTRODUCTION

Recommendations in capitals at the end of each report are those of the
Corporate Director of Place, are not the decision of the Committee and are
subject to Member consideration.

All plans have been considered in the context of the Borough Council's
Environmental Charter. An assessment of the environmental implications of
development proposals is inherent in the development control process and implicit
in the reports.

Reports will not necessarily be dealt with in the order in which they are printed.

The following abbreviations are used in the reports:-

BLP - Borough Local Plan

DAS - Design & Access Statement

DEFRA - Department of Environment, Food and Rural Affairs

DPD - Development Plan Document

EA - Environmental Agency

EPOA - Essex Planning Officer’'s Association

DCLG - Department of Communities and Local Government

NPPF - National Planning Policy Framework

NPPG - National Planning Practice Guidance

SPD - Supplementary Planning Document

SSSI - Sites of Special Scientific Interest. A national designation. SSSIs
are the country's very best wildlife and geological sites.

SPA - Special Protection Area. An area designated for special protection

under the terms of the European Community Directive on the
Conservation of Wild Birds.

Ramsar Site — Describes sites that meet the criteria for inclusion in the list of
Wetlands of International Importance under the Ramsar
Convention. (Named after a town in Iran, the Ramsar Convention
is concerned with the protection of wetlands, especially those
important for migratory birds)

Background Papers

(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)

NB

Planning applications and supporting documents and plans
Application worksheets and supporting papers
Non-exempt contents of property files

Consultation and publicity responses

NPPF and NPPG

Core Strategy

Borough Local Plan

Other letters and papers not taken into account in preparing this report but received
subsequently will be reported to the Committee either orally or in a supplementary
report.



DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

Use Classes

Class A1 - Shops

Class A2 - Financial & Professional Services

Class A3 - Restaurants & Cafes

Class A4 - Drinking Establishments

Class A5 - Hot Food Take-away

Class B1 - Business

Class B2 - General Industrial

Class B8 - Storage or Distribution

Class C1 - Hotels

Class C2 - Residential Institutions

Class C3 - Dwellinghouses

Class C4 - Small House in Multiple Occupation

Class D1 - Non-Residential Institutions

Class D2 - Assembly and Leisure

Sui Generis - A use on its own, for which any change of use will require planning
permission



This page is intentionally left blank



DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE
SITE VISIT PROTOCOL
1. Necessity
A site visit is only likely to be necessary if either:

(i) The proposed development is difficult to visualise from the plans, photographs and
supporting material; or

(ii) There is good reason why the comments of the applicant and / or objector(s) cannot be
expressed adequately in writing; or

(iii) The proposal is particularly contentious; or

(iv) A particular Member requests it and the request is agreed by the Chairman of DCC.

2. Selecting Site Visits

(i) Members can request a site visit by contacting the Head of Planning and Transport or
the Group Manager for Planning; providing the reason for the request. The officers will
consult with the Chairman.

(ii) If the agenda has not yet been printed, notification of the site visit will be included on
the agenda. If the agenda has already been printed, officers will notify Members separately
of the additional site visit.

(iii) Arrangements for visits will not normally be publicised or made known to applicants or
agents unless access is required to be able to go on land.

3. Procedures on Site Visits

(i) Visits will normally take place during the morning of DCC.

(ii) A planning officer will always attend and conduct the site visit, and will bring relevant
issues to the attention of Members. The officer will keep a record of the attendance, and a
brief note of the visit.

(iii) The site will normally be viewed from a public place, such as a road or footpath.

(iv) Representations will not be heard, and material will not be accepted. No debate with
any party will take place. Where applicant(s) and/or other interested person(s) are present,
the Chairman may invite them to point out matters or features which are relevant to the

matter being considered having first explained to them that it is not the function of the visit
to accept representations or to debate.

Version: April 2016

Development Control Committee Pre-Site Visit Plans Report: DETE 16/063/ 14/09/2016 Page 1 of 1



This page is intentionally left blank



Reference: 17/02179/FULM

Ward: Chalkwell 4
Demolish existing buildings, including 6 Crosby Road, erect

Proposal: three storey building comprising 20 self-contained flats, 6 no

P ) dwelling houses, layout parking, hard and soft landscaping

and extend existing vehicular access on to Crosby Road.

Address: Crowstone Preparatory School, 121-123 Crowstone Road,

' Westcliff-on-Sea, Essex, SS0 8LH

Applicant: BESB Contracts Ltd

Agent: Phase 2 Planning

Consultation Expiry: 06.02.2018

Expiry Date: 06.04.2018

Case Officer: Charlotte White

Plan Nos:

773.001.01, 773.200.02, 773.201.02, 773.202.02,
773.203.02, 773.204.03, 773.205.01, 773.206.00, 773.207.00

Recommendation:

REFUSE PLANNING PERMISSION

Development Control Report




1 The Proposal

1.1 Planning permission is sought to demolish the existing buildings on the site
(already significantly demolished) as well as No.6 Crosby Road and construct an
‘L’ shaped, part 2-storey, part 3-storey block of 20 flats facing Crowstone Road and
Crosby Road and 6 terraced houses to the rear of the site. The block of 20 flats,
includes 18 flats within the main ‘L’ shaped building, with a smaller block of 2 flats
to the western side of the site. Vehicle access will be provided from Crosby Road
with parking provided to the rear of the block of flats and on-site for the dwellings
with each dwelling having a garage and parking space. An internal road will be
provided within the site connecting the eastern part of the site to the more western
part of the site. In terms of amenity space the 6x 4-bedroom dwellings would each
be provided with a private rear garden area with private balconies provided to six
of the first floor flats.

1.2 The details of the scheme are summarised as follows:

Units 6x 4-bedroom houses (7 and 8 person units, sizes
ranging from 123sqgm — 130sgm)
16x 2-bedroom flats (3 person and 4 person units
with sizes ranging from 61sgm to 76sgqm )
4x 1-bedroom flats (2 person units measuring 50 to
51sgm)

Parking 24 parking spaces to serve the flats; 3 of which are
labelled ‘visitor spaces’ and 2 of which are shown
as accessible spaces. Each dwelling provided with
a garage and a parking space. Cycle parking will be
provided at 1 space per unit.

Amenity space No communal amenity space is proposed for the
flats (although the information contained within the
planning statement indicates there will be shared
amenity space). 6 of the flats will be provided with
private amenity balconies measuring approximately
2sgm to 6sgm. The 4-bedroom houses will each be
provided with private garden areas measuring some
100sgm to some 173sgm.

Height (max) Flatted blocks max height: 12.5m
Houses max height: 9.5m

Width (max) Main flat block: 38.7m
Terraced row of 3 houses: 27.2m

Depth (max) Main flat block: 24.5m
Max depth of houses: 11.15m

1.3 In relation to the flats, the floors will include:
e Ground floor — 1x 1-bedroom flat and 6x 2-bedroom flats.
e First floor — 3x 1-bedroom flats and 5x 2-bedroom flats
e Second floor — 5x 2-bedroom flats

Development Control Report 8



1.4

1.5

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.1

At the time of the officer site visit, the former school buildings were being
demolished. The existing dwelling at No.6 Crosby Road appears to be occupied
currently.

The application is accompanied by a sustainability and energy report, transport
statement, draft heads of terms, sustainable urban drainage (SUDS) and surface
water drainage statement, arboricultural impact assessment report, ecological
assessment, design and access statement, planning statement, viability
assessment, bat survey and environmental noise impact assessment.

Site and Surroundings

The site constitutes an irregular shaped site which could be described as two
connected rectangles. The northernmost part of the site has a frontage to Crosby
Road and Crowstone Road with the southern rectangular section of the site having
a frontage onto Victory Path. The northern part of the site is the proposed location
for the flats. This part of the site included the previous main school buildings, and
includes the dwellinghouse at No.6 Crosby Road. The southern part of the site
constitutes the previous school playing field connected to the school and is the
location of the 6 dwellinghouses proposed. The site backs onto a number of
dwellings in Crosby Road and Crowstone Road.

The area is largely residential in nature and is mainly characterised by large
detached houses, although there are some examples of flats within the vicinity of
the site. The scale of the surrounding development is mainly 2-2.5 storeys in
nature, although the anomaly blocks of flats in the vicinity are up to 4 storey in
scale. The southern part of the site adjoins a number of tennis courts. Beyond
Victory Path is the C2C railway line.

The information submitted with the application indicates that the Independent
Preparatory School closed in July 2016. The school buildings have already been
significantly demolished under prior approval (ref. 17/00938/DEM).

The front part of the site has no specific allocation within the Development
Management Document proposals map, however, the rear part of the site which
constitutes the previous playing fields for the school is designated as protected
green space under Policy CP7 of the Core Strategy and as specified on the
Borough’s Proposals Map.

Planning Considerations

The main considerations in relation to this application include the principle of
development, including the loss of the playing fields, design, impact on the street
scene, residential amenity for future and neighbouring occupiers, traffic and
parking implications, sustainability, developer contributions and CIL.

Appraisal

Principle of development

Development Control Report 9



41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF); Core Strategy (2007) policies
KP1, KP2, KP3, CP3, CP4, CP6, CP7 and CP8; Development Management
Document (2015) Policies DM1, DM3, DM7, DM8 and DM15 and the Design
and Townscape Guide (2009)

Loss of a School and the principle of residential development:

The Core Planning Principles as set out within Paragraph 17 of the NPPF include
that planning should ‘proactively drive and support sustainable economic
development to deliver the homes, business and industrial units, infrastructure and
thriving local places that the country needs. Every effort should be made
objectively to identify and then meet the housing, business and other development
needs of an area, and respond positively to wider opportunities for
growth...encourage the effective use of land by reusing land that has been
previously developed (brownfield land), provided that it is not of high environmental
value...’

The site is located within a residential area and in part constitutes previously
developed land. Amongst other policies to support sustainable development, the
NPPF requires to boost the supply of housing by delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes.

Policy KP1 of the Core Strategy identified a need to deliver 6,500 net additional
dwellings in the period 2001-2021 within Southend. Policy KP2 of the Core
Strategy requires all new development to make the best use of previously
developed land; to ensure sites and buildings are put to best use. Policy CP8 of
the Core Strategy requires the ‘provision of not less than 80% of residential
development on previously development land (brownfield sites).

Paragraph 72 of the NPPF states that ‘The Government attached great importance
to ensuring that a sufficient choice of school places is available to meet the needs
of existing and new communities’.

Policy CP6 of the Core Strategy states that developments should support
‘improvements to existing, and the provision of new, facilities to support the needs
of education, skills and lifelong learning strategies...[and] safequarding existing and
providing for new leisure, cultural, recreation and community facilities...’

With regard to the loss of the school, it is noted that the school has been closed
since July 2016. The application has been submitted with a letter from Ayers and
Cruiks (a Local Estate Agents) which indicates that the private school closed due
to it being financially unviable. The letter indicates that there has been a
succession of small private schools closing in Essex, including the Former St
Hildas School in Westcliff-on-Sea which closed in July 2014.

In this respect the constraints of the site are noted; it is a small site for a school
and surrounded by residential development. The school has been closed for a
fairly substantial amount of time now and the school constituted a private,
preparatory school and as such would have served only a very limited part of the
community. It is also noted that prior approval has already been granted for the
demolition of the buildings and that the school buildings are presently largely
demolished, quite lawfully. No objection is therefore raised to the principle of the

Development Control Report 10



4.8

4.9

4.10

4.1

412

loss of the school use and its redevelopment for housing. Whilst the proposal will
result in the loss of a family dwelling (No.6 Crosby Road) given that the
development will provide 6 new family dwellinghouses no objection is raised on
this basis in principle.

Loss of protected green space:

Paragraph 73 of the NPPF states ‘access to high quality open spaces and
opportunities for sport and recreation can make an important contribution to the
health and well-being of communities’.

The National Planning Practice Guide (NPPG) provides further guidance on open
space, commenting: “Open space should be taken into account in...considering
proposals that may affect existing open space...open space, which includes all
open space of public value, can take many forms, from formal sports pitches to
open areas within a development, linear corridors and country parks. It can provide
health and recreation benefits to people living and working nearby; have an
ecological value and contribute to green infrastructure...as well as being an
important part of the landscape and setting of building development, and an
important component in the achievement of sustainable development...there is no
lower size limit for a Local Green Space...land could be considered for designation
even if there is no public access...” (Paragraphs 001-016 ).

Paragraph 74 of the NPPF states: ‘Existing open space, sports and recreational
buildings and land, including playing fields, should not be built on unless:
e an assessment has been undertaken which has clearly shown the open
space, buildings or land to be surplus to requirements; or
e the loss resulting from the proposed development would be replaced by
equivalent or better provision in terms of quantity and quality in a suitable
location; or
o the development is for alternative sports and recreational provision, the
needs for which clearly outweigh the loss.

Policy CP7 of the Core Strategy states:

‘All existing and proposed sport, recreation and green space facilities (including the
Southend foreshore and small areas of important local amenity, community
resource or biodiversity value) will be safeguarded from loss or displacement to
other uses, except where it can clearly be demonstrated that alternative facilities
of a higher standard are being provided in at least an equally convenient
and accessible location to serve the same local community, and there would
be no loss of amenity or environmental quality to that community.

Any alternative facilities provided in accordance with the above considerations will
be required to be provided and available for use before existing facilities are lost.
The displacement of existing and proposed facilities from within the built-up area
into the adjacent countryside, so as to provide further land for urban development,
will not be permitted.’

With regard to the loss of the school playing fields, it is noted that this part of the
site constitutes protected green space. In this respect the Planning Statement
submitted states ‘The grassland area of the site comprises private land that is not
publically accessible. Its use as a playing field in connection with the school has

Development Control Report 11



4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

ceased and it no longer serves a function and is overgrown...There remains tennis
courts adjoining and other publically accessible high quality areas of green space
and recreation within walking distance of the site...There is no shortfall or loss of
recreation since the closure of this site since July 2016 because it has only ever
served a small number of children as play space associated with the school and
has served no wider public purpose.

Whilst it is noted that the rear part of the site formed part of the school playing
fields and was not publically accessible open space, paragraph 74 of the NPPF
would still apply as this proposal will result in the loss of an area of existing playing
field. Likewise, Policy CP7 of the Core Strategy seeks to safeguard all sport,
recreation and green space facilities unless it can be demonstrated that alternative
facilities are being provided. In this respect, the applicant has failed to clearly
demonstrate that the open space is surplus to requirements or that it will be
replaced and the development does not provide an alternative sport or recreation
facility. As such, an objection is raised to the principle of the development on this
basis.

Dwelling Mix

Policy DM7 of the Development Management Document states that all residential
development is expected to provide a dwelling mix that incorporates a range of
dwelling types and bedroom sizes, including family housing on appropriate sites, to
reflect the Borough’s housing need and housing demand. The Council seeks to
promote a mix of dwellings types and sizes as detailed below. The relevant
dwelling mixes required by the abovementioned policy and proposed by this
application are shown in the table below.

Dwelling size: No | 1-bed 2-bed 3-bed 4-bed
bedrooms

Policy Position | 9% 22% 49% 20%
(Market Housing)

Proposed 15% 62% 0% 23%

This development provides mainly 2-bedroom flats. However, the greatest need
within the Borough is for 3-bedroom units of which this proposal fails to provide
any. The submitted planning statement seeks to justify the mix proposed in terms
of site constraints, local market needs and viability considerations and the small
size of the scheme. On balance this is considered to be an acceptable approach
but the mix proposed is not a positive element of the scheme.

In conclusion, the principle of the development is considered unacceptable as the
application results in the loss of protected green space.

Design and Impact on the Character of the Area
The National Planning Policy Framework; Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2

and CP4; Development Management Document (2015) Policies DM1 and DM3
and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

Development Control Report 12



417

4.18

4.19

4.20

4.21

4.22

This proposal is considered in the context of the Borough Council policies relating
to design. Also of relevance are National Planning Policy Framework Sections 56
and 64 and Core Strategy Policies KP2, CP4 and CP8.

One of the core planning principles of the NPPF is to “encourage the effective use
of land by reusing land that has been previously developed (brownfield land),
provided that it is not of high environmental value.” Paragraph 56 of the NPPF
states; “the Government attaches great importance to the design of the built
environment. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, is
indivisible from good planning, and should contribute positively to making places
better for people.” Paragraph 64 of the NPPF states; “that permission should be
refused for development of poor design that fails to take the opportunities available
for improving the character and quality of an area and the way it functions.”

Policy KP2 of the Core Strategy requires that new development contributes to
economic, social, physical and environmental regeneration in a sustainable way
through securing improvements to the urban environment through quality design,
and respecting the character and scale of the existing neighbourhood. Policy CP4
requires that new development be of appropriate design and have a satisfactory
relationship with surrounding development.

Policy DM3 states that “The Council will seek to support development that is
well designed and that seeks to optimise the use of land in a sustainable
manner that responds positively to local context and does not lead to over-
intensification.” Moreover, policy DM1 states that development should “Add to the
overall quality of the area and respect the character of the site, its local context and
surroundings in terms of its architectural approach, height, size, scale, form,
massing, density, layout, proportions, materials, townscape and/or landscape
setting, use, and detailed design features”.

The surrounding area is mainly characterised by fairly large detached houses,
generally of individual styles, but similar characters, that are 2 to 2.5 storeys in
scale, the majority of which have hipped roofs, providing a spacious character to
the area. There are two buildings in the area which stand out from this established
character; Sunningdale Court which is a 4 storey block of flats to the north of the
site and Britannia Lodge to the south-east of the site which is a three storey block
of flats.

In terms of scale, the main block of flats proposed is ‘L’ shaped and wraps around
Crosby Road and Crowstone Road, it is mainly 3 storey in scale, with some 2.5
storey elements with a large pitched roof covering much of the building. The block
of flats has been partially set into the ground creating a lower level in part, and has
been reduced in scale away from the corner of the site, however, the scale, size
and mass of the building is still significant and has a much greater scale and mass
than the surrounding development. It is considered that this part of the
development would dominate the streetscene and would be out of character with
the existing well-spaced detached family housing. The mass and bulk of the
development would be accentuated by virtue of the forward projection of the large
block of flats in front of the established building line on both frontages. The
presence of the existing blocks of flats in the vicinity do not provide any justification
for the scale, size and mass of the proposed block of flats, particularly given the
lack of setting the scheme would provide to mitigate its bulk and mass.

Development Control Report 13



4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26

4.27

However, the scale of the separate building providing 2 flats fronting Crosby Road
and the scale of the 2.5 storey rows of terraced dwellings to the rear part of the site
are acceptable and would not be out of keeping with the surrounding area,
although concern is raised with regard to the forward position of the separate
building to provide 2 flats which would be out of character with the established
building line and character of the area.

The main block of flats is of an unacceptable design and appearance, including
poor design elements, with an unacceptable relationship with the street by virtue of
the block being partially sunken into the ground, rather than ‘stepping up’ with the
changes in the land levels. This results in the lower most articulated storey being
submerged for a significant part of the frontage, creating an unsightly feature which
is out of keeping with the surrounding area and fails to provide an active frontage
to the streetscene; with the main entrance door located within the lower level and
therefore fails to provide a focal point. The flats proposed fail to respect the
established building line in the area, increasing the prominence of the development
and resulting in a development that is at odds with the surrounding area. Whilst
concern is raised in respect of the use of the grey tiled roof that is proposed, a
condition can be imposed on any grant of consent requiring material samples to be
submitted.

The terraced houses to the rear of the site provide a return frontage to Victory Path
which is positive, providing natural surveillance to the path which is positive for
crime prevention. However, this part of the proposal also includes some poor
design detailing, including that of the fenestration and expanses of blank windows
and grey roof tiles/slates, although the materials can be controlled via condition.
These are not positive elements of the proposal.

In terms of hard and soft landscaping, whilst it is positive that the parking is
provided to the rear of the site, preventing the streetscene being dominated by
hardsurfacing and parked vehicles, this has resulted in the development being
located forward of the established building line and there is no rear amenity space.

Taking all these factors into account, it is considered that the proposed
development is contrived and constitutes overdevelopment of the site, with the
proposed main ‘L’ shaped block of flats being of an unacceptable size, scale, mass
and bulk that would be out of keeping with the mainly 2-storey scale of the
adjoining dwellings. The flats are located forward of the established building line,
creating a prominent and incongruous development and the development includes
unacceptable design detailing. The development is therefore of an unacceptable
design that is out of keeping with and would result in material detrimental harm to
the character and appearance of the area, contrary to the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF), Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007), Policies
DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document (2015) and the
guidance contained with the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

Impact on Residential Amenity.
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), Policies KP2 and CP4 of the

Core Strategy (2007), Development Management Document (2015) Policies
DM1 and DM3 and Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

Development Control Report 14



4.28

4.29

4.30

4.31

4.32

4.33

Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document and CP4 of
the Core Strategy refer to the impact of development on surrounding occupiers.
High quality development, by definition, should provide a positive living
environment for its occupiers whilst not having an adverse impact on the amenity
of neighbours. Protection and enhancement of amenity is essential to
maintaining people's quality of life and ensuring the successful integration of
proposed development into existing neighbourhoods.

Amenity refers to well-being and takes account of factors such as privacy,
overlooking, outlook, noise and disturbance, the sense of enclosure, pollution and
daylight and sunlight. Policy DM1 of the Development Management requires that
all development should (inter alia):

“Protect the amenity of the site, immediate neighbours, and surrounding area,
having regard to privacy, overlooking, outlook, noise and disturbance, visual
enclosure, pollution, and daylight and sunlight;”

In terms of overlooking, the windows, openings and balconies facing Crosby Road
and Crowstone Road would overlook the public realm and are sufficiently removed
from the adjacent dwellings and would not therefore result in any material
overlooking or loss of privacy. The rear windows proposed in the main block of
flats would be located a minimum of some 14m from the boundary with No.125
Crowstone Road and as such would not result in any material overlooking or loss
of privacy to these residents. The rear windows within the proposed houses
(excluding the blank windows) would be located a minimum of some 10m from the
rear boundaries of the dwellings in Crowstone Road. Given this degree of
separation and the length of the existing gardens in Crowstone Road, it is
considered that the proposal would not result in any material overlooking or loss of
privacy to the occupiers of the adjoining residents in this respect. No first floor
northern flank windows are proposed within the houses to the rear of the site and
no first floor flank windows are proposed to the detached block of 2 flats and as
such the proposal would not result in any material overlooking or loss of privacy to
the adjoining residents in Crosby Road. The proposal is therefore policy compliant
in this respect and the development would not result in any material overlooking or
loss of privacy to the adjoining residents.

In terms of dominance, an overbearing impact and loss of light and outlook, the
proposed main block of flats has been designed to ensure the development
nearest to No.125 Crosby Road does not extend beyond the rear elevation of this
dwelling. The smaller, detached block of 2 flats has similarly been designed to not
extend beyond the rear of No.8 Crosby Road. The rows of terraced houses to the
rear part of the site are sufficiently removed from the adjoining dwellings. As such it
is considered that the proposal would not result in any material harm to the
residential amenity of the adjoining residents in terms of dominance, an
overbearing impact, loss of light and outlook or a material sense of enclosure. The
proposal is policy compliant in this respect.

In terms of noise and disturbance, the site is located within a residential area and
the proposal to develop the site for residential purposes would not result in any
material harm to the adjoining residents in principle. However, it is noted that this

Development Control Report 15



4.34

4.35

proposal seeks to provide large areas of car parking and an access road
immediately adjacent to the private, residential amenity areas of neighbouring
residents of 125 Crowstone Road. Whilst an environmental noise assessment has
been submitted with the application, this does not consider the impact of the
proposal on the adjoining residents. Given the number of parking spaces proposed
and the extent of the access road and the locations of the parking and vehicle
access adjacent to the private rear garden areas of the adjoining sites it is
considered that the proposal would result in material harm to the residential
amenity of the adjoining residents in terms of noise and disturbance. It is not at all
clear that this issue could be adequately mitigated by the use of conditions in this
circumstance. The proposal is therefore contrary to National and Local Planning
Policy and is therefore recommended for refusal on this basis.

Standard of Accommodation:

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), Policies KP2 and CP4 of the
Core Strategy (2007), Development Management Document (2015) Policies
DM1, DM3 and DM8 and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

Paragraph 17 of the NPPF states that “planning should always seek to secure high
quality design and a good standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants
of land and buildings”. It is considered that most weight should be given to the
Technical Housing Standards that have been published by the Government which
are set out as per the below table:

- Minimum property size for residential units shall be as follow:

1 bedroom (2 bed spaces) 50sgm
2 bedroom (3 bed spaces) 61sgm
2 bedroom (4 bed spaces) 70 sqm
4 bedroom (7 bed spaces) (over 3 storeys) 121sgm
4 bedroom (8 bed spaces) (over 3 storeys) 130 sqm

Bedroom Sizes: The minimum floor area for bedrooms to be no less than
7.5sgm for a single bedroom with a minimum width of 2.15m; and 11.5sgm
for a double/twin bedroom with a minimum width of 2.75m or 2.55m in the
case of a second double/twin bedroom.

Floorspace with a head height of less than 1.5 metres should not be
counted in the above calculations unless it is solely used for storage in
which case 50% of that floorspace shall be counted.

- A minimum ceiling height of 2.3 metres shall be provided for at least 75% of
the Gross Internal Area.

The following is also prescribed:

- Provision of a storage cupboard with a minimum floor area of 1.25m?2 should
be provided for 1-2 person dwellings. A minimum of 0.5m? storage area
should be provided for each additional bed-space.

- Amenity: Suitable space should be provided for a washing machine and for
drying clothes, as well as private outdoor amenity, where feasible and

Development Control Report 16



4.36

4.37

4.38

4.39

appropriate to the scheme.

- Storage: Suitable, safe cycle storage with convenient access to the street
frontage.

- Refuse Facilities: Non-recyclable waste storage facilities should be provided
in new residential development in accordance with the Code for Sustainable
Homes Technical Guide and any local standards. Suitable space should be
provided for and recycling bins within the home.

- Refuse stores should be located to limit the nuisance caused by noise and
smells and should be provided with a means for cleaning, such as a water

supply.

- Working: Provide suitable space which provides occupiers with the
opportunity to work from home. This space must be able to accommodate a
desk and filing/storage cupboards.

The Planning Statement submitted states the development, in the majority, meets
these standards described in the Nationally Prescribed Space Standards. The
planning statement indicates that the 1-bed 2-person apartments will measure 50-
51sgm, the 2-bed 3-person units will measure 61-70sqmm the 2-bed 4-person
units will measure 63-76sqm and the 4-bed 7/8-person houses will measure 123-
130sgm. As such, some of the 2-bedroom, 4 person flats will be below the
minimum sizes required by the technical housing standards. The proposal is
therefore contrary to planning policy in this respect.

In terms of bedroom sizes, it is also noted that some of the bedrooms proposed
are of an inadequate size. For example the bedroom serving the 1 bedroom 2-
person flat at unit 7 measures only approximately 9.6sqm. The proposal is
therefore contrary to planning policy in this respect.

In terms of light, ventilation and outlook, whilst all habitable rooms are provided
with windows, concern is raised with regard to the amount of light and outlook
some of these rooms within the main block of flats will benefit from. For example,
the ground floor south facing windows will be located directly adjacent to a number
of parking spaces which in part constitute undercroft parking. Whilst south facing,
given that these windows are adjacent the undercroft spaces, it is considered that
these habitable rooms would benefit from limited light and outlook. It is also noted
that due to the sunken nature of part of the site, some of the northern and eastern
habitable windows would receive only limited light and outlook, to the material
detriment of the living conditions of the future occupiers of the site.

With regard to the external amenity space, all of the 4-bedroom dwellinghouses
proposed will be provided private rear garden areas of a usable size and shape.
However, in terms of the flats, no meaningful communal amenity area will be
provided, with only 6 of the first floor flats provided with small balcony areas; some
of which are extremely small and not particularly useful. The communal outside
space proposed is in the form of limited landscaping to the front of the site, rather
than usable amenity space. It is therefore considered that the proposal would
provide substandard living conditions for the future occupiers of the flats. Whilst the
applicant refers to the proximity of the site to Chalkwell Seafront and Chalkwell

Development Control Report 17



4.40

4.41

4.42

4.43

4.44

Park, in this instance given the lack of amenity space hereby proposed an
objection is raised on this basis and the nearby amenities do not justify this harm
identified.

Policy DM8 states that developments should meet the Lifetime Homes Standards
unless it can be clearly demonstrated that it is not viable and feasible to do so.
Lifetime Homes Standards have been dissolved, but their content has been
incorporated into Part M of the Building Regulations and it is considered that these
standards should now provide the basis for the determination of this application.
Policy DM8 also requires that 10% of dwellings in ‘major applications’ should be
built to be wheelchair accessible.

In this respect the Planning Statement submitted indicates two ground floor
apartments have been designed to accommodate M4(3), both of which have a
disabled parking space. The remaining apartments will meet M4(2). However, it is
not clear from the plans submitted that all of the units provided would meet these
standards. For example the first floor flat within the smaller flatted building fronting
Crosby Road does not contain a lift and therefore fails to provide step free access
to the flat. An objection is therefore raised on this basis.

The southern part of the site in particular is located in close proximity to a main line
railway track. As such, the proposed dwellings may be subject to noise and
disturbance from this existing noise source. In this respect, an environmental noise
assessment has been submitted with the application which considers the impact of
the nearby train line on the occupiers of the development. This document
concludes that given the location of the apartments, there would be no significant
noise sources affecting the proposed residential apartments. However, with regard
to the impact upon the houses to the rear of the site, a number of
recommendations are made in relation to glazing and ventilation, which would
ensure that internal noise levels in the new dwellings would be acceptable. With
regard to the private amenity spaces proposed to the dwellings, the report
indicates that the private garden areas will be affected by noise from passing
trains, but comments that the close-boarded fences proposed will provide some
attenuation, which will result in predicted noise levels being within the maximum
recommended levels. The report therefore concludes that the outside amenity
spaces proposed for this development would receive acceptable noise levels.

Subject to a condition requiring the development to be undertaken in accordance
with the recommendations and conclusions of the environmental noise impact
assessment submitted, it is therefore considered that the proposal would provide
adequate living conditions for the future occupiers of the site in this respect and no
objection is therefore raised on this basis.

No contaminated land assessment has been submitted with this application,
however, a condition can be imposed on any grant of consent in this respect.

Highways and Transport Issues:
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), Policies KP2, CP3 and CP4 of

the Core Strategy (2007), Development Management Document (2015)
Policies DM1, DM3 and DM15 and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

Development Control Report 18



4.45

4.46

4.47

4.48

4.49

4.50

4.51

Policy DM15 of the Development Management Document seeks a minimum of 1
car parking space per 1 and 2 bedroom flat and a minimum of 2 parking spaces
per 2+ bedroom dwelling. As such there is a requirement for 20 parking spaces to
serve the flats and 12 parking spaces to serve the dwellinghouses proposed.

The parking court proposed to the rear of the flats seeks to provide 22 parking
spaces. An additional two parking spaces are proposed within the southern part of
the site, to the north of the dwellinghouses and are labelled ‘visitor spaces’. The
proposed dwellings are each provided with a garage with parking space in front.
The garages are of adequate sizes to be classified as parking spaces and as such
the parking provisions proposed are acceptable and policy compliant in this regard.

With regard to cycle parking, the plans submitted indicate that the cycle storage
will be provided at a ratio of 1 space per flat, with the plans indicating 2 cycle
parking spaces will be provided within the garage of each dwelling. The plans
submitted indicate that the cycle parking will be secure and covered in accordance
with the adopted policy. No objection is therefore raised on this basis.

The Highway Officer has raised no objection to the proposed development,
emergency access has been provided with refuse access also considered. Having
considered the previous use of the site and comparing the previous trip generation
for the previous use to the proposed trip generations as a result of this
development, the Highway Officer concludes that the proposal will not have a
significant or detrimental impact upon the public highway. However, the Highway
Officer has recommended that the applicant provides Travel Packs for the new
dwellings to encourage sustainable development.

As such, given the level of parking proposed, and given the positive comments
received from the Highway Officer, subject to the requirement to provide Travel
Packs the proposal is considered policy compliant in this respect and no objection
is therefore raised on this basis.

In terms of refuse facilities, within the ground floor of the block of flats proposed, a
secure and covered refuse store will be provided. A size 3 turning head has been
provided within the site to enable refuse vehicles to access and turn within the site.
Subject to a condition requiring full details of the refuse storage facilities proposed,
including the sizes of the containers no objection is therefore raised on this basis.

Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Core Strategy (2007)
Policies KP1, KP2 and CP4

There are no tree preservation orders (TPOs) on the site. The application has been
submitted with an Arboricultural Impact Assessment which concludes that the
development would result in the removal of 9 trees and 1 low-quality group which
are all categorised as low quality with the exception of a magnolia tree which is of
moderate quality. The report concludes that the visual impact of the removal of
these trees is low as the trees are largely less than 7m high and mostly located
within the site. The report confirms that the boundary trees will be protected during
works by tree protection fencing or ground protection. Given the findings of this
report and subject to a condition requiring the development to be undertaken in

Development Control Report 19



4.52

4.53

4.54

4.55

4.56

4.57

4.58

accordance with the recommendations and conclusions of this report no objection
is raised to the proposal on this basis subject to a conditions requiring a
landscaping scheme to ensure adequate, replacements are provided.

The Planning Statement submitted indicates that additional soft landscaping will be
provided, details of which can be secure via condition. Subject to a landscaping
condition attached to any grant of consent no objection is therefore raised on this
basis.

In terms of ecology the application has been submitted with an ecological
assessment and a bat survey.

The ecological survey submitted concludes that there was no evidence of badger
setts or foraging activity by badgers on the site; however, the report recommends a
number of precautionary measures in relation to badgers, such as covering
trenches at night. Recommendations are also made in relation to hedgehogs which
could be present at the site, but comments that the site has negligible potential for
great crested newts and low potential for reptiles. The report also makes
recommendations in relation to breeding birds; it is recommended that the areas of
scrub and trees are cleared outside the bird-nesting season (March to August
inclusive).

The bat survey found no evidence of the presence of bats within the site and
concludes that the proposal would not have a detrimental effect on the local bat
population.

In this respect, the Council’s Environmental and Greenspace Project Officer has
commented that the bat survey and ecological survey are both satisfactory in that
they are detailed and methodical in their approach and survey techniques and
were undertaken by individuals with an appropriate level of experience. However,
the Officer makes a number of recommendations in relation to further
enhancements for garden birds, bats and hedgehogs and suggests a landscape
plan to include a mixed, native-rich hedgerow. Subject to conditions in this respect,
no objection is therefore raised on this basis.

Sustainability

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), Core Strategy (2007) Policies
KP2, CP4 and CP8, Development Management Document (2015) Policies DM1
and DM2 and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

The application has been submitted with a Sustainability and Energy Report.

Policy KP2 of the Core Strategy states; “All development proposals should
demonstrate how they will maximise the use of renewable and recycled energy,
water and other resources” and that “at least 10% of the energy needs of a new
development should come from on-site renewable options (and/or decentralised
renewable or low carbon energy sources)”. The provision of renewable energy
resources should be considered at the earliest opportunity to ensure an integral
design

Development Control Report 20



4.59

4.60

4.61

4.62

4.63

4.64

The Sustainability and Energy Report submitted indicates that PV panels will be
mounted on the roof which will produce at least 10% of the development’s energy
demands. Subject to a condition in this respect no objection is raised on this basis.

The site is located in flood risk zone 1 (low risk). Policy KP2 of the Core Strategy
states all development proposals should demonstrate how they incorporate
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) to mitigate the increase in surface water
runoff, and, where relevant, how they will avoid or mitigate tidal or fluvial flood risk.

The application has been submitted with a SuDS/surface water drainage statement
which confirms that the site is located within flood zone 1 and that the development
would seek to reduce the surface water discharge rate by around 50% to ensure
there is no increased risk of flooding elsewhere as a result of the development.
Detailed hydraulic modelling has been carried out which demonstrates that the
surface water drainage system can withstand the impact of a 1:100 year rainfall
event (including an additional 40% as an allowance for climate change). The report
concludes the redevelopment scheme and its occupants will not be at an increased
risk of flooding, the redevelopment scheme will not increase the risk of flooding
elsewhere and a sustainable drainage scheme can be implemented. The
sustainability and energy report submitted indicates that the SuDS strategy
includes permeable paving and attenuation tanks to withhold additional surface
water caused by a 1:100 year plus 40% climate change rainfall event.

In this respect, the Council’s Engineer has commented that the majority of the site
is at very low risk of surface water flooding although there is a flow path at high risk
of surface water flooding along the southern site boundary. The site is located
within a medium groundwater flooding susceptibility zone. However, the Council’s
Engineer concludes that additional information is required (see Council Engineer’s
comments below). In this respect it is considered that this additional information
could be controlled via condition and as such it is considered that the proposal is
acceptable in this respect.

Policy DM2 of the Development Management Document part (iv) requires water
efficient design measures that limit internal water consumption to 105 litres per
person per day (Ipd) (110 Ipd when including external water consumption).
Such measures will include the use of water efficient fittings, appliances and water
recycling systems such as grey water and rainwater harvesting. In this respect the
sustainability and energy report submitted demonstrates that a minimum water use
of 105 litres per person per day (excluding external water use) is achievable.
Subject to a condition in this respect no objection is raised on this basis.

Other Matters

As part of its Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA) update, the
Council has published information on its potential housing supply (5 year supply of
housing plus an additional 5% buffer as required by the NPPF). This demonstrates
that the Council has a 6 year housing land supply against its adopted targets and
therefore, meets the requirements of the NPPF in terms of housing delivery. Thus
the authority is able to meet its housing needs targets without recourse to allowing
development which would otherwise be unacceptable.

Development Control Report 21



4.65

4.66

4.67

4.68

4.69

Community Infrastructure Levy

This application is CIL liable. If the application had been recommended for
approval, a CIL charge could have been payable. If an appeal is lodged and
allowed the development could be CIL liable. Any revised application could also be
CIL liable.

Planning Obligations

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Planning Practice
Guidance (NPPG), Southend Core Strategy (2007) strategic objective SO7,
Policies KP3 and CP8; Development Management Document (2015) Policy
DM7 and a Guide to Section 106 & Developer Contributions (2015)

The Core Strategy Policy KP3 requires that:

“In order to help the delivery of the Plan’s provisions the Borough Council will:
Enter into planning obligations with developers to ensure the provision of
infrastructure and transportation measures required as a consequence of the
development proposed.”

In this instance, affordable housing and a contribution towards secondary
education are of relevance. For information, primary education is covered by the
Community Infrastructure Levy, as set out in the Council’s Infrastructure Delivery
Plan and CIL Regulation 123 Infrastructure List, but the impact on secondary
education is currently addressed through planning obligations (subject to
complying with statutory tests and the pooling restriction).

Paragraph 205 of the NPPF states the following:

Where obligations are being sought or revised, local planning authorities
should take account of changes in market conditions over time and,
wherever appropriate, be sufficiently flexible to prevent planned
development being stalled.

The need to take viability into account in making decisions in relation to planning
obligations on individual planning applications is reiterated in Paragraph: 019
Reference ID: 10-019-20140306 of the NPPG, which sets out the following
guidance:

In making decisions, the local planning authority will need to understand the
impact of planning obligations on the proposal. Where an applicant is able
to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the local planning authority that the
planning obligation would cause the development to be unviable, the local
planning authority should be flexible in seeking planning obligations.

This is particularly relevant for affordable housing contributions which are
often the largest single item sought on housing developments. These
contributions should not be sought without regard to individual scheme
viability. The financial viability of the individual scheme should be carefully
considered in line with the principles in this guidance.

Development Control Report 22



4.70

4.71

4.72

4.73

4.74

4.75

4.76

Specifically in relation to incentivising the bringing back into use of brownfield sites,
which the application site is, the NPPG also requires local planning authorities
“...to take a flexible approach in seeking levels of planning obligations and other
contributions to ensure that the combined total impact does not make a site
unviable.” (NPPG Paragraph: 026 Reference ID: 10-026-20140306).

The need for negotiation with developers, and a degree of flexibility in applying
affordable housing policy, is echoed in Core Strategy policy CP8 that states the
following:

The Borough Council will:
...enter into negotiations with developers to ensure that:

.. all residential proposals of 10-49 dwellings or 0.3 hectares up to 1.99
hectares make an affordable housing or key worker provision of not less
than 20% of the total number of units on site...

For sites providing less than 10 dwellings (or below 0.3 ha) or larger sites
where, exceptionally, the Borough Council is satisfied that on-site provision
is not practical, they will negotiate with developers to obtain a financial
contribution to fund off-site provision. The Council will ensure that any such
sums are used to help address any shortfall in affordable housing.

Furthermore, the responsibility for the Council to adopt a reasonable and balanced
approach to affordable housing provision, which takes into account financial
viability and how planning obligations affect the delivery of a development, is
reiterated in the supporting text at paragraph 10.17 of the Core Strategy and
paragraph 2.7 of “Supplementary Planning Document: Planning Obligations”

In this respect the application was submitted with a viability assessment which
sought to demonstrate that the proposed scheme could not provide any affordable
housing on the site and sought to provide a financial contribution to affordable
housing of £158,553.

However, information received from some Registered providers indicates that there
is interest in taking affordable units on this site.

The Council has also had the viability assessment submitted with the application
independently reviewed. This independent review concludes that the payment in
lieu of on-site affordable housing required for the scheme is £521,212. In this
respect, the independent review concludes that the proposed development can
viably contribute towards an affordable housing payment of £521, 212 in lieu.

No S106 legal agreement has been completed to secure such a payment and it
has not been shown that on site affordable housing cannot be provided. Therefore
the proposal would fail to meet the Council’s policies for provision of affordable
housing contributions and is unacceptable in this respect and is contrary to the
Development Plan in this respect.

Development Control Report 23



4.77

4.78

5.1

5.2

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

In terms of the secondary Education requirements, the Education Officer has
confirmed that all secondary schools within acceptable travel distance are
oversubscribed. A contribution of £9,042.42 is required to mitigate against the
increased demand this development will result in, in this respect.

The proposal is therefore unacceptable and contrary to the Development Plan in
this respect as the development would not provide adequate affordable housing
contributions and does not provide a contribution towards secondary education to
meet the needs generated by the development.

Conclusion

Having taken all material planning considerations into account, it is found that the
proposed development does not constitute sustainable development, is
unacceptable and would be contrary to the development plan and is therefore
recommended for refusal. The proposed development results in the unjustified loss
of protected green space, is of a contrived and unacceptable design that would
result in material harm to the character and appearance of the area and would
result in material unacceptable harm to the residential amenity of the adjoining
residents. The development fails to provide adequate living conditions for the
future occupiers of the site, has failed to demonstrate compliance with M4(2) and
no S106 legal agreement has been completed to date to secure appropriate
contributions for affordable housing and secondary education facilities. The
scheme therefore fails to provide affordable housing to meet local needs and fails
to mitigate the resulting increased pressure on local education infrastructure.

The benefits of the proposal do not outweigh the significant and material harm
identified as a result of this proposal and the application is therefore recommended
for refusal.

Planning Policy Summary

National Planning Policy Framework (2012)

Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP1 (Spatial Strategy); KP2 (Development
Principles); KP3 (Implementation and Resources); CP3 (Transport and
Accessibility); CP4 (The Environment and Urban Renaissance); CP6 (Community
Infrastructure) and CP7 (Sports, Recreation and Green Space) and CP8 (Dwelling
Provision)

Development Management Document (2015): Policies DM1(Design Quality), DM2
(Low Carbon Development and Efficient Use of Resources), DM3 (Efficient and

Effective Use of Land), Policy DM7 (Dwelling Mix, Size and Type), DM8
(Residential Standards), and Policy DM15 (Sustainable Transport Management)

Design & Townscape Guide (2009)
Planning Obligations (2010)
Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule (2015)

National Technical Housing Standards (2015)

Development Control Report 24



6.8

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

National Planning Practice Guide (2016)
Representation Summary
Sport England

The proposed development does not fall within either our statutory remit, or non-
statutory remit, therefore Sport England has not provided a detailed response in
this case, but would wish to give the following advice:

If the proposal involves the loss of any sports facility then full consideration should
be given to whether the proposal meets paragraph 74 of National Planning Policy
Framework, is in accordance with local policies to protect social infrastructure and
any approved Playing Pitch Strategy or Built Sports Facility Strategy that the local
authority has in place.

London Southend Airport

Given position and height, the proposal will have no effect upon our operations.
We therefore have no safeguarding objections.

Please not that if you require a crane or piling rig to construct the proposed
development, this will need to be safeguarded separately and dependent on
location may be restricted in height and may also require full coordination with the
Airport Authority.

Essex and Suffolk Water

Our records show that we do not any apparatus located in the proposed
development. We have no objection to this development subject to compliance
with our requirements; consent is given to the development on the condition that a
water connection is made onto our Company network.

Council Engineer

According to the Risk of Flooding from Surface Water mapping, available on the
gov.uk website, the majority of the site is at very low risk (<0.1% Annual
Exceedance Probability (AEP)) of surface water flooding. There is a flow path at
high risk (>3.3% AEP) of surface water flooding along the southern site boundary.
The British Geological Survey (BGS) susceptibility to groundwater flooding dataset
indicates the site is located within a medium groundwater flooding susceptibility
zone. The site is situated within Flood Zone 1 according to the Environment
Agency’s Flood Risk from Rivers and Seas mapping. The closest waterbody to the
site is the tidal estuary of the River Thames approximately 400 metres to the south
of the site.

The report references a topographical survey, however this only provides
information for the northern section of the development. Furthermore, the applicant
needs to demonstrate graphically how surface water flows across the exiting site.
By providing an indication of proposed site levels this could also demonstrate
overland flows of the proposed development and how properties will be

Development Control Report 25



safeguarded in the event of exceedance.

The proposed drainage system consists of permeable paving, geo-cellular
attenuation systems and the flow is restricted using a flow control devices. Total
storage provide assuming 95% porosity for the geo-cellular tank and 30% for the
permeable paving is 128m?® with an overall proposed discharge rate of 6.9l/s.
Applicant to demonstrate that drainage strategy aims to discharge at greenfield
runoff rate.

Consent to discharge surface water to the existing Anglian Water surface water
sewerage system has not been provided. Applicant to provide evidence of consent
from Anglian Water to discharge at proposed discharge rate and location.

The report has stated that external drainage systems will be placed under a formal
agreement with an independent Maintenance Company to carry out inspections
and maintenance works to safeguard the development for the ongoing and future
maintenance. The applicant is required to provide further details of the
management and maintenance for all SuDS and how they will be secured for the
lifetime of the development (maintenance plan with actions, schedule and access).

Foul drainage proposals have not been provided within this report, however it is
stated that this report refers to flood risk and drainage matters.

It is considered that additional information is required to satisfy planning
requirements. Details of the information required include:

e Applicant to provide topographical survey with contours (for the Southern
Section of the development), including a demonstrated understanding of
how surface water would flow across the site, both pre and post
development (for entire development);

e Applicant to demonstrate that the drainage strategy aims to discharge at
greenfield runoff rate. It should be noted that recent industry reports
indicates, discharge rates of lower than 5 I/s can be achieved using flow
control structures. A robust justification to be provided should this be
deemed inappropriate for this development;

e Applicant to provide a drawing to indicate how the exceedance flows will be
managed and mitigated in the event of a drainage system failure or an event
exceeding the 1 in 100 year plus 40% allowance for climate change storm
event, for safeguarding properties from flooding;

e Applicant to provide a statement addressing the process for information
delivery and community engagement to relevant stakeholders;

e Applicant to provide information with regards to the process for information
delivery and community engagement and the system valuation and long
term economic viability;

e Applicant to provide evidence of consent from Anglian Water to discharge
runoff to the existing surface water sewer system at the proposed discharge
rate and location; and

e Applicant to include a foul water drainage strategy. This may have been
addressed separately, but this needs to be clarified.

Once these issues have been addressed, appropriately worded conditions can be
placed on the permission for the consideration of the surface water drainage
strategy during detailed design. These conditions will include provision of further

Development Control Report 26



7.5

7.6

details on the following, prior to construction, based on our assessment of the
current drainage proposals. These are subject to amendment following submission
of further information as outlined above;

e Applicant to provide method statement regarding the management of
surface water runoff during the construction phase of the project.

e Applicant to provide details of the management and maintenance for all
SuDS and how they will be secured for the lifetime of the development
(maintenance plan).

Traffic and Transportation

36 off street car parking spaces have been provided for the proposal which
includes 2 disabled spaces and 4 visitors spaces. 1:1 secure cycle spaces have
also been provided.

Access will be taken via a new access in Crosby Road. This access will require a
section 278 agreement any relocated street furniture or highway reinstatement will
be at the applicant expense.

Emergency access has been provided with refuse access also considered.

Consideration has been given to the previous use of the site when comparing trip
generation for the new proposal. The proposal will not have a significant or
detrimental impact upon the public highway.

It is recommended that the applicant provides Travel Packs for the new dwelling
which should provide accurate travel information and provide incentives to
encourage sustainable travel options.

The applicant has provided a comprehensive design and access statement and
transport statement which are considered to be robust.

Therefore no highway objections are raised.
Housing

The development is required to provide a minimum of 20% affordable housing
which equates to 6 (5.2) units. This can be provided as 6 units of affordable
housing or as 5 units and a financial contribution for 0.2 units in accordable with
Southend Borough Council’s interim affordable housing policy.

The Strategic Housing Team recommends that the affordable housing contribution
dwelling mix is as follows:

3 x 1 bedroom flat

3 x 2 bedroom flat

The affordable housing tenure requirement is as follows:
4 x Affordable Rent
2 x Shared Ownership

The submitted viability report has indicated the applicant has failed to garner

Development Control Report 27



7.7

7.8

interest in the affordable units. However, the Strategic Housing Team has made
contact with locally active RP’s and determined there are at least 2 providers who
are interested in discussing the opportunity (who we have now put in contact with
the applicant).

At the time of writing, and taking the aforementioned in mind, it is the Strategic
Housing Team’s recommendation that affordable housing should be provided on
site. However in the event it is evidenced that Registered Providers are not
interested in the scheme, we will accept a payment in lieu of affordable housing in
line with the Council’s Interim Housing Policy, and noting that the assessment of
the submitted viability states that the scheme is viable with a full contribution.

Education

This application falls within the school Catchment areas for Barons Court and
Milton Hall Primary Schools who share a catchment area. All secondary schools
within acceptable travel distance are oversubscribed. An expansion programme is
currently underway within all the non-selective schools in Southend and any further
development within the area, even flats, will add to this oversubscription. A
contribution towards the Secondary expansion of Chase High School of £9.042.42
is therefore requested.

Design Officer

The site is located at the junction of Crowstone Road and Crosby Road. It
comprises the plot of the former Crowstone Prep School (originally two detached
houses now demolished) the linked playing field and number 6 Crosby Road a
detached house.

This area is characterised by large detached family houses and chalets of up to 2
storeys. A few of the houses have roof accommodation but dormers are generally
confined to the rear. The buildings are mixed in design but generally traditional in
appearance with mainly hips opening up views of the sky between properties.
Crowstone Road slopes north to south down to the estuary. Crosby Road has a
shallower incline from east to west from the junction. The buildings step down the
hillside with regular spacing on a consistent building line. The properties are well
detailed and cohesion comes from the consistent scale and placement of
development and the use of and materials including red brick and white render and
red tile roofs with prominent chimneys. Projecting gables and bays add articulation
to the buildings and are typical of the area often decorated with timber boarding or
hanging tile. The properties are almost all detached and are well spaced with
generous frontages which are typically used for parking but also contain significant
soft landscaping. The planted verges to the street are a defining feature of this
area and, together with the landscaped frontages and open grain of the
development, give the area a spacious and Arcadian character.

Whilst there is variation in design and form, the area has a fairly consistent
character except for two buildings. On the opposite corner to the north is
Sunningdale Court, an attractive Edwardian purpose built flatted block which is
richly detailed and which makes a positive contribution to the streetscene but
which is rather an anomaly in the area. The other is Britannia Lodge, the 1970s
style flatted block to the south of the site at the junction with Britannia Road. This is

Development Control Report 28



a poor quality flat roofed design that has a negative impact in the streetscene.
Neither of these buildings should be seen as providing reference for future
development in this area. There are some very large more traditional ‘houses’
opposite the site to the east. These have generally been converted into flats and
these are more typical of the larger forms in the area. These buildings have tall
storeys with deep planforms. Their scale in the streetscene is offset by their
relatively narrow frontages, the separation between the buildings and their deep
front gardens.

The proposal seeks to erect 20 flats around the junction and 6 houses on the site
of the of the playing fields to the rear. 18 of the flats are within one large ‘L’ shaped
block which wraps around the junction. 2 additional flats are provided within a
separate block adjacent to 8 Crosby Road and which takes the form of a detached
house. 6 linked detached houses are provided to the rear of the site with a frontage
onto Victory footpath.

The main flatted block is mostly 3 storeys in height stepping down to 2.5 storeys at
the edges of the development. It has a pitched roof with a flat top in places. It is set
at a consistent floor level across the site which means that the block is dug into the
ground at the junction by more than % a storey in height (see streetscene plan and
sections). This has a significant impact on its relationship with the street at this
point as it creates a ‘well or void’ at the back edge of the footpath meaning that the
lower most articulated storey is submerged for a significant part of the frontage. In
addition to the ‘well’ being unsightly and creating a poor and dark outlook for the
ground floor residents, this approach is out of character with the streetscene where
the houses are all set at ground level and the floor levels step from property to
property down the hillside. This element of the proposal is therefore unacceptable
in design terms. Any development on this site needs to better respect the land
levels and this stepping of development. A range of floor levels following the slope
of the land would seem to be the most appropriate option.

In order to offset the overall scale and mass of the flatted block, in addition to
digging the building into the ground, the architects have stepped the building down
Y2 a storey towards the ends of the block and introduce a rhythm of gables to the
frontage. Whilst this has helped to articulate the frontage, there is a concern that
the scale and massing of this block will still read as significantly greater than the
surrounding development and it will appear to dominate the streetscene which is
generally characterised by well-spaced detached family housing. The bulk and
massing of the main flatted block is therefore considered to be unacceptable.

The scale and massing of the building will be further accentuated by the forward
building line of the proposal. As noted above the area is characterised by deep
planted frontages and the houses are all set on a relatively consistent building line.
The proposal in contrast, steps forward of this considerably on both frontages. This
aspect of the proposal is therefore also out of character with the area and will
accentuate the already significant mass and bulk of the proposal in the
streetscene. This aspect of the proposal is also unacceptable.

The scheme has adopted a traditional character and sought to reference key
features in the streetscene such as the tiled and boarded gables and casement
windows and this is considered to be a valid approach to take but, however well
the facades may be detailed, this will not offset the concerns raised above in
relation to scale, massing, siting and response to existing ground levels. With

Development Control Report 29



regard to the proposed materials, the facing materials including red/brown brick,
white render and the tile hanging draw reference to the area and are considered
acceptable, but the substantial grey tile roof is at odds with local character and will
again draw attention to the development in the streetscene as being out of place.

It is noted that there is a main entrance facing the street and this is welcomed in
principle, however this is set within the well so will not be easily accessed or
provide a visible active frontage for the development. The entrance will not
therefore provide a focal point for the development in the streetscene.

In terms of layout, as noted above there are concerns that the ground floor flats on
the north side will face into the north facing ‘well’ but on their south side they will
face out directly onto parking and under an overhang. It is considered that this will
not give rise to a good outlook for future occupiers of these units. It is also noted
that there is no amenity provision for the flatted block aside from some very small
balconies to a few of the upper floor units and this is again out of character with the
area where large gardens are the norm. The lack of amenity provision for the
flatted units is therefore also unacceptable.

Access to the some of the first floor units is via deck access which can give rise to
concerns relating to useability and privacy between residents. It is also noted that a
number of the top floor units are north facing only which will mean that they get no
sunlight to habitable rooms.

The car parking is located to the rear where it will be hidden from the street but
there is no space for landscaping to soften the outlook for residents and this will be
a very unattractive environment.

Overall all these concerns suggest that too many units are sought in this part of the
site. As proposed this element of the development would have a detrimental
impact on local character and on the quality of environment for future occupiers.

In relation to the other parts of the development, the proposal for the 2 flats in a
separate block better relates to the area in terms of scale and form but its forward
positioning and lack of amenity is out of character and this needs to be addressed.
The houses to the rear appear to more appropriate in terms of their scale and
positioning. The frontage to Victory Path will provide an active frontage to this
pedestrian route and is seen as a positive aspect of the proposal. The designs
here are traditional and conservative which is an option for this site, but the
fenestration designs in particular seem weak. The windows on the public faces at
least, should be taller to better relate to the proportions of the dwellings and to
local character and the blank windows would be better replaced with actual
windows. As noted above the use of grey roofing materials would also seem to be
out of character.

The proposal will be required to provide 10% of energy needs from renewables
and the roof plan shows a small area of pvs on the main flatted block. This is
welcomed in principle but seems small in relation to the scale of development
proposed. However, it is noted that there is an extensive south facing roof slope so
it is considered that additional PVs could be accommodated without having a
detrimental impact on the townscape.

Development Control Report 30



7.9

8.1

8.2

Environmental and Greenspace Project Officer

| have considered the Bat Survey and the Phase 1 Ecological survey and have the
following comments:

1)

2)

6)

7)

Both reports are satisfactory in that they are detailed and methodical in their
approach and survey techniques and were undertaken by individuals with
an appropriate level of experience.

The recommendation in the Eco report for swift boxes to be integrated into
the fabric of the building is inappropriate for the site. Either an additional
sparrow terrace or a starling box would be appropriate alternatives and
should be incorporated into the fabric of the buildings.

The ecological report does not clarify the number of integrated bird boxes to
be used. In order to mitigate the loss of bird nesting habitat, the ecologist
must state a number of boxes to be used and their location and orientation
within the building designs. Based on the report, | would recommend that
the proposals include 3 house sparrow terraces and 3 starling boxes in total,
spread across the development site and incorporated within the fabric of the
structures to be built. These should be located away from each other and
should be in an area with immediate access to the hedgerow corridors in
order to encourage uptake. The boxes should be on walls not facing the
prevailing wind (e.g. not on a south-westerly facing). The ecologist should
provide further details on placement and numbers based on their site visit
and the results of the desk study.

A re-assessment of the site for garden birds, or an additional chapter of the
report addressing Garden Birds, might affect the ecological
recommendations for mitigation and enhancement.

Further enhancements addressing bats and hedgehogs should be
incorporated, such as the installation of bat bricks within the fabric of the
buildings or the provision of at least one hedgehog habitat box. The habitats
on the site are of value to hedgehogs and bats, so a hedgehog habitat box
placed within the hedgerow would be an appropriate enhancement, as
would bat roosting features. More information should be supplied by the
ecologists regarding number of recommended boxes and their locations
within the proposals.

The ecologist has not stated the planting mix of the hedgerow. The planted
hedgerows should be of at least a double-width and use a native species-
rich mix (therefore, 5+ species in each hedgerow).

A landscape plan needs to be submitted for approval.

Public Consultation

A site notice was displayed, the application was advertised in the press and 42
neighbour letters were sent out.

46 letters of objection have been received which make the following summarised
comments:

Concerns relating to the loss of the protected green space/open
space/green belt/sports ground contrary to Local Plan Policies and impact
health and well-being and sets precedent for adjoining tennis courts. The
area is already deficient in open spaces and the open space is not being
replaced.

Development Control Report 31



[Officer comment: The site constitutes protected green space, not
Green Belt]

¢ Inadequate parking, inadequate visitor parking, causing increased on-street
parking, already on-street parking stress and increase traffic in area. Area
suffers from commuter, care home employees, tennis club members, church
goers and seafront visitors parking. Loss of on-street parking.

e Concerns relating to access; close to junction and highway and pedestrian
safety concerns. Concerns relating to refuse and emergency vehicles
accessing the site. Concerns relating to access being from Crosby Road.

e Crosby Road is used as a through road/rat-run and already congested and
busy. Concerned emergency vehicles and heavy vehicles can pass along
the road.

e Design concerns, including concerns relating to scale, mass, size; width,
length and height proposed and forward projection of flats beyond the
building line. Out of character, dominant and imposing and out of keeping
with the area. Previous school buildings were attractive buildings. Apartment
block will dominate the locality. Flat roof and first floor access corridor are
poor design. Lack of space between flats and neighbours/site boundaries.
Houses at rear are not in-keeping with the layout of the area or the scale of
the area. There are no other terraced houses in the area and the gardens
proposed for the houses are not consistent with the existing grain. Too
many flats in the area already.

e Demolition of 6 Crosby Road will disrupt the streetscene and character of
the road. Loss of traditional housing stock. Garden to No.6 is not brownfield
land. Is ‘garden grabbing’.

e Impact amenities of neighbours; Overcrowding, overshadowing, overlooking
and loss of privacy, harm enjoyment of my home and quality of life and loss
of light and sunlight

e Overdevelopment.

e Flooding and drainage concerns. Field floods. Crosby Road floods.
Basements, bungalows and conservatories have flooded. Surface water
problems in the area and building on the grassland will increase the risk of
flooding. Drainage systems cannot cope with current demand. Did not
consult Anglian Water.

e Poor living conditions for future occupiers: Railway would have harmful

impact on the living conditions of the future occupiers, lack of green space

around the flats and lack of amenity space for the flats and poor outlook to
occupiers of flats due to parking layout and some flats do not satisfy space
standards.

Density too high within a low density area and is town cramming.

Inaccuracies in submission

The Council does not have a lack of housing land supply.

Increased noise levels from more people, families and cars.

Concerns relating to new road located adjacent to dwellings — with

properties now surrounded by roads causing noise and emission and impact

privacy and health.

¢ No daylight and sunlight report submitted

e Loss of views — there are no three storey buildings on the south side of the
east-west roads in the area.

e |s not sustainable.

e Lack of infrastructure including doctors and schools

Development Control Report 32



8.3

Impact on trees

Concerns relating to loss of natural habitat and its impact on wildlife
including badgers

Lack of refuse storage.

No connection between school and grassland area

Concerned will impact on ability to use garages

No right to cross the application site land.

Would negatively impact air quality.

Light pollution.

Concerned ecological survey is inadequate

Ground stability and subsidence concerns.

Loss of quiet enjoyment of garden amenities contrary to Human Rights.

No schools near the site

Lack of community involvement from developer.

No affordable housing or key workers housing.

Concerned that 60% of development is on greenfield site — contrary to
Policy CP8. Rear site and garden of No.6 Crosby Road are not previously
developed land.

[Officer Comment: Policy CP8 seeks the provision of 80% residential
development on brownfield land across the Borough, rather than bring
a site specific target]

Noise and disruption

No bus stops in Crowstone Road/near the site — a car is vital in this location.
Lack of neighbour consultation and insufficient time to respond.

School buildings already demolished which is an eyesore.

Covenants restricting building line and number of dwellings on site and use
of playing field.

[Officer Comment: Covenants are not material planning
considerations]

Negative impact on peaceful neighbourhood. Adversely impact quiet
peaceful walk on Victory path.

Unlikely to be able to provide 10% of site’s energy from renewables.

Health and safety concerns.

Existing buildings could have been converted.

Contrary to National and Local Planning Policy

Loss of property values.

A petition has also been submitted which includes 50 signatures for the following
summarised comments:

Overdevelopment

Not consistent with the urban grain

Rear of site is protected green space

Detrimental to neighbouring properties and their amenity space.
Impact on wildlife.

Precedent for further development of protected green space.
Flats are not consistent with existing streetscene.

Parking concerns

Lack of amenity

Vehicular access/egress and highway safety concerns, including for
emergency vehicles

Development Control Report 33



8.4

9.1

10

01

02

03

e Further parking stress and harm highway safety by increasing on street
parking.

e 3-storey scale is out of keeping

e Existing drainage and flooding issues, which this proposal will worsen.

e Out of character and harmful to the character and appearance of the area
and the amenities of the surrounding occupiers.

This application was called in to the Development Control Committee by Clir
Burzotta, but also needed to be determined by the Development Control
Committee due to the application constituting a major development.

Relevant Planning History

17/00938/DEM — Demolish former prep school and associated buildings
(application for prior approval for demolition) — prior approval is required and prior
approval is granted.

Recommendation

Members are recommended to:
REFUSE PLANNING PERMISSION for the following reasons:

The south-western part of the application site constitutes designated
protected green space which would be lost as a result of this development.
The application has failed to clearly demonstrate that the open space is
surplus to requirements or that it will be replaced and the development does
not provide an alternative sport or recreation facility to replace the space
lost. The development is therefore unacceptable and contrary to the National
Planning Policy Framework and Policies KP2 and CP7 of the Core Strategy
(2007).

The proposal would, by reason of its size, scale, bulk, mass, siting beyond
the established building line and detailed design, constitute a cramped,
contrived and incongruous development that would be harmful to the
character and appearance of the site and the surrounding area. This is
unacceptable and contrary to National Planning Policy Framework, Policies
KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007), Policies DM1 and DM3 of the
Development Management Document (2015) and the advice contained within
the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

By virtue of the design, layout and siting of the car parking and access road
proposed within the site, the development would result in unacceptable
levels of noise and disturbance to the detriment of the amenities of the
occupiers of the neighbouring dwelling at No.125 Crowstone Road. The
development is therefore unacceptable and contrary to the National
Planning Policy Framework, Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy
(2007), Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document
(2015) and the advice contained within the Design and Townscape Guide
(2009).

Development Control Report 34



04

05

06

A number of the proposed flats would provide unacceptable levels of
amenities for their future occupiers by virtue of their inadequate size in
terms of internal floorspace and bedroom size, the insufficient outside
amenity areas proposed and the poor levels of light and outlook provided to
habitable rooms. The proposal is therefore unacceptable and contrary to the
National Planning Policy Framework, Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007), Policies DM1, DM3 and DM8 of the Development
Management Document (2015) and the advice contained within the Design
and Townscape Guide (2009).

The application does not include a formal undertaking to secure a
contribution to affordable housing provision to meet the demand for such
housing in the area. The submission also lacks a formal undertaking to
secure a contribution to the delivery of education facilities to meet the need
for such infrastructure generated by the development. In the absence of
these undertakings the application is unacceptable and contrary to the
National Planning Policy Framework, Policies KP2, KP3, CP6 and CP8 of the
Core Strategy (2007) and policy DM7 of the Development Management
Policies Document (2015).

The submission does not clearly demonstrate that the proposal would
provide a development that is appropriately accessible and adaptable for all
members of the community in accordance with the requirements of the
M4(2) accessibility standards. This is unacceptable and contrary to the
National Planning Policy Framework, policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007) and policies DM1, DM3 and DM8 of the Development
Management Document (2015).

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in
determining this application by identifying matters of concern with the
proposal and determining the application within a timely manner, clearly
setting out the reason(s) for refusal, allowing the Applicant the opportunity
to consider the harm caused and whether or not it can be remedied by a
revision to the proposal. The detailed analysis is set out in a report
prepared by officers. In the circumstances the proposal is not considered to
be sustainable development. The Local Planning Authority is willing to
discuss the best course of action

Informatives

Please note that this application would be liable for a payment under the
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) if planning
permission had been granted. Therefore if an appeal is lodged and
subsequently allowed, the CIL liability will be applied. Any revised
application would also be CIL liable.

Development Control Report 35



This page is intentionally left blank



37



This page is intentionally left blank



6€



This page is intentionally left blank



114



This page is intentionally left blank



ev



This page is intentionally left blank



114



This page is intentionally left blank



VA%



This page is intentionally left blank



6v



This page is intentionally left blank



TS



This page is intentionally left blank



€9



This page is intentionally left blank



Reference: 18/00076/FUL 5
Ward: Victoria
Demolish existing buildings and erect nine dwellings
comprising of six terraced houses, two semi-detached
Proposal: houses and one detached house, layout 9 parking spaces,
cycle store to rear, layout bin stores to front and install
vehicular access on to Sutton Road (Amended Proposal)
Address: 423-425 Sutton Road, Southend-On-Sea, Essex
Applicant: Trafalgar Traditional Homes
Agent: Knight Gratrix Architects
Consultation Expiry: 01.03.2018
Expiry Date: 05.04.2018
Case Officer: Janine Rowley
020 Revision E; 021; 022 Revision E; 023 Revision F; 024
Plan Nos:

Revision D; 025 Revision B; 026 Revision B

Recommendation:

GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION

Development Control Report

Page 19519




1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

The Proposal

The application seeks planning permission for the demolition of the existing
buildings at the site and the erection of a terrace of 6 houses, a pair of semi-
detached houses and a detached dwelling at the rear of the site, served by a
parking court that would be accessed from Sutton Road.

The block of six terraced houses would be provided at the south part of the site,
measuring a total of 33m wide, 12.2m deep and 8.9m high. A gap of 4.2 metres
would be provided to the south of that terrace to provide the access into the site
and to the south of that would be a pair of semi-detached houses with a total width
of 11.1m, 12.2m deep and 8.9m high.

At the rear of the site would be a parking court that would feature 9 parking spaces
and a secure cycle parking area. In the sites south west rear corner a detached
dwelling would also be provided 5.8 metres wide and 11 metres deep with a pitched
roof built to an eaves height of 4.3 metres and a maximum height of 7.2 metres.

The private rear amenity areas to serve the six house terraced block would range
between 42sgm and 60sgm. The north two semi-detached dwellings would have
rear gardens measuring between 40sgm to 50sgm and the detached dwelling to the
rear of the site would have a 45sqm garden area.

The internal floorspace of each of the terrace and semi-detached dwellings fronting
Sutton Road is some 150sgm set over three floors including three bedrooms (5 bed
spaces). The detached dwelling to the rear has an internal floorspace of 120sgm
set over two floors and two bedrooms (4 bed spaces).

The design of the dwellings is contemporary with simple gable roof forms, glazing
and the use of render, brickwork and timber cladding for the external elevations. At
the front of each dwelling would be a small front garden enclosed by a low wall and
railings, with space shown for the storage of refuse. A canopy/pergola would be
provided at the frontage of each dwelling.

This application has been submitted following the refusal of application
17/00163/FUL, to erect nine dwellings and layout vehicle access that was refused
planning permission for the following reasons:

1. “The dwellings hereby proposed would not be served by external amenity
space of adequate quality or quantity and would therefore result in a poor
standard of accommodation for future occupiers. The proposal is therefore
unacceptable and contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework
(2012), Southend-on-Sea Development Management Document (2015)
Policies DM1, DM3 and DM8 and the advice contained within the Council's
Design and Townscape Guidance (2009)”.

2. “The proposed access would be in close proximity to a traffic island within
the public highway and it has not been demonstrated to the satisfaction of
the Local Planning Authority that the access would be able to be safely used
without impacting harmfully on pedestrian and highway safety. The proposal
is therefore unacceptable and contrary to the National Planning Policy
Framework (2012), Southend-on-Sea Core Strategy (2007) policies KP2 and

56



CP3 and Southend-on-Sea Development Management Document (2015)
policies DM1, DM3 and DM15”.

“The proposed access would conflict with an existing street tree and would
be likely to result in damage to or removal of the tree to the detriment of the
streetscene and general character of the area. The proposal is therefore
unacceptable and contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework
(2012), Southend-on-Sea Core Strategy (2007) policies KP2 and CP4,
Southend-on-Sea Development Management Document (2015) policies
DM1 and DM3 and the advice contained within the Council's Design and
Townscape Guidance (2009)”.

1.8 An appeal following refusal of the above application was dismissed (reference:
3178645) and will be discussed further within the Appraisal section of this report.
The main conclusions of the appeal decision by the Inspector were that:

The size of the three bedroom properties suggests they would be occupied
by families.

The outdoor amenity space serving the three bedroom properties is small
and not useable.

The amenity space for the two bedroom house is sufficient given fewer
occupants as it was only two bedrooms.

Prospective occupiers would not enjoy satisfactory living conditions, having
particular regard to the suitability of the external spaces.

Proximity of the proposed access to the traffic island in the middle of the
road would result in harm to highway safety.

The proposed access would be located close to the larger of the two street
trees and this proximity could result in its loss or significant damage, such
that it would harm the tree, resulting in an adverse effect on the character
and appearance of the area.

The design of the development would reflect other contemporary forms of
development in the surrounding area.

1.9 The main changes in the current proposal from the previously refused planning
application and subsequent appeal include:

Siting of the vehicle access is moved to the north of the mature street tree
and away from the traffic island;

Applicant has agreed to replace on a two for one basis the loss of the semi-
mature street tree;

12 parking spaces reduced to 9 parking spaces reducing the coverage of the
site by using an echelon parking arrangement (angled arrangement rather
than conventional linear layout);

A proposed row of six terraced properties to the south, a pair of semi-
detached houses to the north and a detached property to the rear compared
to the previously refused scheme, which included a terrace block of three
properties to the south and a terraced block of 5 units to the north and a
detached dwelling to the rear.

Amenity space increased from 31sgm to 43sgm and from 40sgm to 60sgm
for the terrace and semi-detached dwellings compared with the previous
proposal. The detached dwelling amenity space has reduced from 55sgm to
45sqm.

57



1.10

2.1

2.2

3.1

41

4.2

The principle of demolishing the existing buildings, the design and scale of the
dwellings and impact on the surrounding residential occupiers has been previously
considered acceptable.

Site and Surroundings

The site is located to the west of Sutton Road. The site contains a part two storey,
part single storey building with a Class B1 use that has a floorspace measuring
1214 square metres.

The site is not the subject of any site specific planning policy designations but is
included within the Southend Central Area, defined by the Southend Central Area
Action Plan.

Planning Considerations

The main considerations in the determination of this application are the principle of
the development, design and impact on the streetscene, impact on residential
amenity of neighbouring residents, the standard of accommodation for future
occupiers, traffic and highways issues, sustainability and whether the proposal has
overcome the reasons for refusal of previous application 17/00163/FUL and the
subsequently dismissed appeal.

Appraisal
Principle of the Development

National Planning Policy Framework (2012), Core Strategy (2007) Policies
KP1, KP2, CP1, CP2, CP4 and CP8; Development Management Document
(2015) Policies DM1, DM3, DM7, DM10 and DM11, Southend Central Area
Action Plan (2018)

Policy CP8 identifies that the intensification of the use of land should play a
significant role in meeting the housing needs of the Southend Borough, providing
approximately 40% of the additional housing that is required to meet the needs of
the Borough. Policy CP8 also expects 80% of residential development to be
provided on previously developed land. From this basis, it is considered that the
principle of undertaking residential development at this site should be supported,
subject to the following detailed considerations. This is especially the case given
that one of the 12 core principles of sustainable development that are identified
within the National Planning Policy Framework is to ‘promote mixed use
developments, and encourage multiple benefits from the use of land in urban and
rural areas.”

Policy CP1, of the Core Strategy, states that permission will not be granted for
proposals involving the loss of business uses unless this would bring clear benefits.
These benefits could include the creation of jobs, the extinguishment of a use which
is incompatible with the amenity of the area or when the premises are no longer
suitable for industrial or warehouse use. It should also be noted that the NPPF
outlines the commitment of the Government to the promotion of a strong stable and
productive economy.

58



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

The proposal would result in the loss of land capable of supporting employment
generating uses within the borough. There is a limited amount of employment land,
and it is the policy of the Council to protect such uses unless evidence can be
provided that the business use has been marketed and found to be no longer
viable.

Policy CP1 also states that this will only be allowed when the proposal clearly
demonstrates it will contribute to the objectives of regeneration of the local
economy in other ways, including significant enhancement of the environment,
amenity and contribution to the local area. Moreover, policy DM11 states at section
5:

Outside the Employment Areas (Policy Table 8), proposals for alternative uses on
sites used (or last used) for employment purposes, including sites for sui-
generis uses of an employment nature, will only be permitted where it can be
demonstrated that:

(i) it will no longer be effective or viable to accommodate the continued use of the
site for employment purposes***; or

(i) Use of the site for B2 or B8 purposes gives rise to unacceptable
environmental problems.

It will need to be demonstrated that an alternative use or mix of uses will give
greater potential benefits to the community and environment than continued
employment use.

The application site lies outside the defined Employment Areas.

The principle of the loss of employment use on this site has been previously
accepted under application 17/00163/FUL which was not refused permission on
these grounds and it is not considered that there have been any material changes
in the site circumstances or policy which would warrant a different approach being
taken on the current proposal.

The applicant has previously justified the loss of employment land and within
application 17/00163/FUL this was balanced against the benefits of securing new
housing. The subsequent appeal did not find any objection to that position.
Therefore, on balance, this amended proposal is similarly found acceptable in
principle in terms of the loss of the existing use and the introduction of a residential
use and is considered to be policy compliant in that regard.

Design and Impact on the Character of the Area:

National Planning Policy Framework (2012), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2
and CP4; Development Management Document (2015) Policies DM1 and DM3
and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009), Southend Central Area Action
Plan (2018)

The National Planning Policy Framework states that “The Government attaches
great importance to the design of the built environment. Good design is a key
aspect of sustainable development, is indivisible from good planning, and should
contribute positively to making places better for people”.

59



4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

412

4.13

4.14

In the Council’s Development Management Document, Policy DM1 states that
development should “add to the overall quality of the area and respect the
character of the site, its local context and surroundings in terms of its architectural
approach, height, size, scale, form, massing, density, layout, proportions, materials,
townscape and/or landscape setting, use, and detailed design features.”

In determining an appropriate contextual relationship with surrounding
development, factors such as height, scale, massing and siting are material
considerations. Details such as architectural style, along with colour texture of
materials, are also fundamental in ensuring the appearance of any new
development is sympathetic to its surrounding and therefore wholly appropriate in
its context.

The Design and Townscape Guide states that “The successful integration of any
new development is dependent upon the appropriate scale, height and massing in
relation to the existing built fabric. Buildings that are over scaled will appear
dominant... the easiest option is to draw reference from the surrounding buildings.”

Sutton Road features a variety of development and land uses ranging from two
storey residential dwellings, blocks of flats of up to 5 storeys, large commercial
units and small retail units and institutional buildings. Accordingly there is no fixed
architectural styling to the area and any consistencies that may have existed in the
past have been significantly eroded.

It is noted that the main part of the proposed development at the Sutton Road
frontage would generally align with the staggered alignment of the approved
development at 427 Sutton Road and the church buildings next door, albeit with the
porches/canopies and gable ends projecting further forward. It is considered that
the building line of the proposed development is acceptable. The provision of
lightweight porches forward of the building line would not result in those features
becoming unduly prominent.

The two storey height and scale of the proposed development satisfactorily relates
to the streetscene and surrounding area. The design of the elevations fronting
Sutton Road is suitably proportioned and detailed. Each dwelling would have a
simple gable roof design which is well considered with good detailing and well
scaled fenestration which creates a rhythm contributing positively to the
appearance of the streetscene. The proposed detailing breaks up the overall form
of development appropriately. Details of materials can be dealt with by condition.

The proposed dwelling at the rear of the site would have a backland setting that is
not entirely in-keeping with the general grain of development within the surrounding
area. However, it is considered that this dwelling would not appear cramped in its
siting and would be masked from the public domain. It would have an appearance
that replicates the character of the other dwellings proposed at the site and which
has been previously accepted under application 17/00163/FUL. Whilst the scale
would be reduced in comparison to the other dwellings of the area, it is considered
that this would not result in the dwelling being harmfully underscaled and would not
cause material harm to the character of the site or the surrounding area.

60



4.15

4.16

417

4.18

4.19

4.20

4.21

Unlike the previously refused application 17/00163/FUL, the development has been
arranged to show the retention of the existing mature street tree at the frontage of
the site and loss of the semi-mature tree for the new vehicle access to the rear of
the site. When considering the appeal the Inspector at paragraph 12 stated:

“There are two trees within the pavement on Sutton Road outside the site. There
are limited numbers of trees visible in the street scene, such that they make a
significant contribution to the character and appearance of the area. The proposed
access would be located close to the larger of these trees and this proximity could
result in its loss or significant damage, such that it would harm the tree”.

The current proposal would allow for retention of the main street tree but would
result in the loss of a semi-mature tree. Following discussions between the
applicant and the Council Aboricultural Officer, no objections are raised to this as
the applicant has agreed to pay a commuted sum and replace the lost tree on a two
for one basis. This could be controlled by condition as can further details of how
the mature tree will be protected during construction.

The layout of this amended proposal has been altered to address the previous
reasons for refusal. The changes have resulted in a reduction of parking spaces.
The parking arrangement now uses echelon parking (angled arrangement) and the
resiting of the vehicle crossover away from the traffic island and mature street tree
and has overcome the previous reasons for refused application 17/00163/FUL.

The proposal is considered to be appropriately scaled for this location and
adequately designed and detailed from an aesthetic perspective and is therefore
considered to be acceptable and policy compliant in these respects.

Traffic and Transport Issues

National Planning Policy Framework (2012); Core Strategy (2007) Policies
KP2, CP4, CP3; Policy DM15 of the Development Management Document
(2015), the Design and Townscape Guide (2009)

As the site is located within the Southend Central Area, Policy DM15 states that
each dwelling should be served by one parking space. The proposal complies with
this requirement, providing adequate parking for all nine dwellings and is therefore
in accordance with the development plan. A location for cycle parking is shown on
the submitted plan which addresses the requirements of Policy DM15. This can be
controlled by condition.

The site has good connections to local bus routes and a train station within walking
distance and all other facilities required for day-to-day living within walking distance
of the site. As such it is considered that the site is a sustainable location for
residential development.

Previously under refused application 17/00163/FUL and the subsequent dismissed
appeal an objection was raised on the grounds that the proposed access would be
likely to impinge on the root protection zone of the street tree in front of the site and
on the grounds that the traffic island within the highway that is used to aid
pedestrians crossing the busy Sutton Road, would prevent safe egress from the
site in its current location.

61



4.22

4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26

4.27

4.28

This amended application seeks a 4.2m wide vehicle crossover to the north of the
existing mature tree and away from the traffic island to the south. Whilst the
proposal will result in the loss of a semi-mature tree, which has amenity value, the
applicant has agreed a two for one replacement and this has been conditioned. The
Councils Highway Officer has raised no objection on this basis.

In light of the above, no objection is raised to the development on transport and
highways grounds and the proposed development is considered acceptable and
satisfies the policies detailed above in these respects.

Impact on Residential Amenity.

National Planning Policy Framework (2012); Core Strategy (2007) Policies
KP2 and CP4; Development Management Document (2015) Policies DM1 and
DM3, and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009)

Policy DM1 of the Development Management Document requires all development to
be appropriate in its setting by respecting neighbouring development and existing
residential amenities “having regard to privacy, overlooking, outlook, noise and
disturbance, sense of enclosure/overbearing relationship, pollution, daylight and
sunlight.”

To the west of the application site are the rear gardens of dwellings in Glenhurst
Road and Oakhurst Road. The proposed terraced dwellings would be 17 metres
from the west boundary of the application site, leaving a gap of 40 metres between
the ground floor of the dwellings at the frontage of the site and the rear of dwellings
in Glenhurst Road and 23.4 metres between the detached dwelling and those
dwellings. A gap of 23 metres would exist between the side elevation of the
detached dwelling and the rear elevation of the Glenhurst Road dwellings and 46
metres between the front elevation of the detached dwelling and the closest
Oakhurst Road dwelling.

Due to the separation distances and the comparatively low height of the detached
dwelling, it is considered that the proposed development would not cause an
unacceptably harmful loss of light within the properties of Oakhurst Road and
Glenhurst Road or have a harmful impact on outlook or sense of enclosure.

It is noted that redevelopment to form residential properties has been approved at
the Crown Secretarial College site to the south of the application site and is
currently under construction (16/01503/FULM). In that case, there is a separation
distance of 35 metres between the proposed and existing residential properties. In
the case of the current proposal a 45 metre gap would exist between the rear
elevations of the upper floors of the proposed dwellings. It is considered that the
impact on the privacy of neighbouring residents would be acceptable.

The proposed detached dwelling would be positioned 6.5 metres from the boundary
shared with the Crown Secretarial College site. The approved plans for that
development show that the access to the development would run adjacent to the
shared boundary and the parking court would be provided under the building and at
the rear of the site in the area adjacent to the boundary. Due to this and the
orientation of the proposed detached dwelling at the rear of the site it is considered

62



4.29

4.30

4.31

4.32

4.33

4.34

that the proposed development would not cause material overlooking of residential
properties within that neighbouring site.

The submitted plans acknowledge the planning permission (14/00029/FUL) that
has been granted at 427 Sutton Road. It appears that the permission at that site
has now expired. The previously approved development would have featured no
windows in the south elevation except for two bathroom windows and should future
development proposals be submitted it is considered that the design and impact
could similarly be mitigated to address the site constraints. Due to the amended
position of the detached dwelling at the rear of the site it is considered that element
of the current proposal would have no significant prejudicial impact on the potential
future development of 427 Sutton Road.

In light of the above, is not considered that the proposed development would be
detrimental to the amenities of neighbouring occupiers and satisfies the policies
detailed above in this regard.

Standard of Accommodation:

National Planning Policy Framework (2007), Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007), Policies DM1, DM3 and DM8 of the Development Management
Document (2015), the Design and Townscape Guide (2009), National
Technical Housing Standards

Paragraph 17 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that “planning
should always seek to secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity
for all existing and future occupants of land and buildings”.

The National Technical Housing Standards require minimum property sizes for
residential units shall provide an internal floorspace of 79sgm for a 2 bedroom (4
persons) house over two floors and 99sgm for a 3 bedroom (5 person unit) over
three floors. The submitted plans illustrate the floorspaces would equate to
approximately 150sgm for the three bedroom (5 persons) units and 120sgm for the
two bedroom (four person) unit. Officers have calculated the floorspaces scaled
from drawing 026 B as 128sqgm for the 3 bedroom (5 person) units fronting Sutton
Road and 107sgm for the detached dwelling to the rear of the site both of which
exceed the standard.

Bedrooms are shown to be of a size that comply with the abovementioned
standards and cycle and refuse storage facilities are provided at the site. It is
considered that the proposed development will provide convenient, useable and
effective room layouts with satisfactory outlook and levels of natural light. The
applicant has confirmed the new development will meet part M4 (2) in accordance
with Building Regulations and this can be controlled by condition.

In paragraph 5 of the appeal decision, the previously refused application for 9
dwellings was not considered to have sufficient amenity space for the three
bedroom properties. The Inspector stated:

“The size of the terraced houses with three bedrooms suggests that they are likely

to be occupied by families. Usable outside amenity areas would be necessary to
meet the needs of those occupants. The outside amenity areas proposed would be

63



4.35

4.36

4.37

4.38

4.39

4.40

4.41

accessed and visible from the main living accommodation and mainly rectangular in
shape, but would be small. | consider that the size of the space proposed would
mean the space would not be usable, so would not adequately meet the needs of
family occupiers of these dwellings”.

The amended site layout now provides 42sqm to 60sqgm for the row of six terraced
properties to the south of the site, 40sgm to 50sgm for the pair of semi-detached
properties to the north and 45sgm for the detached property to the rear of the site.
This amount and layout of amenity space is considered sufficient and useable for
future occupiers of the dwellinghouses proposed.

Given the positioning of the access to the neighbouring development currently
under construction it would be in the interests of the future occupants of the
proposed development for an acoustic fence to be provided at the south boundary
of the application site. This can be secured through a condition.

It is found that the proposed development when considered in the round will provide
an acceptable standard of accommodation and is therefore policy compliant in
these regards.

Sustainable Construction

National Planning Policy Framework (2012); Core Strategy (2007) Policy KP2;
Policy DM2 of the Development Management Document (2015) and the
Design and Townscape Guide (2009)

Paragraph 97 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that Local
Authorities should promote energy from renewable sources. Policy KP2 of the Core
Strategy states that all new development proposals should demonstrate how they
will maximise the use of renewable and recycle energy, water and other resources.
Policy DM2 of the Development Management Document requires new development
to be energy and resource efficient.

No details of renewable energy have been submitted with the application; however
this can be controlled by condition.

Policy DM2 of the Development Management Document part (iv) requires water
efficient design measures that limit internal water consumption to 105 litres per
person per day (Ipd) (110 Ipd when including external water consumption).
Such measures will include the use of water efficient fittings, appliances and water
recycling systems such as grey water and rainwater harvesting. Whilst details have
not been submitted for consideration at this time, this can be dealt with by
condition.

Therefore, subject to appropriate conditions to ensure policy compliance the
renewables and water consumption implications are acceptable.

Other Issues

Landscaping

64



4.42

4.43

4.44

5.1

6.1

6.2

Applications for new buildings will be required to respect existing trees and planted
areas. Any trees to be retained would require protection during construction. The
removed street tree will be replaced on a two for one basis. These matters can be
controlled by condition together with the requirement for full details of the planting
for the rear of the site.

Permitted Development Rights

Given the limited size of the plots created, any alterations/extension of the
dwellings otherwise allowed by the General Permitted Development Order may
result in unacceptable living conditions for future occupiers (i.e. should the rear
amenity space be significantly reduced by a rear extension) or impact on the
neighbouring properties (i.e. increased overlooking from additional dormer
windows). For this reason it is considered reasonable that permitted development
rights for the proposed dwellinghouses be removed. A condition securing this is
attached.

Community Infrastructure Levy

This application is CIL liable and there will be a CIL charge payable. In accordance
with Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended by
Section 143 of the Localism Act 2011) and Section 155 of the Housing and
Planning Act 2016, CIL is being reported as a material ‘local finance consideration’
for the purpose of planning decisions. The application site is located within Zone 1
therefore a CIL rate of £24.08 per sgm is required for the proposed development.
The proposed development equates to 1270sgm of residential floorspace which
may equate to a CIL charge of approximately £30,577.69 (subject to confirmation).
Any existing floor area that is being retained/demolished that satisfies the “in-use
building ” test, as set out in CIL Regulation 40, may be deducted from the
chargeable area thus resulting in a reduction in the chargeable amount.

Conclusion

Having taken all material planning considerations into account, it is found that
subject to compliance with the proposed conditions the development would be
acceptable and compliant with development plan policies and guidance. The
proposed development by reason of its design and scale, would make a positive
contribution to the streetscene maintaining the character and appearance of the
locality while providing adequate amenities for future occupiers, respecting the
amenities of neighbouring properties and not resulting in any unacceptable parking
or highways impacts. The application is considered on balance to have overcome
the reasons for refusing the previous application and is therefore recommended for
approval.

Planning Policy Summary

National Planning Policy Framework (2012)

Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP1 (Spatial Strategy), KP2 (Development
Principles), CP1 (Employment Generating Development), CP3 (Transport and

Accessibility), CP4 (Environment & Urban Renaissance) and CP8 (Dwelling
Provision)

65



6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

7.1

7.2

7.3

Development Management Document (2015) Policies DM1 (Design Quality), DM2
(Low carbon development and efficient use of resources), DM3 (The Efficient and
effective use of land), DM7 (Dwelling Mix), DM8 (Residential Standards), DM11
(Employment Promotion), DM15 (Sustainable Transport Management)

Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule

Design & Townscape Guide (2009).

National Technical Housing Standards 2015

Southend Central Area Action Plan (SCAAP) (2018)

Representation Summary

Design and Regeneration Team

No objections.

Highway Authority

Consideration has been given to the previous use and the transport movements
associated with B1 use. The proposal will represent a reduction in vehicle
movements within the local area. 100% parking has been provided for the 9
dwellings with 9 secure cycle spaces. The rear parking area provides sufficient
spaces to enable vehicles to manoeuvre and exit in a forward gear. One tree will be
removed and replaced with 2 trees. The position of the proposed access does not
interfere with any existing street furniture and is considered acceptable.

Therefore no highway objections are raised.

Aboricultural Officer

There are two Highway trees to the front of the existing property, but only one
showing on the proposal plan, Drawing no. 020 rev. E.

Further details are required for the removal of the Council’s tree to achieve this
proposal, to mitigate the loss of the tree and how the applicant proposes to protect
the remaining tree from any effects of the development. This information should
include the presence of any service runs through the Root Protection Area of the
tree. [Officer Comment: This can be controlled by condition and the applicant
has agreed to replace the loss of the tree on a two for one basis]

Any existing trees and whether the trees can be retained during the construction of
the development including new tree planting shall be submitted to the Council
[Officer Comment: A tree survey and tree protection measures would be
controlled by condition].

Environmental and Greenspace Officer

66



7.4

7.5

1. The tree to be retained currently present on the B1015 road outside the
footprint of the development needs to be protected during the construction
phase.

2. The proposals will result in the loss of a tree along the main road, to the front
of the property. A commuted sum of £1,000 per tree (£2,000 for 2
replacement trees) to replace the lost tree on a 2-for-1 basis at a location to
be determined by our Arboricultural team.

[Officer Comment: The applicant has confirmed agreement to replace the
semi-mature existing tree on a two for one basis and this could be controlled
by condition]

Public Consultation

38 neighbouring properties were notified of the application and a notice was posted
at the site on the 8" February 2018. Nine letters of representation have been
received (6 support and 3 objections) commenting as follows:

Comments made in support:

Houses in keeping with the surroundings

Suitable parking provision

New proposal takes into account Councils previous concerns
Housing developments more favoured than more flats
Family housing welcomed

Summary of objections;

e Overdevelopment in area with lack of investment into infrastructure

Lack of parking, one space per household not sufficient and burden on
surrounding roads

Lack of useable amenity space

Vehicle access would affect users of the highway and traffic island

Parking restrictions in the area

Building too high

Loss of light

Loss of privacy

Overlooking

Bats roosting in existing building

The numbers of flats already within Sutton Road and in the surrounding area
including Kenway, along Victoria Avenue, Station Road, Carnarvon Road
Driving around Southend is a nightmare particularly during peak times and
the Council should oppose this application until the roads can cope.

These concerns are noted and they have been taken into account in the
assessment of the application. However, they are not found to represent a
reasonable basis to refuse planning permission in the circumstances of this case.

This application is for single family dwellings rather than flats, sufficient parking is

provided in accordance with planning policy and no objections have been raised by
the Councils Highways Officer.

67



7.6

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

9.1

01

02

03

Councillor Borton has requested this application be dealt with by Development
Control Committee.

Relevant Planning History

Demolish existing buildings and erect nine dwellings comprising of, eight terraced
houses, one detached house, layout 12 parking spaces, cycle store to rear, layout
bin stores to front and install vehicular access on to Sutton Road (Amended
Proposal)- Refused (17/00163/FUL). Appeal dismissed (reference: 3178645).

Demolish existing buildings and erect nine dwellings comprising of, seven terraced
houses, one detached house and one maisonette, layout 12 parking spaces and
cycle store to rear and layout bin stores to front- Refused (16/01308/FUL)

Convert first floor of warehouse (Class B8) into one self-contained flat (Class C3)-
Granted (00/00545/FUL)

Demolish part of building lay out additional parking and use warehouse as cash and
carry wholesale warehouse (Class B8) (Relaxation of condition 01 on planning
permission 83/0524 dated 21st June 1987 prohibiting cash and carry sales)-
Granted (94/0378)

Demolish part of building lay out additional parking and use warehouse as cash and
carry wholesale warehouse (Class B8) (Relaxation of condition 01 on planning
permission 83/0524 dated 21st June 1987 prohibiting cash and carry sales)-
Granted (94/0066)

Members are recommended to GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to
the following conditions:

The development hereby permitted shall be begun not later than 3 years
beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans:
Location Plan; Site Location Plan; 020 Revision E; 021; 022 Revision E; 023
Revision F; 024 Revision D; 025 Revision B; 026 Revision B.

Reason: To ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the
development plan.

Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise
hereby approved the development hereby permitted shall not commence
other than for groundworks and site preparation works unless and until
details and appropriately sized samples of the materials to be used for all the
external surfaces of the proposed buildings at the site including facing
materials, roof detail, windows, doors, balustrading, fascia, soffits, pergola
canopy detail and forecourt area have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. The works must then be carried out in
accordance with the approved materials and drawings before any of the

68



04

05

06

dwellings hereby approved are first occupied.

Reason: To safeguard character and appearance of the area and amenities of
neighbouring occupiers in accordance with Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007), Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015) and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009). Given the
nature of the development propose, the details sought and the objectives of
the condition it is fundamental that information required is provided prior to
the commencement of any development.

No site clearance, preparatory work or development of any kind shall take
place until a scheme for the protection of the trees adjacent to the site in
Sutton Road and an Arboricultural method statement for the protection of the
trees in accordance with British Standard BS5837 - Trees in Relation to
Construction - Recommendations has been submitted to and agreed in
writing by the local planning authority.

The approved protection measures shall be fully installed before the
commencement of works and maintained during construction. The
development shall be implemented in full accordance with the approved
statement, measures and methods.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory
standard of tree protection, pursuant to Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2
and CP4, Development Management Document (2015) Policies DM1, DM3 and
the advice contained in the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

No development shall commence unless and until measures to secure the
provision of two appropriate (in terms of size, species and location) new
street trees have been submitted to the local planning authority and
approved in writing. The dwellings hereby approved shall not be occupied
until the two new street trees have been provided in accordance with the
measures approved under this condition.

Reason: A pre commencement condition is need in the interests of visual
amenity and the amenities of occupiers and to ensure a satisfactory
standard of landscaping pursuant to Policies DM1 and DM3 of the
Development Management Document (2015) and Policies KP2 and CP4 of
the Core Strategy (2007).

Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted no development
shall take place other than demolition ground and site preparation works
until there has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority a scheme of hard and soft landscaping. This shall include details
of the number, size and location of the trees and shrubs to be planted
together with a planting specification, the staking of trees and removal of the
stakes once the trees are established; details of measures to enhance
biodiversity within the site; details of the treatment of all hard and soft
surfaces (including any earthworks to be carried out) and all means of
enclosing and subdividing the site.

69



07

08

09

10

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the amenities of occupiers and
to ensure a satisfactory standard of landscaping pursuant to Policies KP2
and CP4 of the Core Strategy, Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development
Management Document (2015) and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

All planting in the approved landscaping scheme shall be carried out within
the first available planting season following first occupation of the
development. Any trees or shrubs dying, removed, being severely damaged
or becoming seriously diseased within five years of planting shall be
replaced with trees or shrubs of such size and species as may be agreed
with the Local Planning Authority. Hard landscaping and means of enclosure
shall be implemented in full accordance with the approved scheme prior to
occupation of any of the new dwellings.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory
standard of landscaping, pursuant to Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015).

The development shall not be occupied until 9 on site car parking spaces
have been provided in full accordance with drawing 022 E, together with
properly constructed vehicular access to the adjoining highway, all in
accordance with the approved plans. The parking spaces shall be
permanently retained thereafter solely for the parking of occupiers of and
visitors to the development.

Reason: To ensure that adequate car parking is provided and retained to
serve the development in accordance with Policy DM15 of the Council’s
Development Management Document (2015) and Policy CP3 of the Core
Strategy (2007).

Prior to the first occupation of any of the dwellinghouses hereby approved,
cycle and refuse and general storage shall be provided and made available
for use in accordance with the details shown on plan 022 E and shall be
retained as such in perpetuity.

Reason: To ensure the provision of adequate cycle parking and refuse
storage in accordance with policies DM3, DM8 and DM15 of Development
Management Document (2015).

A scheme detailing how at least 10% of the total energy needs of the
development will be supplied using on site renewable sources shall be
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and
implemented in full prior to the first occupation of any part of the
development. This provision shall be maintained for the lifetime of the
development and in accordance with the agreed details.

Reason: In the interests of providing sustainable development in accordance

with Policy KP2 of the Core Strategy (2007) and the Design and Townscape
Guide (2009).

70



11

12

13

14

15

Prior to first occupation of any of the development hereby approved details
of the water efficient design measures set out in Policy DM2 (iv) of the
Development Management Document to limit internal water consumption to
105 litres per person per day (lpd) (110 Ipd when including external
water consumption), including measures of water efficient fittings,
appliances and water recycling systems such as grey water and rainwater
harvesting shall be submitted to the local planning authority, approved in
writing and installed in accordance with the approved details. The approved
measures shall be retained as such in perpetuity.

Reason: To minimise the environmental impact of the development through
efficient use of water in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework, Core Strategy (2007) Policy KP2, Development Management
Document (2015) Policy DM2 and the Councils Design and Townscape Guide
(2009).

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (Amendment) Order 2015, or any order revoking or
re-enacting that Order with or without modification, no development shall be
carried out on the new dwellinghouses hereby approved within Schedule 2,
Part 1, Classes A, B, D or E to those Orders.

Reason: To safeguard the design and appearance of the proposed
development in the interest of visual amenities of the locality in accordance
with the National Planning Policy Framework (2012), Core Strategy (2007)
Policies KP2 and CP4, Development Management Document (2015) Policies
DM1 and DM3 and Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

The development hereby approved shall be carried out in a manner to ensure
compliance with Building Regulation part M4 (2) ‘accessible and adaptable
dwellings’, before it is brought in to use or occupied.

Reason: To ensure the residential units hereby approved provide high quality
and flexible internal layouts to meet the changing needs of residents in
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Core Strategy
(2007) Policy KP2, Development Management Document (2015) Policy DM2
and Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

Demolition or construction works associated with this permission shall not
take place outside 08:00 hours to 18:00 hours Mondays to Fridays and
08:00hours to 13:00hours on Saturdays and at no time on Sundays or Bank
Holidays.

Reason: In order to protect the amenities of surrounding occupiers and to
protect the character the area in accordance with Policies KP2 and CP4 of
the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development
Management Document (2015).

The rear flat roof projections of the dwellings hereby approved shall not be
used as a balcony, roof garden or similar amenity area or for any other
similar purpose. The roof can however be used for the purposes of
maintenance or to escape in an emergency.

71



16

17

Reason: To protect the privacy and environment of people in neighbouring
residential properties, in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework, Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Southend-on-Sea Core Strategy
(2007), Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Southend-on-Sea Development
Management Document (2015) and the advice contained within the Southend-
on-Sea Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

Prior to occupation of any part of the development, details of an acoustic
fence, to be erected along the southern boundary of the site, shall be
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall be carried only in accordance with the agreed details prior
to occupation of the dwellings and shall be permanently maintained as such
thereafter.

Reason: To protect the environment of future occupiers, in accordance with
the National Planning Policy Framework (2012), Policies KP2 and CP4 of the
Core Strategy (2007), Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015) and the advice contained within the Southend-on-Sea
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

Other than the demolition, grubbing up of foundations and site clearance, no
development shall take place until a site investigation of the nature and
extent of any land contamination present has been carried out in accordance
with a methodology which has previously been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority.

The results of the site investigation shall be made available to the local
planning authority before any construction begins. If any contamination is
found during the site investigation, a report specifying the measures to be
taken to remediate the site to render it suitable for the development hereby
permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority before any construction begins. The site shall be remediated in
accordance with the approved remediation measures before the development
hereby approved is occupied and evidence to demonstrate that the
remediation has taken place shall be submitted in writing to the Local
Planning Authority before the development is occupied.

If, during the course of development, any contamination is found which has
not been identified in the site investigation, development shall stop and
additional measures for the remediation of this source of contamination shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
remediation of the site shall incorporate the approved additional measures
and these shall be fully implemented before the site is occupied.

Reason: To ensure that any contamination on the site is identified and
treated so that it does not harm anyone who uses the site in the future, and
to ensure that the development does not cause pollution to Controlled
Waters in accordance with Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4 and
Policies DM1 and DM14 of the Development Management Document (2015).

72



01

02

Informative

Please note that the development the subject of this application is liable for a
charge under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as
amended). Enclosed with this decision notice is a Community Infrastructure
Levy (CIL) Liability Notice for the attention of the applicant and any person
who has an interest in the land. This contains details including the
chargeable amount, when this is payable and when and how exemption or
relief on the charge can be sought.

You are advised that a CIL Commencement Notice (CIL Form 6) must be
received by the Council at least one day before commencement of
development. Receipt of this notice will be acknowledged by the Council.
Please ensure that you have received both a CIL Liability notice and
acknowledgement of your CIL Commencement Notice before development is
commenced. Most claims for CIL relief or exemption must be sought from
and approved by the Council prior to commencement of the development.

Charges and surcharges may apply, and exemption or relief could be
withdrawn if you fail to meet statutory requirements relating to CIL. Further
details on CIL matters can be found on the Council's website at
www.southend

You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during construction
works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may seek
to recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out when
implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land.
Please take care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and
footpaths in the borough.

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in
determining this application by identifying matters of concern within the
application (as originally submitted) and negotiating, with the Applicant,
acceptable amendments to the proposal to address those concerns. As a
result, the Local Planning Authority has been able to grant planning
permission for an acceptable proposal, in accordance with the presumption
in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National Planning
Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set out in a report on the
application prepared by officers.

73


http://www.southend/

This page is intentionally left blank



' The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision

Site visit made on 7 November 2017

by AJ Steen BA (Hons) DipTP MRTPI

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 16 November 2017

Appeal Ref: APP/D1590/W/17/3178645
423-425 Sutton Road, Southend-on-Sea SS2 5PQ

e The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Trafalgar Traditional Homes against the decision of
Southend-on-Sea Borough Council.

e The application Ref 17/00163/FUL, dated 1 February 2017, was refused by notice dated
29 March 2017.

e The development proposed is demolish existing properties at 423-425 Sutton Road and
construct 8 no. 3 bedroom terrace houses, 1 no. 2 bedroom detached house. Proposal
to include 12 no. car parking spaces, bicycle storage and private external amenity space
to each unit.

Decision
1. The appeal is dismissed.
Preliminary Matter

2. Amended plans were submitted with the appeal that would make substantial
alterations to the scheme, including an alternative location for the proposed
access resulting in changes to the siting of dwellings and parking, landscaping,
design and appearance. Given the limited consultation on those drawings, I
consider that other parties would be prejudiced should I take them into
account. Advice contained within the Procedural Guide - Planning Appeals -
England at M.2.1 states that the appeal process should not be used to evolve a
scheme and it is important that what is considered is essentially what was
considered by the local planning authority. As the proposed amendments to the
scheme are substantial, I have not taken the amended plans into account in
coming to my decision.

Main Issues
3. The main issues are:

e whether prospective occupiers would enjoy satisfactory living conditions,
having particular regard to the suitability of the external spaces;

e the effect of the proposed development on highway safety with regard to
the location of the access; and

e the effect of the access to the proposed development on trees.

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 75


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/D1590/W/17/3178645

Reasons

Living conditions

4,

The proposed development comprises eight dwellings in two terraces, along
with a detached dwelling to the rear. The terraced houses would front the
highway with an access formed between the two terraces and parking to the
rear. The location of this parking limits the amount of space to provide outside
amenity areas for the dwellings.

The size of the terraced houses with three bedrooms suggests that they are
likely to be occupied by families. Usable outside amenity areas would be
necessary to meet the needs of those occupants. The outside amenity areas
proposed would be accessed and visible from the main living accommodation
and mainly rectangular in shape, but would be small. I consider that the size of
the space proposed would mean the space would not be usable, so would not
adequately meet the needs of family occupiers of these dwellings.

The two bedroom detached dwelling would be set on a slightly larger plot, with
a larger outside amenity area. Given this dwelling is smaller, it is likely to have
less occupants and the size of outside amenity area need not be as large as for
the terraced dwellings. As a result, the space provided for this dwelling would
be satisfactory.

I note that there is no standard for the size of outside amenity space set by
Southend-on-Sea Borough Council. Reference has been made to other
dwellings with small gardens in the area, although I have limited information
on the circumstances of those cases. As a result, I need to consider this case
on its individual merits.

For these reasons, I conclude that prospective occupiers would not enjoy
satisfactory living conditions, having particular regard to the suitability of the
external spaces. As such, the proposal would be contrary to Policies DM1, DM3
and DM8 of the Southend-on-Sea Development Management Document (DMD)
and the National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) that seek good
quality and well designed development that provides adequate living conditions
for future residents, including making provision for usable private outdoor
amenity space.

Highway safety

9.

10.

11.

Access is proposed to be taken between the two proposed terraces of houses,
which is located in close proximity to the traffic island that provides a
pedestrian refuge in the middle of the highway. The existing access is located
to the side of the site on the other side of the traffic island.

The location of the proposed access in such close proximity to that traffic island
would result in a complicated manoeuvre out of the site to head south on
Sutton Road. This would affect the safety of users of the highway, including
pedestrians using the traffic island.

For these reasons, I conclude that proximity of the proposed access to the
traffic island in the middle of the road would result in harm to highway safety.
As such, the proposed development would be contrary to Policies KP2 and CP3
of the Southend-on-Sea Core Strategy (CS), Policies DM1, DM3 and DM15 of

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 762


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/D1590/W/17/3178645

the DMD and the Framework that seek to ensure access to development would
not harm highway safety, taking account of all users of the highway.

Trees

12. There are two trees within the pavement on Sutton Road outside the site.

13.

There are limited numbers of trees visible in the street scene, such that they
make a significant contribution to the character and appearance of the area.
The proposed access would be located close to the larger of these trees and
this proximity could result in its loss or significant damage, such that it would
harm the tree.

For this reason, I conclude that the proposed development would harm the
street tree, resulting in an adverse effect on the character and appearance of
the area. As such, the proposed development would be contrary to Policies KP2
and CP4 of the CS, DM1 and DM3 of the DMD and the Framework that seek a
high quality urban environment, including protecting the character of the
context of the site and resisting the loss of significant trees.

Other matters

14.

The appearance of the proposed development would reflect other contemporary
forms of development in the surrounding area, such that, other than in relation
to the impact on the tree, it would not harm the character or appearance of the
area. Some neighbouring occupiers support development of this site with
houses and the proposed dwellings would not adversely affect the living
conditions of occupiers of surrounding dwellings. However, none of these
matters would outweigh my conclusions on the main issues.

Conclusion

15.

For the reasons set out above, I conclude that the proposed development
would not accord with the development plan. Thus, having had regard to all
other matters raised, the appeal should be dismissed.

AJ Steen
INSPECTOR

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 77 3


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

This page is intentionally left blank



6.



This page is intentionally left blank



T8



This page is intentionally left blank



€8



This page is intentionally left blank



0 0c0 ¢c8

uoisiney ‘ou Buimeaq Jaquinu qop
al.Inp apdpi 005/002/02):1
aleq umelq aeos
Buiuue|d

snejs

sue|d 81S 8 SO
Juswdojanapal ays pesodold

uonduosaq

PeoY UORNS G-Ccv

j08l0id

SOWOH [euonipel| Jebjejel|

uslo

Wwoo XuyelByBiuy mmm m
wooxuesBiybiuy@ew @

¢6¥081 ¢0.10 3
219G12¢2¢02101

eas uo ybig|
Aempeolq g6
olpnjs Jaddn

sj09liyode xujeldb jybiuy

41'IIIII
|
|

’
|

)
4

A

L1'10°G¢ Sjuswipuswe Joulfy fe}
aL'LL'ce awsyos pspuswy q
pappe uonewJ.oul
91°,0° L1 Buiuueld % syuswpuswy \
ajed uoIsinay

00¢-1 Ueld %90Ig

108 o
430 <

426 416 402 | <

<L
X
X
X
X

&
e

dvOd NOLLNS 7%%

00Z:L ue|d 3noAe] pasodoad

1Nd4/62000/71L "ON

NOILVOITlddV aanoidddv T R Y Y STy - RS
far.Ww e i T e e

e & TR o 4 et fricet M8, o P AT Ve e
3 &W%%%v o % V..,, :MEW%LMW il 5 2 W%% ), i it “.,‘W%W%.m:%r.ﬁ/ BT ¥ %M%,

oyl - SR T P , R i w m§&§ i i ﬁw%g

skl URIAES | e | RyASL| RSy, - I I RIS i o e

3 il el gl 1111155 I
| | | |

S g PO, R e N

wbsOG | wbs@g | xdde

0G| xdde H w G| xdde | M | wbspg| xadew W  wbspc| xdde | N _| wbspg| xadem  HIN—"=7l 00@20N = wbsgc| xdde | M

paag ] paqg paqg paqg paag

o T e e S T e
. = = . =

] - ] ] - ] ] ] - 1]

1 L) [ L] [ L] L] L [
TITTTTTIITTITIIITITTITTI] T
N

,

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

T TT T TTITIITITITIIITTIIIIITTINTITT T [TTTTT TITTIITTITTTIITTINITITIITITITTT 8 Y 0 O 1T

8 | T JIITTTT TITTIITTIITTITTT TTITIITTITTI 8 5 0 1 O O [11T
TTLLILT [ILIITTIIITTT TITTLT T TLITITTIITIITITTITTTITITTILT TILT TIILT 8 Y 0 O I

EUd g BU =IRIZ WEN

wbsc, uspies

i i
1
I
|
|
|
I
|
|
|
I
|
I
|
I
|
|

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
i
|
|
ubsgg uapies ubsgg uopies I
|
I | T T T T
| | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| |
|
|
|

‘Bunum ul jleacsdde uoud jnoyym ajis uo
pajyuswidwi se sbuimelp ayy 0} sabueyo
Aue Jo} g|qisuodsad Jou SI Joyiny ay |

'sasodind sojes 1o Ansibay
pueT Joj pasn aq 0} Jou si Buimelp sy

"SJ0JOBJUO0D-NS

3 JOJOBIUO0D )si|eloadg Jueas|al

ay) Agq uonewUO? 0} 193lgns ale pue

AJUO BAllEOIPUI B1B UMOYS S9ZIS pUE S|ie}aq

‘Aj@leipawiwi payodal aq
0} Aouedalosip Aue ‘a)is uo suoisuawip |e
309Y9 0} Ajljigisuodsal s,10}0B1UOD BY} S| )|

‘'suone|nbay Buiping ayy yym aoueldwod
ainsus 0} AJljiqisuodsal s,J0}0BIU0D Y} SI )

‘sjue)nsuo) pajuioddy

pue 109)1y2Jy 8y} Ag panss! uoneuawWNIop
pue sbuimelp pajejal joaloid Jayjo [|e yim
uonoun(uod ul peals aq jsnuw Buimelp ay |

*Ajuo suoisuswip
painBiy asn ‘BuimeIp SIY) WOJ) 8|ES J0U 0

"Joyne ay} Jo uoissiuad usLm oYUM
asodind Jayjo Aue Joj pasn Jou paonpoidal
aq Jou |leys pue JybuAdoo si Buimesp syl

]

X
402
aS p—
> C O
£0T
@ D)
=<2
x tCm
)
mm
| Sub Sta | — -
. X X
- E
R
S I R R a1y —
X X X X | T X
2 12
001 08 09 o 0z 0

85



This page is intentionally left blank



) c0 ¢c8

9l Inr apd 00L:)

Buluueld 0o0L-1L
uolijeAa|] aedy] pasodouad

1N4/62000/71 "ON
NOILYOITddVY A3N0OdddV

suoneAs|3 pasodold
Juswdojonspal a)Is pasodold

Peoy UONNS G-624 \ T i T = [

ay NOLLNS 2%

SOWOH [euonipe. | Jebjejel |

Wwoo XuyelByBiuy mmm m
wooxuesBiybiuy@ew @

LN

¢6¥081 ¢0.10 3
216612202101

qel gss
X9SS9

eas uo ybig|
Aempeoiq g6
olpnys Jaddn WL

sj09liyode xujeldb jybiuy

[1ITN{]

ol 8 9 14 4 0
B — e E— e

ooL:L
uoljeAa|] juou4 pasodouad

1N4/62000/71 "ON
NOILVOITddV A3A0HddVY

87

1

nl
il

AT

11

|

[ANNENNNARRRRRRNNNNNEN)

il

=

R RRd0RSRR
]
|
]
]
Mg
I

—

il

—

ay NQLLNS ZZiN

T
|
]
[

T'\T‘w'\'HHHHHHHH

]
|
]
T

MHHHHHHHHH

M
I W

| L“"” —3
MHHH\HHHHH

LT AT

AT

L1'10'9¢ Sjuswpuswe Jouljy o)

1A 4 aWBYIS papuswy q
pappe uoleuwojul

910} L Buiuueld @ sjuswpuswy v

‘Bunum ul jleacsdde uoud jnoyym ajis uo
pajyuswidwi se sbuimelp ayy 0} sabueyo
Aue Jo} s|qisuodsad Jou SI Joyiny ay |

'sasodind sojes 1o Ansibay
pueT Joj pasn aq 0} Jou si Buimelp sy

"SJ0JOBJUO0D-NS

3 JOJOBIUO0D )si|eloadg Jueas|al

ay) Agq uonewUO? 0} 193lgns ale pue

AJuo @AjEDIPUI BJB UMOYS SBZIS pue s|iela(

‘Aj@leipawiwi payodal aq
0} Aouedalosip Aue ‘a)is uo suoisuawip |e
3o8y2 0} Ajljigisuodsal s,10}0BIUOD BY) S| )|

‘'suone|nbay Buiping ayy yym aoueldwod
ainsus 0} AJljiqisuodsal s,J0}0BIU0D Y} SI )

‘sjue}nsuon pajuloddy

pue 109)1y2Jy 8y} Ag panss! uoneuawWNIop
pue sbuimelp pajejal joaloid Jayjo [|e yim
uonoun(uod ul peals aq jsnuw Buimelp ay |

*Ajuo suoisuswip
painBiy asn ‘BuimeIp SIY) WOJ) 8|ES J0U 0

"Joyne ay} Jo uoissiuad usLm oYUM
asodind Jayjo Aue Joj pasn Jou paonpoidal
aq Jou |leys pue JybuAdoo si Buimesp syl




This page is intentionally left blank



68



This page is intentionally left blank



T6



This page is intentionally left blank



€6



This page is intentionally left blank



G6



This page is intentionally left blank



Reference: 17/02280/FUL
Ward: Leigh
Change of use from scout hall/gym (class D2) to restaurant
Proposal: (class A3), install extract flue to rear, refuse area to west side
and alter front elevation
Address: Scout Hall 52 High Street, Leigh-on-Sea, Essex SS9 2EP
Applicant: Paul Alston
Agent: WJS-Survey & Design

Consultation Expiry:

19th March 2018

Expiry Date:

9t April 2018

Case Officer:

Abbie Greenwood

Plan Nos:

17-Clarendon-01B, 17-Clarendon-02A, 17-Clarendon-03B,
17-Clarendon — 04A

Recommendation:

GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION

Development Control Report

Page 18716




1 The Proposal

1.1 Planning permission is sought to change the use of the existing building from a
Scout / community hall (class D2) to a restaurant (class A3). The proposal includes
a number of external alterations to the building which can be summarised as:

e Installation of a new balustrade to the terrace area to replicate original
design

e Install traditional timber famed windows to the blank dormers to replicate

original design

Replace existing felt roof with natural slate

Installation of new timber doors to match existing

Install extract duct and flue to rear elevation

Install external staircase from side terrace to proposed refuse area

1.2  The application form confirms that the proposal would support 4 full time and 6 part
time jobs. The drawings show the number of covers to be 48. The proposed
opening hours are 9am to 12 midnight Monday to Sunday including bank holidays
from May to September and 12 noon to 12 midnight Monday to Sunday from
October to April. The supporting documents submitted with this application include
a Design and Access Statement including a flood risk assessment and information
to support the proposed change of use.

2 Site and Surroundings

2.1 The existing building dates from the early twentieth century and was originally built
as the Fisherman’s Chapel but is now owned by Southend West Scouts. It is
understood that the building has not been used by the scouts from some time
although it was, until recently, used by a local keep fit class. The building is
currently vacant.

2.2 The building is sited on a raised concrete plinth which affords it additional presence
in the streetscene. It is a simple gabled form, clad with feather edged weather
boarding which was originally stained black, but this has since worn off to give a
more natural wood finish. The building has tall, delicate, sash windows to the front
which originally extended into the roof. The original sashes in the lower section of
the windows still remain. The top sections, which still extend into the roof have
been over clad with weatherboarding. The roof is modern felt which is considered
to have a negative impact on the historic character of the building, particularly
when viewed from Leigh Conservation Area to the north where it is very prominent.
The original wrought iron railings to the raised terrace have also been lost.
Nevertheless the building is still very distinctive and makes a positive contribution
to the character of the conservation area. There is, however, potential for
enhancement through the reinstatement of the lost features and materials.

2.3 The site is located at the western end of Leigh Old Town Conservation Area
adjacent to the Crooked Billet Public House. The pub is grade Il listed and one of
the oldest buildings in the conservation area. The Billet marks the entrance to the
Old Town from the west. The rest of the conservation area to the east contains
some traditional and modern housing of modest scale, three other pubs and a few
retail outlets.

Development Control Report Page 2 of 16
98



24

3.1

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

In addition to the heritage designations, the OIld Town is located within
Development Management Document Policy DM6 Seafront Character Zone 2 and
Floodzone 2. The mudflats to the south are covered by local, national and
international nature designations.

Planning Considerations

The main considerations in relation to this application are the principle of
development, design and impact on the character and significance of the historic
building and the wider Leigh Old Town Conservation Area, any highways
implications and any impact on residential amenity. The contribution that the
proposal makes to the enhancement of tourism facilities on the seafront is also a
consideration.

Appraisal
Principle of Development

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2012); Core Strategy (2007)
policies KP1, KP2, CP2, CP3, CP4, CP6 and CP7, Development Management
Document (2015) Policies DM1, DM3, DM5, DM6 and DM15 and the Southend
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

The main issue of principle in relation to this application is the proposed change of
use from a community facility to a restaurant. The loss of the community facility
needs to be weighed against the benefits of the proposal in relation to the provision
of additional tourist and leisure facilities and any benefits for the conservation area.

The overriding aim of the NPPF is to promote sustainable development and in
relation to this issue it states that: ‘to achieve sustainable development, economic,
social and environmental gains should be sought jointly and simultaneously
through the planning system.

In relation to the loss of community facilities policy CP6 of the Core Strategy states
that ‘New development should demonstrate that it will not jeopardise the Borough’s
ability to improve the education attainment, health and wellbeing of local residents
and visitors to Southend. This will be achieved by ...safequarding existing and
providing for new leisure, cultural, recreation and community facilities’

In relation to development affecting recreational facilities Policy CP7 states:

‘All existing and proposed sport, recreation and green space facilities (including the
Southend foreshore and small areas of important local amenity, community
resource or biodiversity value) will be safequarded from loss or displacement to
other uses, except where it can clearly be demonstrated that alternative facilities of
a higher standard are being provided in at least an equally convenient and
accessible location to serve the same local community, and there would be no loss
of amenity or environmental quality to that community.

Furthermore, the Core Strategy commentary relating to policy CP7 comments that:

Development Control Report Page 3 of 16

99



‘Existing facilities should not be built on unless they have clearly been shown to be
surplus to requirements. Facilities of high quality or particular value should be given
protection.’

4.6 Policy DM6 of the Development Management Document relates to development on
the seafront. In relation to development on the seafront it states that:

‘3. Existing buildings along the Seafront that form a cohesive frontage, have a
historic context or are recognised as key landmarks and/or contribute to a
distinctive Southend sense of place will be retained and protected from
development that would adversely affect their character, appearance, setting and
the importance of the Seafront.

‘6. The provision of new and improved facilities for water recreation and other
leisure and tourism facilities will generally be supported in appropriate locations
along the Seafront’ and

6. All development within the Seafront Area must accord with the development
principles set out in Policy Table 1.’

4.7 Policy Table 1 sets out the key principles for development in each of the seafront
character zones. The development principles for Leigh Port and Old Town
(Character Zone 2) include:

‘(i) To maintain a thriving fisheries and working port by resisting the loss of existing
marine industrial activities.

(i) To enhance the leisure and tourism offer, but in a manner that does not
compromise the marine industrial activities and character of Leigh Old Town.

(i) To preserve and enhance the special character of Leigh Old Town
Conservation Area.

(iv) Measures that maintain an appropriate balance between the working port and
leisure and tourism activities, when considered in conjunction with points 2(i), 2(ii)
and 2(iii) will be supported.’

4.8 The building is currently owned by Southend West Scouts, however, they have
confirmed in writing to the applicant, which has been shared with the Council that
the building is surplus to their requirements and is no longer used by the scouts.
Their letter states that:

‘the previous Scout usage [of the building] has displaced elsewhere in the District
and the building was being used only on an ad hoc basis by various external users
who paid very little towards the overall running expenses of the building. As an
Executive Committee with Trustee responsibility for ensuring that the assets of the
District (including available funds) are used to benefit our membership, we
concluded that the essential subsidising of external organisations did not fit within
that legal requirement. Following lengthy discussions and consultation with our
membership (via the District Scout Council), we have established that the leasing
of the premises will provide a steady and constant income which can be used for
the direct benefit of the young people. At the same time, we would retain the
freehold of the building and thus the opportunity for future income from an
appreciating asset.’

Development Control Report Page 4 of 16
100



4.9

4.10

4.1

4.12

413

4.14

4.15

4.16

Indeed their website confirms that this Scout Group operates from 11 other venues,
mainly church halls, in the Leigh area.

The building has more recently been used by Rebel Fitness which operates 14
fithness classes a week. The Scouts letting agent has also confirmed to the
applicant that the Rebel Fitness classes have relocated to the Coal Hole, 35-36
High Street, Leigh opposite the site, which is the other premises owned by
Southend West Scouts in this area. The agent has also confirmed that the climbing
wall within the existing building has also been replaced within an alternative scout
venue nearby.

It is evident that the existing building is under used. It is also in need of renovation.
As part of the conversion it is proposed to reinstate of a number of historic features
which have been lost including the roof materials, dormer windows and railings.
This would be of significant benefit to the conservation area and the details of
these reinstatement works and other alterations are discussed in more detail
below. It is also noted that these works will also help secure the future of the
building.

The site is located in floodzone 2, however, no extensions are proposed and the
building is situated above ground level on a substantial raised plinth. The proposed
commercial use is classed as a less vulnerable use and as such the restaurant use
is considered acceptable in flood risk terms in this location.

On balance it is considered that, in this instance, given the uncertain future of the
building and its current state of repair, the opportunity to secure significant
enhancements for the historic building and for the wider Leigh Old Town
Conservation Area, the fact that the building is currently underused and that the
previous users have relocated in the vicinity, the enhanced tourist offer for the Old
Town and the fact that that the increased rent from the building will support the
continued operation of the Scouts and their facilities in the local area, the change of
use away from the existing community facility can be justified as compliant with the
objectives of development plan policies.

The principle of the proposed change of use is therefore acceptable subject to
other material considerations which are discussed below.

Design and impact on the character of the Historic Building and wider Leigh
Old Town Conservation Area

National Planning Policy Framework (2012); Core Strategy (2007) policies
KP1, KP2, and CP4, Development Management Document (2015) Policies
DM1, DM3, DM5, DM6 and DM15 and the Southend Design and Townscape
Guide (2009).

Section 69 of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

defines conservation areas as ‘areas of special architectural or historic interest, the
character or appearance of which it is desirable to preserve or enhance'.

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that in determining

Development Control Report Page 5 of 16

101



planning applications, local authorities should take account of the desirability of
sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets (paragraph 131). As
heritage assets are irreplaceable, any harm or loss should require clear and
convincing justification (paragraph 132). Planning authorities should look for
opportunities for new development within conservation areas and within the setting
of heritage assets to enhance or better reveal their significance. Proposals that
best preserve those elements of the setting that make a positive contribution to or
better reveal the significance of the asset should be treated favorably (paragraph
139).

4.17 Policy KP2 of the Core Strategy advocates the need for all new development to
respect the character of the existing neighbourhood where appropriate and secure
urban improvements through quality design. Policy CP4 of the Core Strategy states
that development proposals will be expected to contribute to the creation of a high
quality, sustainable, urban environment which enhances and complements the
natural and built assets of Southend by maintaining and enhancing the amenities
and character of residential areas, securing good relationships with existing
development, and respecting the scale and nature of that development.

4.18 Policy DM1 of the Development Management Document advocates the need for
the Council to support proposals that add to the overall quality of an area, respect
the character of the site, its local context and surroundings giving appropriate
weight to the protection of heritage assets.

4,19 Policy DM5 of the Development Management Document seeks to protect the
special character of the Boroughs Conservation Areas. In relation to this the pre
ample to Policy DM5 of the Development Management Document states that:

‘To conserve and enhance the character and quality of the Conservation Areas,
development proposals, both traditional and modern, will have to be carefully
considered and demonstrate a high quality design that not only integrates with the
surroundings but also conserves and enhances its intrinsic character and
distinctiveness.’

4.20 As noted above Policy DM6 of the Development Management Document also
seeks to protect the unique character of the seafront including Leigh Old Town.

4.21 The problems and pressures facing the conservation area are identified in the
Leigh Old Town Conservation Area Appraisal which states that:

6.1.1 The primary pressure on the Conservation Area is the need for the
businesses to operate in a modern and profitable manner. This is resulting in loss
of character owing to increasingly inappropriate advertising and signage, cheap
and ugly additions to buildings and inappropriate boundary treatments among other
problems.

6.6.6 The number of tourists visiting in fine weather puts pressure on the town in
the same way as it does in most resorts. This has an impact on car parking and
traffic levels as well as pubs and cafes which must stretch to accommodate these.’

4.22 The policies above therefore support improvements to the leisure offer in the Old

Development Control Report Page 6 of 16
102



4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26

4.27

4.28

4.29

Town provided these are not at the expense of its heritage assets including the
special character of historic buildings in the conservation area.

The proposal includes a variety of alterations to the building, the merits of which
are discussed below:

Installation of a new balustrade to the terrace area to replicate original design

Historic photos show that the building originally had vertical cast iron railings. The
current terrace has modern metal post with a timber rail which appears rather at
odds with the building and which appear unsafe. The proposal is to reinstate the
original design and materials of the balustrade. This will enhance the character of
the building and the wider conservation area and is welcomed.

Install traditional timber framed windows to the blank dormers to replicate original
design

The historic photos also confirm that the dormer sections to the roof were originally
glazed with matching windows that had a pivot opening mechanism. The
application seeks to remove the cladding which has been installed here and
replicate this lost feature. This is also considered to be an enhancement to the
historic character of the building and wider conservation area.

With regard to the existing windows the applicant has confirmed that it is his
intention to restore the existing windows and install secondary glazing behind to
help mitigate noise escaping from the premises. This is considered an acceptable
design solution.

Replace existing felt roof with natural slate

It is proposed to replace the existing felt roof with natural slate. This will be a
significant enhancement for the property and the wider conservation area and is
again welcomed.

Installation of new timber doors to match existing

The proposal seeks to replicate the existing doors in timber. This is considered to
be acceptable.

Install extract flue and duct to rear elevation

As a restaurant the proposal will require a commercial kitchen and associated
extraction plant. This was initially proposed as a conventional stainless steel flue
on the west gable rising from ceiling height to ridge level but the visual impact of
this was considered to be incompatible with the historic character of the
conservation area. The Council’s Environmental Health Officer has advised that
the discharge needs to be above eaves level and off the slope of the roof for the
discharged air to disperse and it has been suggested that this could be achieved
within a small false chimney stack to the rear roofslope and the plans have been
amended to reflect this. This could be detailed with brick slips so that it did not
appear out of place. It is therefore considered that the flue can be accommodated
in an acceptable manner and the final details of this extract could be agreed by

Development Control Report Page 7 of 16

103



condition. The applicant has also confirmed that the fresh air intake to the rear
elevation would be a grille which is powder coated to match the existing building.
This is acceptable on design and heritage grounds.

Install external staircase from side terrace to proposed bin area

4.30 Finally, it is proposed to construct a small external staircase to and from the terrace
on the west side of the building to the area of land on between the application
building and the Crooked Billet, which is the intended location for the waste
storage. This area is set at ground level with a tall timber gate to the street which
will screen the bins from view. The waste storage was relocated to this area from
its original position to the rear of the building following concerns raised regarding
access (the original location could only be serviced over land belonging to the
neighbouring flats). The amended location is more accessible and suitable for
waste storage and public views of the bins will be screened by the existing gate.
There is therefore no objection to a new access staircase to this area.

4.31 Overall the scheme proposes the reinstatement of a number of key historic
features including the roof materials, lost windows to the dormers and railings
which have been lost over the years these elements of the proposal are particularly
beneficial to the conservation area. The rest of the building will remain relatively
unchanged. The proposal is therefore considered to enhance the historic character
of the building and that of the wider conservation area. The design of the proposal
is therefore acceptable and policy compliant subject to the agreements of detailing
which can be achieved via conditions.

4.32 With regard to the impact of the change of use on the character of the conservation
area it is considered that the proposed restaurant use is compatible with the
existing character of the area which includes a number of other similar uses
nearby.

Traffic and Transportation

National Planning Policy Framework (2012); Core Strategy (2007) policies
KP2, CP3 and CP4; Development Management Document (2015) policy DM15,
and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

4.33 The proposal does not involve any extensions to the building itself but will be
changing its use from class D2 to Class A3. There is no existing or proposed
parking for the site, however, there are a variety of public car parks nearby as well
as access to public transport and visitor cycle parking. Furthermore this is a
sustainable location and users are likely to make linked trips to the area. Given the
existing use and sustainable location, it is not considered that the lack of parking is
an impact which would justify the refusal of planning permission. The Council’s
Highways Officer has not raised any objection to the absence of parking.

4.34 Whilst there are some visitor cycle parking stands in the vicinity of the site, no staff
cycle parking has been proposed as part of the application. It is however noted,
that there is space for cycle parking to be accommodated to the side or rear of the
building and this could be secured via a planning condition.

4.35 As noted above the refuse area is proposed to the west of the building behind the

Development Control Report Page 8 of 16
104



4.36

4.37

4.38

4.39

4.40

4.41

4.42

existing gates. No objections are raised with regard to this location which seems to
be of a reasonable size and accessible location. No details have been provided on
the exact provision of waste and recycling storage but it is considered that the
details of the waste storage facilities could be agreed by condition. The Councils
Highways Officer has commented that this needs to take account of the Council’s
Waste Management Guidelines.

Impact on Neighbour Amenity

National Planning Policy Framework (2012); Core Strategy (2007) policies
KP2 and CP4; Development Management Document (2015) policies DM1 and
DM3 and the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

Policy DM1 of the Development Management DPD states that development
should, ‘protect the amenity of the site, immediate neighbours and surrounding
area, having regard for privacy, overlooking, outlook, noise and disturbance, visual
enclosure, pollution and daylight and sunlight.”

The proposal is seeking a change of use from D2 (leisure and community use) to
A3 (restaurant). The proposed hours of operation are 9am - 12 midnight Monday to
Sunday including bank holidays from May to September, reducing to 12 noon to
12 midnight Monday to Sunday including bank holidays from October to April. The
existing use has no restriction on its opening hours. The terrace to the front of the
property is proposed for use as outside dining. It is noted that the proposed
opening hours are consistent with those of the Peter Boat and the Crooked Billet.

There are a number of residential properties surrounding the site. The modern flats
to the east are 6m from the building; the dwellings opposite are 9m from the
building and the managers flat at the Crooked Billet is 9m from the building. In
addition to residential properties there are two busy public houses close to the site,
a railway and a busy road. It is likely that, in the summer particularly, the
background noise levels are already quite significant.

The applicant has been made aware of Environmental Health requirements in
terms of noise and disturbance and odours mitigation measures. The applicant has
indicated that these measures will include items such as the installation of
secondary glazing to the windows and acoustic wall insulation and designing the
extract to meet noise restrictions.

Several objections have been received raising concerns about the potential for
noise and disturbance resulting from the proposed change of use including the
plant equipment and use of the terrace for outside dining.

It is considered that mitigation measures can be undertaken to reduce noise
nuisance from the plant, the dining area and more generally and that these could
be controlled by suitable planning conditions. This is also the case for odour
impact. It is also considered that a condition could be imposed to restrict the use of
the front terrace for outside dining later in the evenings to prevent noise nuisance
from this element of the proposal.

Environmental Health have commented that, in order for the fumes to dissipate

Development Control Report Page 9 of 16

105



properly, the flue to the rear needs to be raised above eaves and suggest that this
could be achieved within a false chimney. The plans have been amended to reflect
this. It is considered that, subject to using appropriate materials and detailing, this
can be achieved in a manner which is compatible with the building. This
arrangement is therefore acceptable in principle and the detailed design can be
agreed by condition.

4.43 The proposal has also been assessed in relation to other amenity issues including
light, outlook, visual impact, sense of enclosure, overlooking and privacy and is
considered to be acceptable and policy compliant in these regards. Overall
therefore, it is considered that, subject to the imposition of planning conditions
relating to noise mitigation and odour control from the building and the terrace
area, design details of the flue and hours of opening for the building itself and the
terrace, the impact on neighbours can be satisfactory controlled.

Flood Risk

4.44 As noted in paragraph 4.11 above it is not considered that the proposal would be
vulnerable to flooding or give rise to any increased risk in the area.

CIL

4.45 The proposed development is for a commercial to commercial change of use with
no increase in floorspace. The proposal is therefore not CIL liable as it benefits
from a Minor Development Exemption under the Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010 (as amended) and as such no charge is payable.

Conclusion

4.46 Having taken all material planning considerations into account, it is found that
subject to compliance with the attached conditions, the proposed development
would be acceptable and compliant with the objectives of the relevant development
plan policies and guidance. The proposed use would enhance existing tourist
facilities and would provide significant enhancement of the conservation area and
this, on balance, would mitigate for the loss of an underused community facility and
is therefore acceptable in principle. It is also considered that subject to appropriate
planning conditions the proposal would have an acceptable impact on the
amenities of neighbouring occupiers. The highways impacts of the proposal are
acceptable. This application is therefore recommended for approval subject to
conditions.

5 Planning Policy Summary
5.1 National Planning Policy Framework (2012)

5.2 Core Strategy Policies KP1(Spatial Strategy), KP2 (Development Principles), CP2
(Town Centre and Retail Development), CP3 (Transport and Accessibility ) CP4
(The Environment and Urban Renaissance), CP6 (Community Infrastructure) and
CP7 (Sport, Recreation and Green Space)

5.3 Development Management Document (2015) policies DM1 (Design Quality), DM2

Development Control Report Page 10 of 16
106



54

5.5

5.6

6.1

(Low Carbon and Development and Efficient Use of Resources) DM3 (Efficient and
effective use of land), DM5 (Southend-on-Sea’s Historic Environment), DM6 (The
Seafront) and DM15 (Sustainable Transport Management)

Leigh Old Town Conservation Area Appraisal (2010)

Southend Design & Townscape Guide (2009)

Community Infrastructure Levy

Representation Summary

Environmental Health

The applicant is proposing to change of use from a Scout Hut/ gym to a restaurant.

The revised plan for the planning application proposed to install an air intake vent
grill on North facing rear extension external wall and kitchen extract ducting will exit
via a fake chimney on the rear section of the roof. The revised position of the
extract discharge point would be more suitable than the previously proposed low
level discharge. The applicant did not indicate the level of cooking or cooking
processes at 52 High Street, Old Leigh, Leigh-on-Sea and also there is no detail on
any de-odourising system to the kitchen extract. Therefore, it is not possible to
provide more constructive comments on this matter. Controls must be in place to
prevent nuisance from cooking smell/ particulates/ vapour from the activities within
the premises.

According to the Warren Sharp’s email dated 11t March 2018, the applicant
proposed to retain most of the single glazed sash windows at 52 High Street, Old
Leigh, Leigh-on-Sea and the very top ones will also be single glazed. There is no
indication that these single glazed windows are acoustic windows. Controls must
be in place to prevent noise escapes from the activities within the premises through
these single glazed windows and the timber structure.

[Officer Comment: It is considered that the details of the final flue design can
be agreed by condition to ensure that it does not appear out of place on this
historic building. A noise report will be conditioned to ensure satisfactory
mitigating measures to prevent noise escaping from the building including
via the windows. It is understood that secondary glazing is being considered
in this case to preserve the character of the conservation area. Full details of
the odour control plant can also be conditioned to ensure that this will not
cause a nuisance to neighbours.]

Conditions and informatives should be sought in relation to the following:
Conditions

e Extractor Ventilation System/ Plant including odour control
¢ Noise report to ensure that the proposal does not give rise to noise nuisance
from the plant and from the use and terrace.
e Control of delivery times
Informatives

Development Control Report Page 11 of 16

107



e Removal of asbestos
e Compliance with Environmental Protection Act 1990 (as amended)
e compliance with the Food Safety and Hygiene (England) Regulations 2014

Highways
6.2 The applicant will need to ensure that the waste policy provision at the site and the
collection arrangements are compliant with the Councils Waste Management
Guide. It is not considered that the proposal will have a detrimental impact upon
the public highway. Council operated car parks are in close proximity. There are
therefore no highway objections.
Parks
6.3 No comments received.
Network Rail
6.4 No comments received.
Leigh Town Council
6.5 No objection to amended plans.
Leigh Society
6.6 No comments received.
Public Consultation
6.7 A site notice was displayed, a press notice published and 7 neighbours were
notified of the proposal. 11 responses were received raising the following issues:
¢ Noise and disturbance from the restaurant and terrace
e Odour from flue extract and waste storage
e Loss of leisure/ community use
e Traffic and taxi noise
e There are enough eateries in this area
e Lack of parking and obstruction of residents driveways
e Opening until 12 midnight is too late
e Construction related impacts
e Harm to neighbour amenity
[Officer Comment: These concerns are noted and they have been taken into
account in the assessment of the application. However, they are not found to
represent a reasonable basis to refuse planning permission in the
circumstances of this case. It should be noted that since these comments
have been received, the Council has been informed that the fitness classes
have relocated to the building opposite.]
Development Control Report Page 12 of 16

108



6.8

7.1

01

02

03

04

05

This application was called to committee by Clir Mulroney.

Relevant Planning History

There is no planning history for this site.

Recommendation

GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to the following reasons:

The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years of
the date of this decision

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans 17-Clarendon-01B, 17-Clarendon-02A, 17-
Clarendon-03B, 17-Clarendon — 04A

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with
the Development Plan.

No development shall take place until details of the materials to the used on
the external elevations including a sample of the natural state, details of the
materials for the dormer cheeks and any new guttering, product details for
the staining of the existing weatherboarding, materials including glazing for
the new dormer windows and doors, materials for the balustrading and any
new flooring to the terrace and any other new external materials including
boundary materials have been submitted to and approved by the local
planning authority. The development shall only be carried out in accordance
with the approved details.

Reason: To safeguard character and appearance of the historic building and
the surrounding Leigh Old Town Conservation Area in accordance with
Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1, DM3,
DM5 and DM6 of the Development Management Document (2015) and advise
contained within the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

Prior to the commencement of development, detailed design drawings of the
new doors, new dormer windows and terrace balustrades/railings at scales
of 1:20, 1:10 or 1:1 as appropriate shall be submitted to and agreed in writing
by the local planning authority. The development shall be carried out and in
accordance with the approved details before it is brought into use.

Reason: A pre commencement condition is needed to safeguard character
and appearance of the historic building and the surrounding Leigh Old Town
Conservation Area in accordance with Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1, DM3, DM5 and DM6 of the Development
Management Document (2015) and advise contained within the Southend
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

Prior to the first occupation of the building for A3 purposes details of the

Development Control Report Page 13 of 16

109



proposed waste storage and an associated waste management plan shall be
submitted to and approved by the local planning authority. The
development shall only be implemented in accordance with the approved
details from first occupation for the proposed use and be maintained as
such in perpetuity.

Reason: To ensure that the development is satisfactorily serviced and that
satisfactory waste management is undertaken in the interests of highway
safety and visual amenity and to protect the character of the surrounding
conservation area, in accordance with Policies KP2, CP3 and CP4 of the
Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1, DM5 and DM15 of the Development
Management Document (2015).

06 Prior to the first occupation of the building for A3 purposes details of the
staff cycle storage shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning
authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the
approved details before it is first occupied for the approved use.

Reason: To ensure the provision of adequate cycle parking in accordance
with policies DM8 and DM15 of The Development Management Document
(2015).

07  Prior to the commencement of the development the design details and
materials of the proposed extraction flue chimney and fresh air grille at
scales of 1:20, 1:10 or 1:1 as appropriate shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried
out in accordance with the approved details before it is brought into use.

Reason: A pre commencement condition is needed in order to protect the
amenities of occupiers of the development surrounding occupiers and to
protect the character and visual amenities of the conservation area in
accordance with policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and
Policies DM1, DM3, DM5 and DM6 of the Development Management
Document 2015.

08 Prior to commencement of the proposed use details of the proposed
extraction and ventilation equipment together with a report detailing any
mitigation measures proposed in respect of noise and odour impacts shall
be submitted to, and approved by, the Local Planning Authority. The
installation of extraction equipment shall be carried out in full accordance
with the approved details and any noise and odour mitigation measures
undertaken in association with the agreed details before the use hereby
approved is commenced. With reference to BS4142 the noise rating level
arising from all plant and extraction/ventilation equipment shall be at least
5dbB(A) below the prevailing background at 3.5 metres from the ground
floor facades and 1m from all other facades of the nearest noise sensitive
property with no tonal or impulsive character. The rating level of noise for all
activities (including amplified and unamplified music and human voices)
shall be at least 10dB(A) below the background noise (with no tonal
elements) to ensure inaudibility in noise sensitive premises.

Reason: In order to protect the amenities of the surrounding occupiers in

Development Control Report Page 14 of 16
110



accordance with policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and
Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document (2015).

09 The class A3 (restaurant) use hereby permitted shall not be open to
customers outside the following times: 09:00 until 24:00 hours on Monday to
Sundays including Bank Holidays from May through to and including
September and 12:00 until 24:00 hours Mondays to Sundays including bank
holidays from October through to and including April.

Reason: In order to protect the amenities of occupiers of surrounding
occupiers in accordance with policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy
(2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015).

10 The entire raised terrace area shall not be use by customers for the
consumption of food or drink or for smoking from 22:00 hours until the
close of business on all days.

Reason: In order to protect the amenities of surrounding occupiers in
accordance with policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and
Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document (2015).

11 No deliveries or refuse collection shall be taken at or despatched from the
A3 use hereby permitted outside the hours of 07:00 to 18:00hours Mondays
to Fridays and 08:00 to 13:00hours on Saturdays nor at any time on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

Reason: In order to protect the amenities of occupiers of the development
surrounding occupiers in accordance with policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015)

12 Construction works associated with this permission shall not take place
outside 08:00 hours to 18:00 hours Mondays to Fridays and 08:00 hours to
13:00 hours on Saturdays and at no time Sundays or Bank Holidays.

Reason: In order to protect the amenities surrounding occupiers and to
protect the character the area in accordance with policies KP2 and CP4 of
the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development
Management Document (2015).

Informatives

01 You are advised that as the proposed development equates to less than 100
sqm of additional floorspace so the development benefits from a Minor
Development Exemption under the Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010 (as amended) and as such no charge is payable. See
www.southend.gov.uk/cil for further details about CIL.

02 The applicant is advised that if noise modelling software is used to calculate

Development Control Report Page 15 of 16
111



the likely levels or impact of the noise then any actual measurement taken
such as LA90 must be taken in accordance with BS7445. The assessment
should be carried out by a suitably qualified and experienced acoustic
consultant who would normally be a member of the Institute of Acoustics.
For further guidance on the control of odour and noise from ventilation
systems you are advised to have regard to — Guidance on the Control of
Odour and Noise from Commercial Kitchen Exhaust Systems published by
DEFRA. This can be downloaded free from www.DEFRA.Gov.UK

03 The applicant is advised that according to this Department’s record,
asbestos containing materials may be present within the structure of walls
at 52 High Street, Leigh-on-Sea, Essex. An asbestos survey at this address
should therefore be carried out by a suitably qualitied person before any
structural work being carried out at the premises. Any asbestos containing
material (ACM) must be removed and disposed off site to a facility licenced
by the Environment Agency. A waste transfer certificate should be made
available for inspection by authorised officer from this Authority on request.

04 The applicant is advised that compliance with this decision notice does not
bestow compliance with other regulatory frameworks. In particular your
attention is drawn to the statutory nuisance provisions within the
Environmental Protection Act 1990 (as amended) and also to the relevant
sections of the Control of Pollution Act 1974. Contact 01702 215005 for more
information

05 The applicant is reminded that this permission does not bestow compliance
with the Food Safety and Hygiene (England) Regulations 2014 or any other
provision so enacted, such as those located within the Food Safety Act
1990. Applicants should contact the Council’s Environmental Health Officer
for more advice on 01702 215005 or at Regulatory Services Department,
Southend-on-Sea Borough Council, Civic Centre, Victoria Avenue, Southend
S$S2 6ZG The applicant is advised that any waste food collection must be
undertaken by a licenced operator

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in
determining this application by identifying matters of concern with the
proposal and determining the application within a timely manner, clearly
setting out the reason(s) for refusal, allowing the Applicant the opportunity
to consider the harm caused and whether or not it can be remedied by a
revision to the proposal. The detailed analysis is set out in a report
prepared by officers. In the circumstances the proposal is not considered to
be sustainable development. The Local Planning Authority is willing to
discuss the best course of action.

Development Control Report Page 16 of 16
112


http://www.defra.gov.uk/

€Tt



This page is intentionally left blank



STl



This page is intentionally left blank



top windows to be
reinstated as original
installed, to match
windows below.

wrought iron

balustrade to be

reinstated as

original installed.

new fimber dormer
sides to match main

building.

wrought iron

balustrade to be

reinstated as

original installed.

height of decking.

floor height at
rear of site.

|
=
NRIRNNRRRINN] INNRRRNRRRHNRAAN

wooden gates
fo bin area

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION

exit for extract
|—via fake chimney.

MATERIALS :-

ROOF - PITCH ROOF TO REMAIN, BUT RECOVERED WITH NATURAL
SLATE ROOF
WINDOWS - TIMBER SASH WINDOWS TO REMAIN WITH NEW SASH
STYLE WINDOWS TO THE VERY TOP SECTION
DOORS - NEW TIMBER DOORS TO MATCH EXISTING
WALLS - TIMBER CLADDING TO REMAIN AND BE STAINED BLACK, IF
IT NEEDS REPLACING, CLADDING WILL MATCH EXISTING
AND BE STAINED BLACK TO MATCH
HANDRAILS - BLACK WROUGHT IRON BALUSTRADE AND HANDRAIL
TO MATCH WHAT WOULD HAVE BEEN ORIGINALLY
INSTALLED.
DUCTING - ALL INTERNAL, APART FROM EXIT FROM REAR OF ROOF
WHICH WILL BE VIA A FAKE CHIMNEY

air intake vent grill.

wjs - survey & design

PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION 249 Ashingdon Road Rochford Essex SS4 1RS

Tel: 01702 546922 Mob: 07876563672 email: warrenjsharp@gmail.com

exit for extract Client: Paul Alston

via fake chimney.

new timber dormer Location:

\mm_wmwwaoaj main The Clarendon
Adjacent to 53 High Street
Old Leigh, Leigh On Sea, Essex, SS9 2EN

! Project and Stage:
Change of use from a scout hut to a restaurant

wrought iron
balustrade to be
reinstated as
original installed.

[0 Tender Package
[0 Contract Package

[0 Concept Designs
[d Planning Drawings

[0 Building Regulations [0 Working Drawings

Drawn: ws 7 Checked: 7 Sheet: A3

H__ Scale: 1:100 7 Date: Dec 2017

new stairs for
access fo bins owgno: 1 7-clarendon-03| re: B

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING

ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE YOUR ATTENTION IS DRAWN TO THE PARTY WALL ACT 1996.
THE CLIENT/CONTRACTOR IS TO CONSULT WITH NEIGHBOURING PROPERTY OWNERS BEFORE ANY
WORKS COMMENCE.

THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF WJS - SURVEYING & DESIGN.

NO UNAUTHORISED COPYING WITHOUT PRIOR CONSENT. (©) Copyright Wis 2011

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION

117




This page is intentionally left blank



storage storage
area area
stores. stores.
AN L y AN /
ST VEREN TP NTTT”
% o
N1 } I } — A } I }
A A A A
hew stairs for |] H M ﬁ M H u ﬁ M_
access fo bins|
bathroom. @ @ @ @
ﬁx: from buildi j j j j
via roof and njg /
fake chimney|
match building. H u ﬁ u H u ﬁ H
hall.
— extract hood gnd | | — @ @ @ @
ducting to be]
1 [ designed and pized 1 [
— by others, to e LT — seating area.
approved \ 1
before installggl. j j
area for waste kitchen. kitchen. j j
and bins.
area for waste ﬁ M_ H u H u _H M_
and bins. @ M M
T T T ] I T I T
LA il
=% ="
A
EXISTING FLOOR PLAN PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN
J b
wjs - survey & design
249 Ashingdon Road Rochford Essex SS4 1RS
| Tel: 01702 546922 Mob: 07876563672 email: warrenjsharp@gmail.com
Client: Paul Alston
Location:
The Clarendon
Adjacent to 53 High Street
Old Leigh, Leigh On Sea, Essex, SS9 2EN
finished floor level f
to remain unchange Project and Stage:
Change of use from a scout hut to a restaurant
[0 Concept Designs [0 Tender Package
ground level [d Planning Drawings [0 Contract Package
[0 Building Regulations [0 Working Drawings
EXISTING AND PROPOSED SECTION
Drawn: ws 7 Checked: 7 Sheet: A3
Scale: 1:100 7 Date: Dec 2017
owgno: 1 7-clarendon-01| re: B
DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING
THE CUENTICONTRAGTOR 5 16 CONSULT WITH NEIGHBOURING PROPERTY OVNERS BEFORE ANY
mx_m._l_zo >ZD TWOTOmmD WOOT 1_l>z %I&MMWM@J;Z’MmWOAmrmOO.u(.»_OIqOn<<.._w‘wcm<m<_20m0mw_oz.

NO UNAUTHORISED COPYING WITHOUT PRIOR CONSENT. (©) Copyright Wis 2011

119




This page is intentionally left blank



1.

17/02074/FUL

Reference: 2. 17/02075/LBC
Ward: Milton
1. Change of use of ground floor shop (Class A1) to
community hub for age concern (Class D1), change of
use of first floor from shop (Class A1) to Assembly and
Leisure use (Class D2) and replace external staircase
to rear, infill window to rear, install 2 rooflights and 2
roof lanterns to single storey flat roof to rear.
Proposal: 2. Various internal changes to ground, first and second
floor, reinstate two letters to the signage on the front
elevation, replace external staircase to rear, infill
window to rear and install 2 rooflights and 2 roof
lanterns to single storey flat roof to rear (Listed
Building Consent)
138 - 140 Hamlet Court Road
Westcliff-On-Sea
Address:
Essex
SS0 7LN
Applicant: Age Concern Southend CIO
Agent: Metson Architects Ltd

Consultation Expiry:

20t March 2018

Expiry Date:

9" April 2018

Case Officer:

Abbie Greenwood

1. TP-X01B, TP-X02, TP-01B, TP-02, TP-03

Plan Nos: 2. TP-X01B, TP-X02, TP-01B, TP-02, TP-03, TP-04, TP-
05D, TP-07, TP-08, TP-09, TP-10, TP-11A, TP-12A,
TP-13, TP-14, TP-15A
1. GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION
Recommendation:
2. GRANT LISTED BUILDING CONSENT

Development Control Report

121




eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee



1 The Proposal

1.1 Planning permission is sought to change the use of the ground and first floors of the
former Havens Store in Hamlet Court Road from a retail shop to a community use.
The ground floor will change from class A1 to class D1 of the Town and Country
Planning (Use Classes Order) and will house Age Concern which will relocate from
a nearby premises in Hamlet Court Road. The facilities associated with this use
include support services for the over 50s such as bereavement counselling, public
health facilities and advocacy, the provision of hairdressing and chiropody services,
meeting spaces, craft / hobby area and a public café. The first floor will change
from class A1 to class D2 and will house Club 50+ which will relocate from Queens
Road in Southend. This area will be used for more leisure based activities for over
50’s including a keep fit area, carpet bowls, snooker, table tennis, darts and
computer area. The Havens online retail function will remain in the 2nd floor offices.
These uses would work together using shared services, staircases and the lift and
represent a sui generis use for the site.

1.2 The proposal will require a number of physical changes to the building. These are

the subject of an application for planning permission and listed building consent and
are summarised below:

External
e reinstatement of the damaged sign to front
e replacement of the rear escape stair

e installation of 2 conservation rooflights and 2 roof lanterns to the existing
single storey addition to the rear

e infill window to rear
Ground Floor

e Alteration of the main display windows to remove backing enabling views
into the premises

e Removal of 1980s style shop fittings including wall cabinets within the front
area and restoration of panelling behind

¢ |Installation of fitted reception counter
¢ |Installation of café servery counter

¢ |Installation of reversible partitions within the central area to create meeting
rooms, counselling rooms and other facilities such as hairdressing and
chiropody

e Subdivision of the single storey rear section of the ground floor area to
create a commercial kitchen, craft workshop and toilet facilities

First Floor
e Erection of glazed fire proof lobby around staircase
¢ Removal of 1980s wall cabinets and restore original timber panelling behind

¢ |Installation of tea servery

Development Control Report
123



2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

e Part demolition of wall to storage cupboards on northern side of building to
enable an area for the provision of carpet bowls

¢ Removal of a partition in the office and kitchen area
Second floor

¢ |Installation of fire proof lobby around the staircase

Site and Surroundings

The building was constructed in 1935 as a purpose built retail store for the
shopping centre of Westcliff which was a fashionable shopping destination at this
time. It is one of the largest and most important long-served stores in Hamlet Court
Road. The building has an attractive faience (ceramic) fagade and large distinctive
steel framed display windows facing the street. Internally the building retains many
of its original features including decorative rooflights, parquet flooring, a pair of
grand staircases, the original concertina shuttered lift and some historic shop floor
fittings. It is understood that the original timber panelling hides behind the later
1970/1980s wall display units. The building is mainly open plan to the first and
second floors. A single storey extension was added in the 1950s to provide an
additional sales area to the ground floor.

There have been a number of changes to the building over the years including the
replacement of the ground floor shop display windows in the 1970s and the removal
of the internal viewing gallery at first floor which once enabled views from the
ground floor up to the decorative lantern above. An extension to the rear to infill the
area between the store and the rear warehouse was also added. These changes
can clearly be seen but overall the building has retained much of its original
structure and historic character. The premises were grade |l listed in 2016 and the
building also sits within a Frontage of Townscape Merit.

The shop is located within the district centre of Hamlet Court Road and is a
landmark for the shopping centre. The wider streetscene is characterised by a
variety of buildings, many of which are historic and were constructed before
Havens, some of which have extensive decoration. The past grandeur of the street
is evident but many of the buildings are in a poor state of repair or have been poorly
altered and this has had an impact on their historic character. The street has a mix
of uses, principally retail to ground floor with residential above. Much of the road
including the site is designated as primary shopping frontage.

Planning Considerations

The main considerations in relation to the planning application are, impact of the
change of use on the primary shopping frontage and district centre, the design and
impact on the character and appearance of the site and wider area, impact on the
heritage assets, the impact on neighbours amenities and any transport, highway
and access issues. The only consideration in relation to the application for listed
building consent is the impact on the architectural and historic character and
significance of the listed building as a heritage asset.

Development Control Report

124



4.1

4.2

4.3

Appraisal
Principle of the Development

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2012) Core Strategy (2007)
policies KP1, KP2, CP1, CP3, CP4, CP6 and CP7; Development Management
Document (2015) Policies DM1, DM3 and DM5, DM13, DM15

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and local planning policies noted
above promote sustainable development including the adaptation of listed buildings
provided that the proposal has due regard for the impact of the works on the special
historic character and significance of the listed building. This is discussed in detail
below, along with the impact on neighbours amenity, wider design and character
points, transport and highways and accessibility issues. The main issue for the
principle of the change of use of the building is the impact this may have on the
vitality and viability of the primary shopping frontage and wider district centre.

The key policy in relation to this is DM13 which seeks to protect the vitality of
primary shopping frontages. Policy DM13 states that:

1. Primary and secondary shopping frontages within Southend will be managed to
reinforce their attractiveness, vitality and viability within the daytime and night-time
economies. The character and function of both types of frontage will be protected
and enhanced.

2.....Within each of the identified primary shopping frontage areas, proposals for
Class A1 retail use will be supported and its loss will be resisted. The change of
use of ground floor Class A1 units to other uses of the Use Classes Order 1987 (as
amended) or ‘sui generis’ uses of a retail nature will only be considered if:

I The proposed use will not result in the proportion of frontage (measured
in terms of length of frontage) remaining in retail use (class A1) falling
below 60% within each centre as a whole. Where retail use (class A1)
already falls below 60% of the primary shopping frontage length, no
further loss of Class A1 will be allowed unless it can be demonstrated to
the satisfaction of the Council that the A1 use is no longer viable
through an effective 2 year marketing exercise where the vacant
property has been offered for sale or letting on the open market at a
realistic price and no reasonable offers have been refused*; and

il. It can be demonstrated that the proposed change of use would
enhance the vitality and viability of the centre and would not lead to the
isolation of A1 retail uses; and

iii. . An active frontage is retained or provided with a display function for
goods and services rendered and the proposed use will provide a
direct service to visiting members of the general public.

The most recent survey data for this area showed that 58% of the Hamlet Court
Road Primary Shopping Frontage was in A1 (retail) use, however, it is noted that
within the block that contains the application site, the percentage of A1 uses was in
fact much higher at 75%. The impact of the proposal would be to reduce these
figures to 56% and 60% respectively.

Development Control Report

125



4.4

4.5

4.6

The applicant has not provided a 2 year marketing assessment but the Havens
owner has provided an assessment of his business during its 80 year history and
an evaluation of the trends of retail stores of a similar nature across the country.
This comments on how the retail business has adapted in light of the changing
nature of shopping including the switch to online retailing. This report states that
over the past 20 years the footfall in Hamlet Court Road has been in decline and
the centre as a whole is losing custom to the modern shopping centres such as
Lakeside and Bluewater and more recently the internet. In relation to the Havens
business itself it comments that in 2005/6 only around 20% of Havens business
was via the internet. This figure is now nearer to 70% and the business has been
forced to diversify and move online to survive. The report also comments that of a
group of 30 independent retailers of a similar size and nature across the country,
Havens has survived the longest. It is the opinion of the owner that the building is
no longer viable as an independent retail unit due to its scale and arrangement over
2 floors.

The application currently proposed seeks to retain the online Havens business in
the space on the 2" floor. No change to this use is proposed under the current
application. This business will have close links to the other users in the building in
particular links with the window displays and reception counter. As such, a
presence of a town centre nature will be maintained in the building and contribute to
the activity at the site. It is also noted that the application proposes to remove the
backs of the ground floor display windows so that the café behind can be seen from
the street. This will ensure that an active and attractive frontage is maintained to the
street. The café will be open to the public as well as the centre’s users.

Whilst the figures show that the level of A1 is already below the 60% threshold, it is
important to note that the objective of this policy is to protect the vitality and viability
of the retail centre. By opening up views into the building of a retail function and
continuing window displays the building will be able to maintain an active frontage
to the street. It is therefore considered that the proposal is consistent with the
essence of this policy and will not appear out of character within the parade as a
whole. It is also considered that the proposed new use as a community hub will
bring substantial footfall to the street as well as providing a valuable service to the
older population of the Borough who would be expected to make linked trips to
other parts of the centre. It is considered that, in this instance, the proposal to
change from A1 to the D1 use proposed is consistent with the objectives of policy
DM13 and that the development will not harm the vitality of the district centre. In
fact it is considered that it would be likely to enhance the vitality and viability of this
stretch of the district centre. The proposed use also has many other public benefits
including social, health and wellbeing and economic benefits which help to justify
an exception to the letter of this policy as well as securing, in principle, a future use
which can integrate satisfactorily with the building’s listed status (assessed in detail
below). The principle of the development is therefore considered to be acceptable
subject to the detailed considerations discussed below including assessing the
impact on the significance of the historic asset.

Design and Impact on the Listed Building and Frontage of Townscape Merit
National Planning Policy Framework (2012) Core Strategy (2007) policies KP2

and CP4; Development Management Document (2015) Policies DM1, DM3 and
DM5

Development Control Report

126



4.7

4.8

In relation to proposals affecting listed buildings, paragraph128-134 of the NPPF
states that:

129 ‘Local planning authorities should identify and assess the particular
significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by a proposal (including by
development affecting the setting of a heritage asset) taking account of the
available evidence and any necessary expertise. They should take this assessment
info account when considering the impact of a proposal on a heritage asset, to
avoid or minimize conflict between the heritage asset’s conservation and any
aspect of the proposal.’

131. In determining planning applications, local planning authorities should take
account of:
e the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage
assets and putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;
e the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to
sustainable communities including their economic vitality;, and
e the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local
character and distinctiveness.

132. When considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance
of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s
conservation.

133. Where a proposed development will lead to substantial harm to or total loss of
significance of a designated heritage asset, local planning authorities should refuse
consent, unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm or loss is
necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that outweigh that harm or loss, or
all of the following apply:

e the nature of the heritage asset prevents all reasonable uses of the site; and

e no viable use of the heritage asset itself can be found in the medium term
through appropriate marketing that will enable its conservation; and

e conservation by grant-funding or some form of charitable or public ownership
is demonstrably not possible; and

e the harm or loss is outweighed by the benefit of bringing the site back into
use.

134. Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the
significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against
the public benefits of the proposal, including securing its optimum viable use.

Policy KP2 of the Core Strategy requires that “all new development contributes to
economic, social, physical and environmental regeneration in a sustainable way”.

And that development should:
“conserve heritage assets in a manner appropriate to their significance, so that

they can be enjoyed for their contribution to the quality of life of this and future
generations’.

Development Control Report

127



4.9

4.10

4.11

412

4.13

Policy CP4 states that:

Development proposals will be expected to contribute to the creation of a high
quality, sustainable urban environment which enhances and complements the
natural and built assets of Southend. This will be achieved by:

7. safeguarding and enhancing the historic environment, heritage and
archaeological assets, including Listed Buildings, Conservation Areas and Ancient
Monuments

Policy DM1 states:
‘In order to reinforce local distinctiveness all development should:

(i) Add to the overall quality of the area and respect the character of the site, its
local context and surroundings in terms of its architectural approach,
height, size, scale, form, massing, density, layout, proportions, materials,
townscape and/or landscape setting, use, and detailed design
features giving appropriate weight to the preservation of a heritage
asset based on its significance in accordance with Policy DM5 where
applicable;

In relation to development affecting a listed building and Frontage of Townscape
Merit Policy DM5 states:

‘2. Development proposals that result in the total loss of or substantial harm to the
significance of a designated heritage asset, including listed buildings and buildings
within conservation areas, will be resisted, unless there is clear and convincing
justification that outweighs the harm or loss. Development proposals that are
demonstrated to result in less than substantial harm to a designated heritage asset
will be weighed against the impact on the significance of the asset and the public
benefits of the proposal, and will be resisted where there is no clear and convincing
Justification for this.’

‘4. Development proposals, including replacement shopfronts, that impact upon the
‘Frontages of Townscape Merit’ will be required to pay regard to the preservation
and restoration of features which contribute to the special character of their
frontage, including form and function.’

The proposed changes to the listed building are noted in Section 1 above. The
alterations are discussed in detail below.

Proposed External Alterations

In relation to the external elevations the proposal seeks to repair the distinctive
signage to the front including reinstating one letter which has fallen off and
replicating another which has been lost. It is also proposed to infill one window to
the rear with matching brickwork, replace the metal fire escape stair with one of the
same design and install 2 conservation style rooflights and two pyramid style
aluminium framed roof lanterns to the roof of the existing single storey extension.

Development Control Report

128



414

4.15

4.16

417

4.18

4.19

It is pleasing to see that the Havens branding, which is so much a part of the
character of the frontage, is to be maintained. This is specifically mentioned in the
list description for the building and therefore the proposal to repair the letter
signage to the front is welcomed. The applicant has confirmed that it is their
intention for discrete signage within the window displays in relation to the change of
use and this is considered appropriate and is welcomed. This will be considered
under a separate application. The works to the frontage will help to preserve the
frontage for the future and this accords with Policy DM5 in relation to Frontages of
Townscape Merit.

The other external changes are confined to the roof of the single storey section to
the rear which has no public impact. It should be noted that this part of the building
has no historic merit and has been specifically excluded from the list description.
The alterations here are minor and will not impact on the significance of the listed
building. Crucially, therefore, the building will retain its existing character and former
branding to the street and the proposed external alterations are considered to be
acceptable and former branding.

Internal Alterations
Ground Floor

The ground floor of the building will be used by Age Concern to provide a variety of
services for older people and members of the public including counselling and
bereavement services, plus other small scale public health services such as flu jabs
and blood tests as required as well as meeting rooms, a hobby room and public
café. New shared toilet facilities for all uses will also be located at ground floor.

At the front of the building it is proposed to open up views into the building by
removing the backs of the display windows. A reception counter, public café and a
small servery will be located in this area. The modern 1980s fitted wall cabinet will
also be removed and the panelling behind restored. The enclosure of the staircase
at this level, which was initially proposed, has now been omitted from the scheme
following a review of fire safety requirements.

There is no objection in principle to the removal of the backs of the display windows
as these were added in a more recent refurbishment of the building so are not part
of the historic fabric. Their removal will allow views into the building from the street
helping to maintain an active frontage and contribute to the vitality of the shopping
parade. Similarly the removal of the 1980s fitted wall cabinets will reveal the original
wall panelling and this is seen to be a positive aspect of the proposal. These
elements are therefore considered to be acceptable.

There is a need to provide a reception for Age Concern at the front of the building.
The initial proposal submitted was for a full partition of the frontage to create a
separate room with a counter but concerns were raised in respect of the sub
division of this area and the impact this would have on the historic layout and the
overall character of the building. This element of the proposal has been amended to
be a more open plan arrangement. Reception facilities are now proposed to be
provided at a custom designed low level counter which will be detailed to reference
the historic character of the building by using the same materials and style as the
historic shop fittings. This will enable the front section of the building, which is the
most visible from the street, to be maintained as one open space. The use of

Development Control Report

129



4.20

4.21

4.22

4.23

4.24

matching materials and retail counter style design will help this element of the
proposal fit in with the overall character of the building. This is a significant
improvement over the initial proposal. The same design ethos will be applied to the
proposed tea servery in this area which will provide a counter for the public café
that is to be located at the front of the building. The amended proposal here is
considered to be acceptable subject to the agreement of the design details and
materials for the counters, which can be controlled by condition.

It is proposed to introduce some sub division in the central area of the ground floor
to provide meeting rooms and local services provided by Age Concern and
associated agencies. The nature of these services, which include bereavement
counselling, public health and advocacy, means that there is often a need for
privacy both visually and audibly and this has necessitated the installation of floor to
ceiling partitions in this area. In order to mitigate the impact on the historic fabric,
these are designed as reversible partitions (i.e. they can easily be removed at a
later date without materially affecting the building fabric) and will be set back from
the historic shelving units. Ventilation will be incorporated into the partitions dividing
the rooms and will feed into ducts within the existing false ceiling and link to the
existing air conditioning units on the roof of the single storey rear addition.

The central area is currently an open retail space although it is understood that
there was originally a partition on the northern side of the area which provided
access to the rear service yard. This has long since been removed and the area is
now characterised by the fitted shelving units which link with the structural iron
columns in this part of the building. These units have distinctive curved ends, oak
trims and soffit lighting.

It is recognised that the open retail space is significant to the shop and its original
function as a department store. This scale of open plan space was only possible
due to the construction methods used here, which revolutionised the shopping
experience, changing it from the narrow shops seen in the older retail units nearby,
to the large open sales areas as shown in Havens. This structure is recognised as
being important to the significance of the building as a heritage asset and is evident
in the structural columns in this area and the exposed steel beams at first floor.
Similar beams are hidden by the false ceiling which has been installed at ground
floor.

While it would be preferable ideally to not have this subdivision it is noted that
without the ability to provide private meeting rooms the proposed community use
cannot function. The proposal therefore includes the subdivision of this area with
lightweight reversible partitions. The design of these have been amended to ensure
that they are fit for purpose but also that they are subservient to the historic
shelving units enabling them to be maintained as a feature in the remaining central
open plan area. The retention of a large open space in the centre of the ground
floor will help to maintain a sense of openness for this area which will be apparent
from the street and from within the front café area.

The detailing of the partitions has been altered to increase the amount of glazing
and to ensure that a symmetrical layout, which is a key characteristic of the existing
store in this area, is maintained. The glazing for the screens will be set in timber
frames which have been designed to reference the detailing of the adjacent historic
shelving. All these changes have significantly improved the proposal in relation to

Development Control Report

130



4.25

4.26

4.27

4.28

4.29

4.30

4.31

the initial submission which was for basic partitions on the south side and a large
kitchen on the north side in this area.

It should be noted that if the building were, as an alternative to the current proposal,
converted to another use it is likely that there would also be an element of
subdivision within the building which may be more extensive than that currently
proposed.

On balance it is considered that, in this particular instance, given the design of the
partitions and their reversibility and improved detailing, the alterations in this area
can be considered acceptable in terms of their impact on the significance of the
heritage asset.

The kitchen has now been relocated to the rear section of the building along with
the new toilet facilities and craft workshop. This section of the building was a later
addition and, as noted above, has no historic merit. It is therefore appropriate that
the more intrusive ‘messy’ uses are located in this area where there is an
opportunity for a more flexible layout and the installation of associated plant and
services. There is therefore no objection to the proposed alterations in this area
subject to the agreement of the details of the kitchen plant and any associated
housing. The wider implications of the plant will be discussed in more detail below.

First Floor

The first floor of the building will be used by Club 50+ and will run in conjunction
with the services provided by Age Concern at ground floor enabling the building to
act as a community hub for older persons. The club will provide a variety of social
activities for older people including a small tea servery, keep fit area, carpet bowls,
table tennis, snooker and darts. This will require some alterations to the historic
fabric including the installation of a fire proof lobby to the staircase, the demolition
of part of an internal wall on the northern side to the rear to make the space more
useable and some alterations to the rear back of house rooms and fire access area.

The fire proof lobby is required to ensure that users of the building are safe. The
building has not been altered for many years and is currently considered to be
substandard in terms of fire protection.

The heritage report submitted with the application confirms that a number of options
were considered to address this issue including sprinklers and a drop down fire
curtain but these were considered to be too intrusive on the historic fabric. The
proposal has opted therefore for a ‘light touch’ glazed screen which will be
constructed in fire proof frameless glass. This will enable the staircase to be fully
visible from the first floor area and still be a key feature of this space. Fire safety
matters would be fully addressed under a subsequent application for the relevant
building regulations consent.

It is worth noting that any conversion of the building will require alterations to
address this issue and other uses, such as a bar, may require a higher level of
protection as the perceived risks are greater.

Development Control Report

131



4.32

4.33

4.34

4.35

4.36

4.37

4.38

On balance it is considered that whilst the installation of a lobby will impact on the
open plan layout of the staircase to a degree, the need for some form of fire
protection has been justified and this ‘light touch’ honest approach is acceptable on
heritage impact grounds in this instance.

The other main alteration at first floor is the demolition of part of an internal wall to
the north store room. This is required to make space for carpet bowls to be played
in this area.

The layout of the first floor has store rooms on each side towards the rear which are
arranged in an octagonal plan around the feature roof light. There is a clear
distinction between the high quality finishes in the shop floor area and those within
the store rooms where a more basic approach has been taken to the walls, ceiling
and floor, ironmongery. The store rooms also include some rustic slatted timber
shelving for the storage of china and glassware and the northern store room has a
section of glass block flooring. There is also a smaller original decorative roof
lantern to the back of house area to the south side of the building.

It is considered that the arrangement of the rooms forming a central octagonal
space is an important aspect of the historic layout of the building and that the
change of detailing and features in the back of house area showcases the
operational side of the retail store. The proposal includes the demolition of the
dividing wall to the northern storeroom but this element has been amended to the
lower section of the wall only, leaving the upper section of wall in place to enable
the original layout to be identified. The agent has also confirmed that the glass
block floor in this area will be retained under the bowls mat and that the finishes in
this location will remain as their original simplistic and honest forms. It is noted that
the slatted timber shelving will be removed from the northern area but the applicant
has agreed to retain an element of this shelving in the southern rooms which are
proposed as an office and computer area. Overall this is seen as a acceptable
approach and will meet the needs of the club whilst still enabling the original legacy
of the layout and historic uses of this area to be appreciated as a heritage asset.

As with the ground floor a small tea servery counter is proposed at first floor which
will be detailed in a similar fashion.

Third Floor

The only alteration to the third floor is the installation of a fire lobby around the
staircase. This area is noted in the list description as being of little historic
importance so the proposal here is a more basic design. There is no objection to
this element of the proposal on design and heritage grounds.

Conclusion

As with any scheme affecting a listed building, a careful balance needs to be
achieved between the preservation of its historic significance and ensuring that the
building has a use which secures its future. As noted above the proposed scheme
will have some impact on the historic fabric inside the building, most notably some
changes to the historic layout, but the original character will still be evident in the
changes and these aspects of the proposal could be reversed at a later date. The
relevant details of the key alterations have been submitted with this application and

Development Control Report

132



4.39

4.40

4.41

4.42

this shows that the alterations have been carefully considered and can be achieved
in a way which is sensitive to and compatible with the historic character of the
building and the wider area. Without these details the scheme would not be
considered acceptable.

It is also important to consider that whilst the proposed use does require a change
in the function of the building, it is unlikely that the building has a future as a
department store and alternative uses may require an even greater level of
alteration including greater compartmentalisation of the spaces and more stringent
fire standards as well as the proposed branding of the new venture competing for
prominence against feature such as Haven’s historic signage. On balance, it is
considered that the alterations proposed will have a less than substantial impact on
the heritage asset and are justified in this instance by the public benefits of the
scheme. This proposal is found to be acceptable and compliant with the objectives
of development plan policies as they relate to design, character and heritage
matters.

Impact on Residential Amenity

National Planning Policy Framework (2012); Core Strategy (2007) policies KP2
and CP4; Development Management Document (2015) policies DM1 and DM3
and the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

Policy DM1 of the Development Management Document requires all development
to be appropriate in its setting by respecting neighbouring development and existing
residential amenities “having regard to privacy, overlooking, outlook, noise and
disturbance, sense of enclosure/overbearing relationship, pollution, daylight and
sunlight.”

No extensions are proposed however the scheme will include a new commercial
kitchen which will require roof top plant. This is to be sited on the flat roof of the
existing single storey addition to the rear of the store. This section of the building
backs onto the rear gardens in properties in St Helen’s Road and St John’s Road.
There would be approximately 15-20m between the proposed plant and the nearest
residential property to the east and approximately 5m to the end of their rear
gardens. It is also noted that there are some flats above shops adjacent to the site
on Hamlet Court Road. These will be screened from the proposed plant area by the
main part of the Havens building.

No details have been provided for the plant that will be required in this area but it is
noted that the area of flat roof here is substantial and, given the distances involved,
it is considered that the details of the plant, including ensuring acceptable noise
levels, could in this case be agreed by condition. This is consistent with advice
provided by Environmental Health.

Traffic and Transportation
National Planning Policy Framework (2012); Core Strategy (2007) policies

KP2, CP3 and CP4; Development Management Document (2015) policy DM15,
and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

Development Control Report

133



4.43

4.44

4.45

4.46

4.47

4.48

4.49

4.50

4.51

The site has no off street parking associated with the exiting retail use and none is
proposed as part of the development. This is typical for all the commercial premises
in Hamlet Court Road.

The site is in a very sustainable location close to a variety of forms of public
transport, including a bus layby directly outside the building which can be used for
drop offs, and is near to public car parks. Given the sustainability of the site, the
Council’'s Highways Officer has not raised any objections to the lack of parking.

Servicing and Waste Management

The site has a right of way to the rear across the back of neighbouring properties to
St Helens Road. This is currently used for deliveries and refuse collection and it is
proposed that this will continue in the proposed development.

The plans show that the waste and recycling facilities are located in this area. Four
110 litre euro bins are proposed. These are tucked away in a small section of open
land behind the rear of 15 St Helens Road. This is the same location as the refuse
storage for the existing store. The location is 27m from St Helens Road. It is
considered that a management plan in relation to the servicing of these refuse
facilities could be agreed by condition.

Accessibility for Users

National Planning Policy Framework (2012); Core Strategy (2007) policies KP2
and CP4; Development Management Document (2015) policies DM1, DM3,
DM13 and DM15, and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

It is recognised that the conversion of listed buildings can place restrictions on the
ability of the building to be made adaptable for all users including the less mobile
and those in wheelchairs.

As the proposal is for a conversion of a historic building with statutory listing not a
new build, the Building Regulation requirements in this regard can apply a level of
flexibility, however, the proposal should look to make the scheme as accessible as
possible for users and staff within the constraints of the historic building from
planning and building regulation perspectives.

Age Concern and Club 50+ have confirmed that they are committed to ensuring
that their services are available to all older people living within the Borough of
Southend and the surrounding area. In relation to the adaptation of the building, the
proposal will ensure that all new internal doors go beyond the minimum
requirements of Part M of the Building Regulations, that the building has fully
accessible corridors and toilets including disabled facilities at ground floor and that
all new sockets and services and the reception counter will be at an appropriate
height for all.

The constraints of the existing building relate to the existing main entrance doors,
lift and staircase which are all considered to be historic features which are
important to the character of the building.

The existing entrance doors are double width with a level threshold and are located

Development Control Report

134



4.52

4.53

4.54

4.55

4.56

4.57

directly adjacent to the proposed reception desk. The agent has commented that it
will be difficult to adapt these for automated opening, however, he has confirmed
that staff at the adjacent reception counter will adopt a management plan for
assistance with these doors where it is required.

The building has an old historic lift which is an important feature of the building and
cannot be adapted, however, the agent has confirmed that the size of the lift is
virtually compliant with the regulations already. As with the doors, assistance will be
ensured through a management plan where required. The configuration of the
building is such that it would not be possible to install another lift core without
causing significant harm to the historic fabric and character of the building and this
has not been proposed.

Similarly the existing staircases are important historic features but these already
have handrails and anti-slip flooring. The new enclosure to the staircase at first
floor will be glazed but will have manifestations (stickers) for visibility on the glass
as appropriate.

In regard to this issue it is also noted that Club 50+, in their submission, comment
that their existing premises in Queen Road Southend are located at first floor and
so users are used to accessing the club via lift or stairs. It is also noted that this
facility is at capacity and they are not able to take any new members at present.

In relation to the adaptation of historic buildings Part M of the Building Regulations
states:

‘The need to conserve the special characteristics of historic buildings must be
recognised. They are a finite resource with cultural importance. In such work the
aim should be to improve accessibility where possible, always provided that the
work does not prejudice the character of the historic building or increase the risk of
long term deterioration to the building fabric or fittings.’

Overall it is considered that the applicant has demonstrated that the building will be
made as reasonably and practicably accessible as possible within the constraints of
the historic fabric and that it will be appropriately useable for the intended purpose.
It is therefore compliant with the objectives of development plan policies in this
regard with the recommended conditions. However, this issue will also be
considered fully and separately under the building regulations application.

Sustainability

National Planning Policy Framework (2012); Core Strategy (2007) policies KP2
and CP4; Development Management Document (2015) policies DM1, DM2 and
DM3 and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

The overarching theme of the NPPF is to achieve sustainable development and this
is supported in the policies noted above. Therefore all proposals should seek to
embrace the principles of sustainable development. The current scheme relates to
the conversion of a listed building with no extensions so there is limited scope to
include sustainable measures in the proposal, however, it is considered that that
the new kitchen and wc facilities to the ground floor rear should include water
efficiency measures which can be secured by condition.

Development Control Report

135



4.58

4.59

4.60

4.61

5.1

5.2

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

As this application does not include the conversion to residential use or any new
floorspace, the proposal is not CIL liable.

Conclusion

The retail experience has changed over recent years, with the internet having a
substantial impact on our shopping habits and behaviours. This has resulted in
many high streets and main shopping areas suffering from empty shops or
conversion into domestic uses or office space. The proposed scheme is deemed to
have a limited impact on the significance of the listed building due to the change in
the layouts at ground and first floor and does result in the change of use, however,
the building remains open to for the public to enjoy and use and the significant
majority of historic features are retained. The proposed works are considered
reversible where appropriate, with only a limited amount of loss of historic fabric. It
is also recognised that the proposal would also give the building a medium to long
term viable use for the future and in providing a number of public and community
benefits is a worthy addition to the area. The proposed use and associated public
benefits are therefore deemed to outweigh the limited loss of historic fabric and
impact on the significance to this Grade Il listed building and the frontage of
townscape merit.

In relation to the other issues the principle of the change of use in this particular
case is found to support the vitality and viability of the primary shopping frontage
including having regard to the scale and nature of the potential footfall. It is
considered that the proposal would have an acceptable impact on the amenities of
neighbouring occupiers subject to the use of appropriate conditions and that the
proposal would meet the objectives of development plan policies on accessibility.
The highways impacts of the proposal are also acceptable.

Having taken all material planning considerations and other relevant matters into
account, it is found that subject to compliance with the attached conditions, the
proposals would, on balance, be acceptable and compliant with the objectives of
the relevant development plan policies and guidance. The applications for planning
and listed building consent are therefore recommended for approval subject to
conditions.

Planning Policy Summary
The National Planning Policy Framework (2012)

Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP1 (Spatial Strategy), KP2 (Development
Principles) CP1(Employment Generating Development), CP2(Town Centre and
Retail Development), CP3 (Transport and Accessibility), CP4 (The Environment
and Urban Renaissance), CP6 (Community Infrastructure) and CP7 (Sport,
Recreation and Green Space)

Development Control Report

136



5.3

5.4

6.1

6.2

6.3

Development Management Document (2015) Policies DM1 (Design Quality), DM2
(Low Carbon and Development and Efficient Use of Resources) DM3 (Efficient and
Effective Use of Land) and DM5 (Southend-on-Sea’s Historic Environment), DM15
(Sustainable Transport Management)

The Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009)
Representation Summary
Historic England

On the basis of information available to date, Historic England do not wish to offer
any comments. We would therefore suggest that you seek the views of your
specialist conservation advisor and other consultees.

Environmental Health

The application is proposing to change the use of the premises, with the ground
floor making reference to a cafe serving hot and cold food/drink and a workshop
providing a space to carry out woodwork and metal work. The first floor is to
accommodate an area providing dance/keep fit sessions also. The premises is
located within a shopping parade but also has residential property located within
the surrounding vicinity.

Details of mechanical extract system to the cafe for the proposed hot food business
and the work shop providing metal/wood work were not provided. These could have
the potential to cause odour and noise nuisance. Therefore a suitable mechanical
extract ventilation system would be necessary to prevent this. There is also no
reference to any air condition/handling plant or acoustic attenuation for the first
floor.

During the construction phase noise issues may also arise which could lead to the
hours of work being restricted.

Conditions are suggested in relation to the following

1. Details of proposed plant
2. Noise restrictions in relation to plant and exhaust systems
3. Noise in relation to construction

Highways

There are no highway objections to this proposal the site benefits from being in a
sustainable location with regard to public transport with bus and rail services in
close proximity. Public car parks are also available within the local area.

It is not considered that the proposal will have a detrimental impact upon the public
highway.

Twentieth Century Society

Development Control Report

137



6.4

6.5

Havens is a striking example of the department store architecture of the interwar
period, and an unusually intact survivor, retaining both shop fronts and internal
features. Havens was listed at Grade Il in 2016 for the architectural interest of its
facade, intactness of its internal shopfloor furnishings and as a historic record of
interwar shopping habits.

The Twentieth Century Society notes the proposed change of use of this
department store and supports any use for this building that is compatible with its
special interest and allows the building to be available to the public and
appreciated. We note that no alterations are to be made to the exterior of the shop
and welcome the restoration of the vertical signage. However, the Society
considers it regrettable that, although retained to a great extent, the highly
significant original and unaltered internal shop fittings will no longer be visible and
the open interior of the ground floor compromised. Historic England highlight the
significance of these elements in their list description and reasons for listing stating
‘internally Havens retains distinctive elements of its mid-1930s design, not least its
many original shopfloor furnishings, the pair of grand staircases...’.

The Society objects to the boxing in of the swept wooden staircase which is a key
feature of the listed building. The Society urges that an alternative solution be
found to the boxing in of the staircase. As the Council will be aware, listed buildings
are subject to special considerations under the Building Regulations in order to
preserve their special interest and there is no general requirement to upgrade a
building to a level which is any more satisfactory than compliance before the
alteration works were undertaken. We would request that the local authority advise
the applicants to explore the feasibility of a fire engineered solution here, which
would avoid significantly harming the special character of the building and the
damaging alterations to the staircase.

[Officer Comment: These comments relate to the original submitted
proposals which have now been substantially amended and reconsulted
upon. The key changes include the removal of the lobby to the ground floor
staircase and the revision of the ground floor layout including changes to the
partitioning to better respect the existing layout and historic features. Full
details of these aspects of the proposal have now been submitted and are
discussed in Section 4 above. The Consultees of this application have been
re-consulted on the amended proposals. Any revised comment will be
reported in the Supplemental Committee Report. ]

Hamlet Court Conservation Forum

We wish to register our strong objection to these applications. We combine our
comments on both applications as appropriate.

Application 17/02074/FUL appears to be incomplete in its description as it does not
reflect the proposed change in use to the second floor. At present and historically
we believe that this planning use is storage in conjunction with the existing retail
use. As the retail use is proposed to be replaced with D1 & D2 uses the second
floor can no longer be storage in conjunction with that expunged use. We believe
that the proposed use class B8 should apply to the second floor.

Development Control Report

138



[Officer Comment: The second floor is currently used as offices in relation to
the existing retail business including online sales. This will remain
unchanged in the proposal. No change of use is proposed for the second
floor under this application.]

Let us say at the outset that we are very supportive of Age Concern and the good
works that they undoubtedly do across the country. We are also supportive of good
new uses to historic buildings providing these uses cause no harm. We have no
objection to the proposed use in principle but, as we shall describe, the scale of the
proposed use brings with it many spatial and technical problems that would cause
substantial harm to the listed building.

We must also say that we are very sympathetic towards Havens and the challenges
they are faced with in a changing retail landscape. We have made this clear to
them. However, although a readily interested potential leaseholder may well be
attractive to Havens, this cannot justify consent. The material circumstances of a
landlord are not a material planning consideration.

We note that the applications have not received any planning nor Heritage pre-
application advice, which is very apparent.

The applicant draws comparison with ‘a similar model’ operating in Eastbourne and
describes the support of all concerned in the application. Unfortunately, this is a
misleading comparison with fundamental differences. Firstly, and most importantly,
the Havens site is a nationally Listed Building in a street of historic significance and
the Eastbourne building is a modest, non-historically significant building in a non-
historically part of Eastbourne. Havens was Listed as recently as 2016 and the
Listing was supported by the 20" Century Society. It was also supported on Twitter
by Kathryn Morrison of Historic England, author of ‘English Shops & Shopping’. Its
historic interest is described by Historic England as:

‘a fine example of an inter-war department store built in an outer-urban
location drawing upon the major metropolitan designs of the period; this
demonstrating the growing popularity of the department store in smaller
towns across the country during a period of great change to the nation’s
shopping habits’

This is very significant for Southend-on-Sea and Havens is one of only two local,
nationally Listed retail stores. The building unquestionably referenced the London
metropolis and this is particularly evident in the Grade II* Listed ‘Heals’ store. It is a
building type that is very rare in the regions and is therefore very significant for the
south east of England. The building has architectural interest described by Historic
England in the Art Deco style which is very significant in the Westcliff-on-Sea area,
elsewhere in Hamlet Court Road and notably at nearby Sunray House and Argyle
House. The building is an early regional example of an open spaced, steel framed,
retail store and most of the original features, including internal features, are intact.
Historic England cite the ‘level of survival’ as a reason for Listing.

Familiarity must not allow relaxation of this significance and Southend must see this
as amongst our most important historical and architectural assets, to be protected
and cherished.

Development Control Report
139



As a local action group we recognise this and are actively pursuing conservation
area designation for the local area and this is before the Council at this time. We
urge that this application is seen in the context of its historical setting whereby
Hamlet Court Road was formerly and affectionately known as the Bond Street of
the east.

There is a further reason that the applicant comparison with Eastbourne is
misleading. Havens is a store with a deep, land locked plan, where no almost no
natural light and ventilation penetrates, except at the front of the first floor. The
Eastbourne example has a wide external frontage, opens on three sides and
therefore able to take in light and natural ventilation. It is suited to an uncomplicated
and moderately scaled community use but Havens is not. The proposal subdivides
the open spaces, directly contradicting the original design and creating spaces that
have to rely upon heavy servicing with artificial lighting and ventilation. It would
actually be quite an unpleasant place and this can be seen in the contrived spatial
planning. This is not suitable for the elderly and in planning terms alone highly
questionable.

Most notably the applicant does not describe any details for partitioning, ceilings
and particularly ventilation. This is a fundamental omission from the application.
Listed buildings require very careful intervention design in considerable detail
showing, for example, how historic wall panelling and ceilings will be protected. The
proposed internal kitchen, tea servery, chiropody room, multiple toilets and room
after room of artificially illuminated, cell like spaces all need ventilation — a lot of
ventilation. The deep plan will exacerbate this with accumulated air volumes and
duct sizes. But there is no proposal for this crucial servicing. This would result in
substantial harm to the Listed building interior and therefore would not satisfy the
requirements of Council policy DM5 nor the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF), particularly paragraph 133. On these grounds alone the application should
be rejected.

[Officer Comment: Details of the partitions have been revised and full
amended details have now been submitted which include ventilation and
glazing and details of how the partitions will relate to the existing historic
features. Full details of services and lighting to these areas will be
conditioned. The partitioning of the front section of the ground floor has now
been omitted from the scheme.]

Then there is the stair and lift and the whole question or separation of uses. The
applicant describes the second floor as retained for Havens commercial, internet
based, retail use. The lift serves this floor and we assume is essential for goods
movements. But the lift also necessarily serves the proposed Age Concern
occupied ground and first floors. Apart from the issue of no fire separation this just
appears to be the very worst of planning clashes, simply not thought through. The
stair and the lift both land in cafe area of the ground floor, again producing a fire
separation and use conflict.

[Officer Comment: Fire separation has been carefully considered in the
proposal. However, this is ultimately a matter for the building regulations.
The applicant has explained that there will be full integration of uses within
the building and each party is fully committed to this relationship.]

Development Control Report
140



However, the enclosure of the stair with basic partitioning is a most upsetting
corruption of the historic building’s interior. This swept stair was always intended to
be prominent in the space, inviting access to the first floor, part of the ease of
connectivity between the levels and the planning of great retail stores. Elsewhere,
throughout the proposal, the partitioning is doing the same thing, subdividing the
open historic spaces — a fundamental part of the special interest of this building.
This destruction of the space, driven by the needs of the proposed use, is certain to
cause substantial harm. In other words, the proposed use, at this scale in a deep
plan building is wholly inappropriate.

[Officer Comment: The ground floor stair lobby has been omitted from the
scheme. Full details of the first floor stair lobby have since been provided
and show this to be a ‘light touch’ glazed screen which will enable views of
the staircase to be maintained. The layout and partitioning of the ground floor
has also been substantially revised since these comments were submitted.]

Section 130 of the NPPF requires an applicant to describe the significance of an
historic asset. The applicants Heritage Statement is, in the first place, vague,
stating in various places ‘Refer to Survey’, ‘To be expended [sic],'To be
Confirmed’, and ‘To be Completed’. The statement lists the building’s significance
as a few bullet points without any detail that demonstrates an understanding of the
special interest or significance of this wonderfully intact building. We have referred
to this significance above and Historic England have laid this out clearly in the
Listing. We request that the significance of this building is thoroughly understood in
determining this application.

[Officer Comment: The Heritage Statement has been revised and expanded
and it is considered that sufficient information is available to assess the
proposal.]

Section 131 of the NPPF states that ‘In determining planning applications, local
planning authorities should take account of...the positive contribution that
conservation of heritage assets can make to sustainable communities including
their economic vitality’. There is little doubt that Havens, as a focal, iconic building
in Hamlet Court Road plays a vital role in the street and the wider area so can play
a vital focal role in helping to sustain the community. But this cannot be looked at
without also considering the potential for good and viable future use. Section 133 is
quite clear when it states that where development would lead to substantial harm,
as self-evidently it would here, planning authorities should refuse consent where ‘no
viable use of the heritage asset itself can be found in the medium term through
appropriate marketing that will enable its conservation’. Havens has remained
trading since its announced closure only a few months ago so by any measure it
patently fails this ‘medium term’ marketing test. The building has not been marketed
for long enough to seek a good alternative use whereby the open interior might be
largely protected. Such uses might include another retailer, multiple retail
concessions, mixed experiential retailing including cafe culture or even, perhaps, a
large, well designed restaurant use — or a mix of these uses. Other, open plan
community uses might be possible with limited service rooms at the rear. None of
this has been afforded the time for potential realisation and we can say that we
would be willing to assist this marketing process to achieve an outcome that
protects the building, as best we can.

Development Control Report
141



[Officer Comment: Havens have provided a detailed appraisal of the business
itself but also of the sector including the challenges facing this scale of
department store. This is discussed in more detail in Section 4 above.]

Elsewhere, but particularly in sections 132 & 133 of the NPPF the obligation to
protect heritage assets from harm is clear.

In simple planning terms the proposal for 2" floor distribution is not really credible.
Yes, this use appears to work now, in conjunction with the existing ground and first
floor retail uses. But with the retail use removed and replaced with ‘community’
uses this does not work and this can be seen in the poor use and fire separation
but moreover in the difficulty in servicing daily distribution and goods deliveries from
second floor level.

[Officer Comment: The credibility of the business is not a planning concern,
however, it is noted that the online business has operated from the 2" floor
offices since 1999 and has been viable since this time. It is understood that
there is also an off-site storage facility for the goods themselves that works
in association with this space. ]

We are also aware of comments in the press whereby the property owner’s belief
that the proposal would ‘lead to the revitalisation of Hamlet Court Road’ is reported.
We contend that this is very unrealistic and there is no evidence that a community
use of this type has the ability to revitalise a former retail street into new mixed
uses. Regeneration of Hamlet Court Road is a key part of our work and this will
only work with the comprehensive support of numerous agencies and ultimately the
wider public across a multiplicity of uses. The heritage of the street is vitally
important in achieving revitalisation as has been shown by Historic England through
their Heritage Action Zone programme and recently by the DCMS in their ‘The role
of culture, sport and heritage in place shaping’ document published in August 2017.
Heritage can assist economic regeneration and must be supported not harmed.

[Officer Comment: It is the Councils view that it is not an unreasonable
conclusion that the use of this building as a community hub for older
persons will bring additional footfall in the wider Hamlet Court Road district
centre and that this will contribute to the vitality and viability of the area.]

On so many levels this is a badly presented application that would clearly do great
harm to the historic building. We are very thankful that the building was recently
Listed as without it the town could be facing a great loss. We have seen recently
the great losses of the Britannia Public House and The Grand Public House as we
have known it. As a town we have to consider our few and diminished historic
assets of great importance and value to society. Loss of an historically significant
interior that would substantially harm a rare and historically important 1930’s Art
Deco retail store, a building whose heritage has the ability to support regeneration
in Hamlet Court Road, must not be allowed.

We sincerely hope that Age Concern can find a viable building for their valuable
work but Havens is demonstrably not right for this purpose so we respectfully ask
for refusal of both planning and Listed Building consent.

Development Control Report
142



[Officer Comment: These comments relate to the original submission. The
content and quality of detail submitted in support of the application has been
significantly amended since these comments were received. The current
proposals are assessed in the above report.]

Further comments received following revised plans

Further to our submitted comments of 3/1/18 we wish to add further comments
following the submission of further information by the applicant. As before our
comments relate to both applications as appropriate.

We still consider this a very poor quality, misplaced application. When a
considerable volume of information is supplied during a delayed application
process, as here, it is evident that the original application had weaknesses, great
weaknesses in this case. Rushed and sketchy as it is we don’t think the additional
information changes this. And we reiterate that reference to a similar scheme in
Eastbourne is irrelevant as that particular facility does not concern an historic
building, let alone a Listed Building. The fact that the applicant makes reference to
this building and submits late and partial details of the intervention, demonstrates
the applicant’s lack of understanding of Listed Buildings and harm.

We would also say up front that the community does care for this building — the
Listing came from a community application. The retail and restaurant communities
in the road are likely to regret the potential loss of a key retailer, as are the local
residential community. So there is certainly more just the application’s stated
community interest to be considered here.

We strongly reiterate that we are fully supportive and respectful of Age Concern,
their good works and general provision of community facilities but we shall describe
why this is very wrong and harmful at this particular building - at Havens.

We also reiterate that we are very supportive of adaptive change in protecting both
the fabric and the viable future of historically significant buildings, but this does not
mean that any change, or the first potential change that comes along, is necessarily
right. Change has to be very carefully considered, especially with Listed buildings,
where the protection of the historical asset is foremost, as directed by the NPPF.

We respectfully ask that this building is truly recognised for its historical and
architectural significance in Southend-on Sea and the East of England region and
the application is refused planning and Listed Building consents.

Reasons for refusal and summary of our further response

1. The application fails to recognise the buildings historical and architectural
significance

2. Great harm would result to the Listed Building

3. The poor quality of the proposed planning

4. Havens view of context and alternative use is misplaced and backward
looking

5. The application’s claimed public benefit is misplaced

Development Control Report
143



Conclusion

Havens is a building with the same Listing classification as the Palace Theatre, not
the same the as the recently lost, unlisted Britannia Hotel nor the Grand Hotel with
its approved change of use. Familiarity and recent Listing must not breed
complacency and this special significance is of great value in our town. The building
must be protected. We would respectfully urge Age Concern to recognise the
shortcomings of their plans that require a more suitable site and Havens to re-
consider a retail based solution (perhaps adopting the mixed methodology
succeeding elsewhere - see context section below).

Turning to our detail response we have broken this down into the above listed
sections, as follows.

1. The application fails to recognise the buildings historical and architectural
significance

The applicant now charts the significance of the building with assessment
classifications of ‘Considerable’ significance against the  building’s
‘Social/Historical’, ‘Architectural’, ‘Historical’, ‘Aesthetic’ and ‘Historic Fabric’
aspects. The first and last of these are particularly important as they relate
respectively to the regional significance of an early retail store, clearly referencing
the metropolis, and the extent of original, intact fabric. So important are these that
the Secretary of State itemises these points in the Listing.

However, in charting all this 'considerable’ significance the applicant concludes
their Heritage Statement with these words:

‘The proposed use and associated public benefits are deemed to outweigh the
limited loss of historic fabric and significance (due to the loss of a small section of
low level wall to the first floor) to this Grade Il listed building.’

This limits significance to a small amount of historic fabric being lost and clearly
ignores the earlier charted significance. This is a failure to appreciate Havens
historical and architectural significance (as we described in our earlier submission).
We shall now further identify this significance by describing the harm that would
result from this proposal.

2. Great harm would result to the Listed Building

The NPPF at section 133 is express in its requirement that ‘Where a proposed
development will lead to substantial harm to or total loss of significance of a
designated heritage asset local planning authorities should refuse consent’ unless
public benefit outweighs the harm. The harm caused by this application manifests
itself in several ways as follows below. Additionally the NPPF Section 131 refers to
viable uses ‘consistent with their [the building’s] conservation’. The proposed use is
manifestly not consistent with the building’s conservation as explained below:

e First and foremost, the proposal would result in the loss of the retail use of
the historic building. Retail is the very reason this building exists and is
central to the building’s history, significance, design and open plan structure,
so innovative at the time it was built. The Secretary of State itemises this in

Development Control Report
144



the Listing.

[Officer Comment: The proposal retains a sizable public café in the front
section of the ground floor which will ensure that a fully active presence is
maintained at ground floor and in the streetscene.]

e The loss of retail use to the most significant shop in HCR would greatly harm
local retailing, particularly future recovery to local retailing. Havens sits in the
centre of the Local Planning Framework’s designated Primary Retail area for
HCR. This could adversely impact the viability of other shops which in turn
could impact on the historic area.

[Officer Comment: see previous comment. It is also considered that the
proposal would contribute to the footfall in the area which will support the
viability and viability of the district centre.]

e The intended open nature of the ground and first floors, as long view,
expansive and ambitious developments in early retailing would be greatly
harmed by the proposed partitioning infill.

[Officer Comment: A significant amount of the ground floor area will be
maintained as open plan and will appear to be open plan when seen from the
street through the display windows. The proposed partitions to the rear
section will be fully reversible and could easily be removed at a later date to
return to the original planform.]

e The major fittings, most notably the open staircase at first floor level but also
shop fitting and interior design features are corrupted by the introduced
partitions and cellular rooms.

[Officer Comment: The enclosure of the first floor staircase is important for
fire safety and great care has been taken to ensure that this intervention has
a light touch and that the staircase itself remains a feature at first floor. It is
likely that any use of the building would require a similar or greater level of
fire protection. As noted above the partitions are subservient to the main
features and space, are fully reversible and acceptable in terms of their
impact on this heritage asset.]

e Harm could also result from the unresolved planning and design issues
which would require re-design and further intervention, in particular resolving
the non-separation of the proposed D1/D2 use and the existing second floor
‘office’ use. This appears to manifest itself as follows:

e Missing fire protection of the stair and escape route to final exit at
ground floor level which would require further enclosure to the stair
resulting in most significant harm to and corruption of the historical
interior. The application now shows this part of the stair as
‘unprotected’ but it is not clear that this would satisfy the Building
Regulations for the two, separate planning uses proposed.

Development Control Report
145



[Officer Comment: The proposal has been passed by specialist fire
consultants in this regard. However, these are matters for the Building
Regulations and would require separate consent through this regime. Any
changes which would impact upon the historic fabric would require a fresh
application for listed building consent.]

e Missing fire separation to the lift, assuming that this is essential to
both a second floor internet sales company moving goods and the
elderly persons’ use of the first floor. The required separation would
appear to destroy the planning and would hugely harm the open
historic interior. There are also the questions of whether the existing
lift meets modern safety standards and is a second, modern lift
required, where this might fit into the plan and how could this impact
on the historic fabric?

[Officer Comment: The second floor would not be used for the storage of
goods, this occurs at an offsite facility.]

¢ Absence of any toilets to the separate second floor ‘office’. This may
require ducting of services which could cause harm to the fabric of the
building.

[Officer Comment: No toilets are proposed at second floor, it is intended that
the uses share services. However it is noted that the 2" floor of the building
is specifically excluded in the listing description and therefore there is scope
for future change in this location without impacting on the significance of the
listed building.]

e Absence of any proper proposals for dealing with ducted ventilation
which will certainly be required for all the internal rooms and could
harm the historic building fabric. This is still not shown in the
submitted information.

[Officer Comment: The agent has confirmed that there are already ducts
within the existing false ceiling at ground floor which link to the existing air
conditioning units. If additional ductwork it required this could also be
located within the false ceiling void without impacting on the significance of
the building.]

e The general partitioning details are basic at best with simple timber
sections and many important details are not described. For example,
there are no servery details, reception details, furniture plans (do the
rooms even work as required), details affecting historic panelling,
finishing to the neoprene protection and fixing details. All these
unanswered questions have the capacity for harm to the historic
fabric.

[Officer Comment: The details of the servery and reception counters can be
agreed by condition to ensure that their design and materials are compatible
with the character of the listed building. The agent has advised that the
panelling behind the modern wall units is to be repaired only and this
therefore does not require specific consent.]

Development Control Report
146



3. The poor quality of the proposed planning

There are general planning quality issues, as follows, which when resolved could
impact on the historic building:

e The overriding problem is that Havens is effectively a very large lock-up
shop with all but an emergency exit entering and leaving the building through
the street frontage. The building has a deep plan and no natural light to three
sides. This has caused great planning problems, described throughout this
text, which show that the building is simply not suitable for the intended use.

e The internal rooms created and re-used for community purpose would all be
of very poor quality with no natural light. This is contrived planning for the
elderly and far from creating an uplifting community facility could lead to a
depressing and fatiguing, all artificially lit environment, perhaps exacerbating
not aiding patrons’ health issues.

[Officer Comment: The deep plan will be a constraint for any use. It is
envisaged that there will be a need for new lighting to the ground floor and
the details of this can be agreed by condition to ensure that it is compatible
with the character of the building. It is noted that the existing lighting in this
location is of a poor quality strip lighting which has a negative impact on the
listed building. The Council will be looking to secure an enhancement in
terms of the lighting in this area.]

e We assume that internet sales goods equivalent to say £3,500 in value per
day (from the applicant’s stated figures), which must represent many
packages, will either be carried down two floors of stairs or carried across
the ground floor from the lift, conflicting with the main ground floor circulation
area in community use? Neither of these alternatives works. It is one thing
running internet sales from the whole premises with plenty of space for
goods dispatch but quite another from a separated second floor use.

[Officer Comment: see comments above.]

e The ground floor restaurant, in the forefront of the Listed building, has no
submitted design. Rather it shows a plan layout with seating for 52
immediately inside one of the entrance doors and immediately in front of the
servery. This simply does not work and what is the servery — how does it
enhance the Listed building. The alternative plan showing seating for 48
does not work — are elderly people expected to sit right beside an external
door or blocking access around the servery?

[Officer Comment: The seating plan for the café is indicative and the exact
seating arrangement and use of the servery will be decided by the operator.]

e The kitchen could almost be no further remote from the areas where the food

is required. This will result in health & safety and basic functioning problems.

Development Control Report
147



[Officer Comment: The kitchen has been relocated to the rear of the building
where it will have less impact on the historic layout and fabric.]

e There is no parking nor vehicular drop-off - both essential to this proposed
use. Any assisted vehicular access can only happen with parking spaces
being available outside the premises, which is unlikely in an area of parking
stress, or vehicles stopping in the highway. This is very problematic.

[Officer Comment: There is a bus stop close to the site which can be used for
drop off.]

4. Havens view of context and alternative use is misplaced and backward looking.

The applicant (in its Havens statements) does not note any positivity in Hamlet
Court Road yet there is much, despite the general past decline. Firstly, the road still
retains a distinct local sense of public place and occupation — it feels busy,
particularly at the top end. There is still footfall, albeit limited, in the road, even late
at night, particularly when compared with the High Street. This is largely due to the
convenience retailers and the number of local restaurants still staying viable. New
bars have opened at The Foundry and the nearby West Road Tap, and the Hamlet
succeeds. Three of the four new shops in Canewdon Road are now let and
awaiting occupation. Tesco’s and the Co-op have both recently invested in re-fits to
their convenience stores — something that would not be happening without a belief
in the future viability of the road. ENS have invested in new premises and Choices
Healthcare are investing right now at no.152. And generally Westcliff is
experiencing a significant uptake of Londoners moving east for better value and
quality of life and this is starting to impact the area. Add to this the uprising of the
local community in our Forum where partnerships are being formed (with the YMCA
and The Cultural Assembly to begin with), events planned (a ‘Love Hamlet Court
Road’ event coming this summer) and there are good ingredients for a better,
regenerated future.

The applicant’s claim is that the loss of the shop was a consequence the decline of
HCR as generally in the British high street. We have already made it clear that we
both understand the transformation in the British High Street and sympathise with
retailers dealing with the nationwide decline of and changes to retailing — this
includes Havens. It is clear that traditional department stores are generally
declining in all but the busiest city centres although there are exceptions such the
Morley’s stores in Bexleyheath and Brixton, and The Department Store (the old Bon
Marché) in Brixton, is particularly interesting for its mix of retail, workshops and
restaurants. Look locally at the apparently succeeding Potters in Hockley and it can
be seen how dining and kitchenware retailing in less than a thriving area can
succeed. So the closure of Havens was certainly not inevitable as is suggested.
This means that the right retail can succeed here.

Havens have only considered the following alternative uses for their building :

. Conversion to full residential use

. Part conversion to residential use, with retail/café/restaurant/ etc to
ground floor

. Conversion for leisure purposes, such as slot machines, bars, etc

. Conversion for office use

Development Control Report
148



. Convert into community hub/ centre
. Building is ‘mothballed’ until a medium — long term sustainable option
is found’

The suggestion of a slot machine use is a ridiculous and unnecessary suggestion.

The option that has not been considered is the most obvious one - retail. Havens
describe their store as ‘an anachronism in today’s era’ and whilst this appears to be
the case with most traditional department stores,

It need not be, as we point out above (particularly The Department Store, Brixton).
The challenge is great but collaborative mixed and complementary, retail-based
use is possible. How good this would be in the tradition of the Havens store.

Havens was historically central to the retailing significance and whilst the store has
been through the evolutionary cycle there is evidence that this could change again.
Convenience, experiential, click & collect and wunified retailing (see
https://www.retail-week.com/retail-voice/unified-retail-and-the-future-of-
shopping/7028495.article?authent=1) appear to be the way forwards and Havens
could again be central in helping this. Indeed, it looks like isolating their internet
operation from the high street store could be a mistake for Havens. We know of a
successful local jeweller whose separated internet sales failed completely but a
second website, unified with the real store presence succeeds well. This is
becoming a well described format - see: https://marketingland.com/no-longer-brick-
mortar-vs-online-retail-customers-view-single-lens-218307.

[Officer Comment: It is understood from the Havens that a Click and Collect
facility could operate from the reception desk at ground floor in conjunction
with the other uses.]

Forward thinking town planning, considering this future and not the Havens
described past, should therefore support protecting the existing, established retail
use - the local planning framework defined retail use. Yes, a new occupant or
perhaps multiple occupants are needed but the premises have not been fully
marketed, by the applicant’'s own admission. Marketing since May 2017 clearly is
short term yet the NPPF section 133 refers to an express requirement for marketing
‘in the medium term’ for another occupier, before alternative development is
permitted. The application fails this important test.

[Officer Comment: It should be noted that the proposal maintains an active
town centre use in the front section of the building facing the street and this
is to the benefit of the proposal both in terms of the character of the building
and the wider streetscene of Hamlet Court Road.]

5. The application’s claimed public benefit is misplaced

The NPPF at section 133 expressly calls for refusal of consent ‘unless it can be
demonstrated that the substantial harm or loss is necessary to achieve substantial
public benefits that outweigh that harm or loss’. The application suggests that the
proposed Age Concern community use will itself aid regeneration. There is
absolutely no evidence to support this opinion and we suggest the loss of the focal
retailing presence in the road to a limited user group of low spenders could actually

Development Control Report
149


https://www.retail-week.com/retail-voice/unified-retail-and-the-future-of-shopping/7028495.article?authent=1
https://www.retail-week.com/retail-voice/unified-retail-and-the-future-of-shopping/7028495.article?authent=1
https://marketingland.com/no-longer-brick-mortar-vs-online-retail-customers-view-single-lens-218307
https://marketingland.com/no-longer-brick-mortar-vs-online-retail-customers-view-single-lens-218307

do the reverse and work against regeneration. The intensive scale of the proposed
use, at this particular Havens site, could actually bring dis-benefit. That is not to say
the elderly community are not a very important part of the social mix that needs
supporting in HCR (as elsewhere) and that this could not work at this site, perhaps
as a smaller part of a socially mixed project. However, the case for public benefit
outweighing the clear harm is not made.

[Officer Comment: It is considered that level of harm caused in this case does
not represent substantial harm. In relation to less than substantial harm the
NPPF comments that:

134. Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to
the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed
against the public benefits of the proposal, including securing its optimum
viable use.

Public benefits in this sense relates to the fulfiiment of one or more of the
objectives of sustainable development as set out in the NPPF (economic,
social and environmental) and provided the benefits will endure for the wider
community and not just for private individuals or corporations. An
assessment of the scheme in this regard is set out in earlier sections of this
report.]

With respect to Age Concern elderly people do not need to be institutionalised
together, no matter how many games and consulting rooms are provided. They
need to mix with all age groups, particularly children. This proposal does not allow
for intergenerational contact and this is not just our opinion. Age UK actually states
as a written policy ‘...public, private and third sector service providers should
support initiatives that promote greater intergenerational contact to combat ageism’
(see: https://www.ageuk.org.uk/globalassets/age-uk/documents/policy-
positions/cross-cutting-issues/ppp_ageism_and _age equality gb.pdf). The plans
do not make space for intergeneration occupancy, particularly for children and
teenagers. The claimed rationale, in this building, is misplaced.

[Officer Comment: The proposal includes intergenerational facilities for
example it is noted that the café at ground floor is open to all.]

We have absolutely no doubt about the applicant’s very best and sincere intentions
but an imaginative multi-generational approach in a suitable building, with good
natural light and good access, appears to be more appropriate for elderly persons
care in the 215t century. If this can happen where no harm occurs to an important
Listed Building, so much the better.

[Officer Comment: These points are responded to in full in this report where
they represent material planning considerations.]

Public Consultation

Development Control Report
150


https://www.ageuk.org.uk/globalassets/age-uk/documents/policy-positions/cross-cutting-issues/ppp_ageism_and_age_equality_gb.pdf
https://www.ageuk.org.uk/globalassets/age-uk/documents/policy-positions/cross-cutting-issues/ppp_ageism_and_age_equality_gb.pdf

6.6

7.1

7.2

01

02

03

Two site notices were displayed, a press notice was published and 27 neighbours
were consulted on the application. 13 responses have been received at the time of
writing all supporting the proposals. The letters comment that the proposal will:

e provide an important resource for older persons

¢ the combination of uses will make access to services easier

¢ the proposal will foster friendships and combat loneliness on older people in
the area

e the proposal has health and wellbeing benefits

¢ increase footfall in Hamlet Court Road

The application has been called to Development Control Committee by Councillor J
Garston.

Relevant Planning History

11/01425/FUL - Install 2 flagpoles with three antennas each on roof, along with
associated equipment cabinets and works — refused

01/01401/FUL - Erect flag pole to enclose three antennas, two wall mounted dishes
and one equipment cabinet on roof. — granted

Recommendation

Members are recommended to GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to
the following conditions:

The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years of
the date of this decision

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans TP-X01B, TP-X02, TP-01B, TP-02, TP-03

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
Development Plan.

The proposed roof lights, lantern and replacement external staircase to the
rear roof shall be constructed of glass and black painted metal.

Reason: To safeguard the significance of the listed building in accordance
with Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1, DM3
and DM5 of the Development Management Document (2015) and advise
contained within the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

Development Control Report

151



04

05

06

07

The infilling of the window to the first floor rear shall only be carried out
using reclaimed brick and lime mortar to match the existing building.

Reason: To safeguard the significance of the listed building in accordance
with Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1, DM3
and DM5 of the Development Management Document (2015) and advise
contained within the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

The development hereby approved shall not be occupied or brought into use
until refuse and recycling storage facilities are provided in full at the site in
accordance with those shown on approved drawing reference TP-03. The
refuse and recycling facilities shall be permanently maintained as such
thereafter.

Reason: To ensure that the development is satisfactorily serviced and that
satisfactory waste management is undertaken in the interests of highway
safety and visual amenity and to protect the character of the surrounding
area, in accordance with Policies KP2 and CP3 of the Core Strategy (2007)
and Policy DM15 of the Development Management Document (2015) 2015.

The development hereby approved shall not be occupied or brought into use
until a waste management plan and service plan has been submitted to and
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The waste management
and servicing of the development shall thereafter only be carried out in
accordance with the approved details and shall be maintained in perpetuity.

Reason: to ensure that the development is satisfactorily serviced and that
satisfactory waste management is undertaken in the interests of highway
safety and visual amenity and to protect the character of the surrounding
area, in accordance with Policies KP2 and CP3 of the Core Strategy (2007)
and Policy DM15 of the Development Management Document (2015).

Details of all extraction and ventilation equipment to be installed at the site
together with a noise assessment including any necessary mitigation
measures shall be submitted to, and approved by, the Local Planning
Authority before the use hereby approved is commenced. The installation of
extraction equipment shall then be carried out in accordance with the
approved details before the use hereby approved is commenced. With
reference to British Standard 4142 the noise rating level arising from all plant
and extraction/ventilation equipment shall be at least 5dbB(A) below the
prevailing background at 3.5 metres from the ground floor facades and 1m
from all other facades of the nearest noise sensitive property with no tonal or
impulsive character.

Reason: In order to protect the amenities of occupiers of the development
and surrounding residents in accordance with policies KP2 and CP4 of the
Core Strategy (207) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development
Management Document 2015.

Development Control Report

152



08

09

10

11

12

The uses hereby permitted shall not be open to customers outside the
following times: 09:00 to 20:00 on Mondays to Sundays including bank
holidays.

Reason: In order to protect the amenities of occupiers of the surrounding
residential area from noise in accordance with policies KP2 and CP4 of the
Core Strategy DPD1 and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development
Management DPD 2015.

No deliveries or refuse collection shall be taken at or despatched from the
uses hereby approved outside the hours of 08:00 to19:00hours Mondays to
Fridays and 08:00 to 13:00hours on Saturdays nor at any time on Sundays,
Bank or Public Holidays.

Reason: In order to protect the amenities of the surrounding occupiers and to
protect the character and amenities of the area in accordance with policies
KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the
Development Management Document (2015).

Demolition or construction works associated with this permission shall not
take place outside 08:00 hours to 18:00 hours Mondays to Fridays and 08:00
hours to 13:00 hours on Saturdays and at no time Sundays or Bank Holidays.

Reason: In order to protect the amenities of surrounding occupiers s and to
protect the character the area in accordance with policies KP2 and CP4 of the
Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development
Management Document (2015).

Before the development hereby permitted is brought into use a scheme
detailing the provisions to be made to achieve inclusive access for all
members of the community into and around the building shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development
shall be implemented in full accordance with the scheme approved under this
condition prior to the first occupation of the development and thereafter be
maintained and managed in accordance with the approved scheme.

Reason: To ensure that the development is accessible for all members of the
community and to comply with development plan policy.

The only toilets to be installed in the development hereby approved shall be
dual flush (6 to 4 litres) toilets and all taps fitted in the development shall be
spray or flow restricted taps.

Reason: To encourage the efficient use of water in accordance with
development plan policy.

Development Control Report

153



01

02

03

Informatives

The applicant is advised that any new signage is also likely to require
Advertisement Consent and Listed Building Consent.

You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during construction
works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may seek
to recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out when
implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land.
Please take care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and
footpaths in the borough.

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in
determining this application by identifying matters of concern within the
application (as originally submitted) and negotiating, with the Applicant,
acceptable amendments to the proposal to address those concerns. As a
result, the Local Planning Authority has been able to grant planning
permission for an acceptable proposal, in accordance with the presumption in
favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National Planning
Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set out in a report on the
application prepared by officers.

Members are recommended to GRANT LISTED BUILDING CONSENT subject
to the following conditions

The development hereby permitted shall commence not later than 3 years
beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 18 of the Planning
(Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans TP-X01B, TP-X02, TP-01B, TP-02, TP-03, TP-04,
TP-05D, TP-07, TP-08, TP-09, TP-10, TP-11A, TP-12A, TP-13, TP-14, TP-15A

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
Development Plan.

The proposed roof lights, lantern and replacement external staircase to the
rear roof shall be constructed of glass and black painted metal.

Development Control Report

154



04

05

06

07

Reason: To safeguard the significance of the listed building in accordance
with Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1, DM3
and DM5 of the Development Management Document (2015) and advise
contained within the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

The infilling of the window to the first floor rear shall only be carried out
using reclaimed brick and lime mortar to match the existing building.

Reason: To safeguard the significance of the listed building in accordance
with Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1, DM3
and DM5 of the Development Management Document (2015) and advise
contained within the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

No works approved by this consent shall take place until detailed drawings
and details of materials to be used for the ground floor reception counter and
the servery counters at ground and first floor levels at scales of 1:20, 1:10 or
1:1 as appropriate have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the local
planning authority. The works shall only be carried out and in accordance with
the approved details.

Reason: To safeguard significance of the listed building in accordance with
Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1, DM3 and
DMS5 of the Development Management Document (2015) and advise contained
within the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

No works approved by this consent shall take place until detailed drawings
and details of materials, including ironmongery, for the new internal door and
door surrounds to the ground floor access to single storey section, all the
doors to the first floor office/computer/darts area and the new door to the 2
floor staircase lobby area at scales of 1:20, 1:10 or 1:1 as appropriate have
been submitted to and agreed in writing by the local planning authority. The
works shall only be carried out and in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To safeguard significance of the listed building in accordance with
Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1, DM3 and
DMS5 of the Development Management Document (2015) and advise contained
within the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

No works approved by this consent shall take place until details of the
proposed air conditioning units within the new ground floor partitioned space
and any ventilation and extraction equipment to be installed at the site are
submitted to and agreed in writing by the local planning authority. The
development shall only be carried out and in accordance with the approved
details.

Development Control Report

155



08

Reason: To safeguard significance of the listed building in accordance with
Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1, DM3 and
DMS5 of the Development Management Document (2015) and advise contained
within the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

No works approved by this consent shall take place until details of the
proposed water connections and light fittings for the new ground floor
facilities within the partitioned space including public health, hairdressing,
meeting rooms, bereavement, advocacy, and chiropody, have been submitted
to and agreed in writing by the local planning authority. The works shall only
be carried out and in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To safeguard significance of the listed building in accordance with
Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1, DM3 and
DMS5 of the Development Management Document (2015) and advise contained
within the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

Informatives

The applicant is advised that it will be required to reuse the existing doors and
ironmongery at first floor as appropriate.

You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during construction
works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may seek
to recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out when
implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land.
Please take care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and
footpaths in the borough.

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in
determining this application by identifying matters of concern within the
application (as originally submitted) and negotiating, with the Applicant,
acceptable amendments to the proposal to address those concerns. As a
result, the Local Planning Authority has been able to grant planning
permission for an acceptable proposal, in accordance with the presumption in
favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National Planning
Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set out in a report on the
application prepared by officers.

Development Control Report

156



> DWG.TP-04

AW\ DWG.TP-04

3400

HAVENS, 136-140 HAMLET COURT ROAD, WESTCLH - ON - SEA

2070

ACU

.
L
INTERNET BASED OFFICE - RETAINED BY LANDLORD NO CHANGE OF-USE
v Q
7
— r
[ — £
T~ , L
i \
| N
| T H
|
, cl [
T
W —
|
BRI | LIFT
=
E f o
S8
In}
| 3
| 2
: =
W REPOSITION o)
ﬂ A A )

|
, | ﬂ ,
: , 4 - - ,
| —H , , |
W | VO TEA SERVERY
| | |
= QS —
= , | ” \
| | - LW //
| LIFT
, STORE
|
i R I V.V S 1 M
<1 1 5| m| @ ”Tl \i” [
/
\\\\\\\\\ 023 O
\ —_——
\ 1
A i
|
|
|
|
|
\\\\\\\ =l +
|
|
|
|
|
s |
—
= SNV
o |
m |
Sy
w
o
o
<C
(&)
(e
o
[+0]
o~N
e Lo
TABLE TENNIS !
I 1 ;, "
/ “
///// //// |
JIGSAWS 2800 g
4 DARTS ._ ||
830 2770 N e =
% BLOCK-UP
f _ ] :
Or
! R=
g
[ (=]
\\ [re |
e EXTRACT
et | 20 \/H/\A,
= REPLACE METAL STAIRCASE Y
i \\ //t
ACU
X2 ROOFLITE X2 ROOFLITE

,,,,,,,,, | <
1 [aa]
T
| RSO SNV |
D S o Y]
RV RN IRV IR NS
G AN D S
RS K G R
\\\\\ ,\\\\\\T‘\\\\\\\UVH\\L\\JH‘ ‘E‘ —
sy .
/\ b=
/ \ i
| //’ ‘\ | 3 W
) | ELEC | )
ﬁ [l BOLER
‘ | UFT o
ﬁ | m@m
! — - o 2
% J
| [ E— Ll
e e | S | \\\///
[ MEET2 Vo eETol
TN MAKE-UP + HAR
ADVOCACY 1|
: | |/
BEREAVEMENT ) /" CHROPODIST
©
]
EQ. EQ. ﬁﬁ N
PUBLIC HEALTH /| \ " PUBLIC HEALTH
| l
G I )
i [E——— ﬂ
STORE U N
F—— U STORE STORE e
A" ~N
T I N =
| DA%t =
|
. ] Xy
5 = _ KITCHEN - HOT FOOD _ 3

= =
= =]
= =

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

HRST HOOR PLAN

i =7 ©
/
\\\
// \\ // \\
//\\\ ///\\\
XELUX. XELUX.
o
Q|
(o]
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ @
CRAFT WORKSHOP
X X
XELUX. NELUX,
9800

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

NOTES :

KEY - GROUND FLOOR

RETAIN EXISTING SHOPFRONT

REMOVE 1980'S DISPLAY FITTINGS

RETAIN RETAIL DISPLAY

RETAIN/ INCORPORATE WALL SHELVING

FIRE RESISTING GLASS SCREEN

GLAZED WALL DIVIDER - SEE DETAIL ON DWG.
RETAIN ART DECO STYLE ISLAND DISPLAY
INFILL EXISTING ARCH WITH DOORSET LOCATED CENTRAL
CEILING EXTRACT FAN

CEILING UPLIGHT FEATURE RETAINED
RETAIN EXISTING SHOP SHELVING

FORM NEW DOOR OPENING

REMOVE AND RE-USE EXISTING DOOR

RETAIN EXISTING INLAY GLASS BLOCK FLOORING
LATEX/CHIP FOAM PROTECTIVE CARPET BELOW BOWLS MATT

0 1 LAYER FIRELINE PLASTER BOARD FOR 30MINUTE FIRE PROTECTI

P RETAIN CORNICE PROFILES ABOVE 2.40M HIGH
SEE DWG. 1719-TP-10

Q  STUDWORK+PLASTERBOARD PARTITION PAINTED

=S X ITT o mMmoow >

= =

KEY - CONSTRUCTION
== EXISTING BUILDING FABRIC

——= PROPOSED NEW LIGHTWEIGHT STUD WALL+PLASTER FINISH
DEMOLITION

REV. B 19-02-18 LPA REQUESTS
REV. A 19-01-18 LPA REQUESTS

0 1 2 3 4 5

: 1 0 0 scale METRES

PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS

) %Q

ARCHITETQ CTS
©

COPYRIGHT P ROTETCTED

STUDIO 1 www.metsonarchitects.co.uk

LEIGH PARK ROAD LEIGH ON SEA ESSEX

01702 472714 admin@metsonarchitects.co.uk
SCALE. QA1

DATE. NOV—-2017

CLIENT. AGE CONCERN

JOB. 138—140 HAMLET COURT ROAD, WESTCLIFF SSO 7LN

DWG NO. ANA@-.ZU:O‘_ |W

157



This page is intentionally left blank



C-C PROPOSED HEVATION

C-C EXISTING HLEVATION

HAVENS, 136-140 HAMLET COURT ROAD, WESTCLH - ON - SEA

W / _ PC— ™ _
| y _ _
| A A R A
| \ | o
| \ =4 |
| I SE _
|
_ - - F — a _ % ) _
T _ _
| _
” - T S | \ N _m
| =1 _ |
| | STAIR VOID _ _
B | |
7 L.. ~ W _ JA _
ﬂwﬂ w o P~ _| ___bs_ . _____
|
| _ - _
< voﬁ _ Aﬁr ” _‘\oﬁ \ _
’ | 5 s o aiazeD | |
METAL DOOR | PC=PERIMTER CHANNEL METAL FRAME SECTION |
EXTRACT vavamU PLAN _ | DS=EXISTING CEILING DOWN STAND BEAM _
! 3 DWG.1719-TP-09
By ~ a K /"
< _UO ! . ]
o
g
1 PC
B-B PROPOSED ELEVATION
™ \ﬁ ~_

3450

b-b EXISTING ELEVATION

NOTES :

HRST HOOR
STAR ENCLOSURE

0 1 2 3

1 —————

1:5 0 scale METRES

|

TOWN PLANNING

REV.

ARCHITETQ CTS
©

COPYRIGHT P ROTETCTED

STUDIO 1 www.metsonarchitects.co.uk
LEIGH PARK ROAD LEIGH ON SEA ESSEX SS9 2DU

01702 472714 admin@metsonarchitects.co.uk

SCALE. QA1

DATE. JAN—-2018

CLIENT. AGE CONCERN

JOB. 138—140 HAMLET COURT ROAD, WESTCLIFF SSO 7LN

DWG NO. ANA@-H@:OA

159



This page is intentionally left blank



PIPEWORK ROUTE BACK TO EXISTING
ROOF MOUNTED AIRHANDLING UNITS

HAVENS, 136-140 HAMLET COURT ROAD, WESTCLH - ON - SEA

RECEPTION :

PUBLIC HEALTH BEREAVEMENT ADVOCACY

/
S
\
\
3
|
d

=l
|
/

/

i

900 DOOR

ALY

A T R Y

r—-————— = — = — — — = — = 7 \‘Q// \‘&/J \\

N \\lm 7 \

D R

NOM. 12mm DIAMETER FLOW+RETURN PIPEWORK WITHIN EXISTING CEILING VOID

f f
f f
f f
f f
\ﬁ‘mu > | REFER TO FOLLOWING DRAWINGS FOR DETAILS: | | | j
LT , ,
v | DETALL 1 ON DWG.1719-TP—11 | T N - /
n | 7 ' ‘ | i | f
DETAL 2 ON DWG.1719-TP-12 f
\ f | N DN 2D |
WW f SECTION B—B ON DWG.1719-TP—13 f | o /
F—- -
W SECTION C—C ON DWG.1719-TP—14 W ! o \\
AW AW\ ,mv AW
il | | \‘ ’// | N NAYS | N\ NAS | j
S 7 7 L | | /
= L ] - T I
m ! |
| / |
L )
) s
(@) g \
y GLAZED GLAZED / , GLAZED y \ —— ,
g i T - Tt
A — T——77a—1; = v 7 A— — l—
/I e T = = 7 I — A
N \ Sl S j L7 / x| — |
\ \ S S / “ \ =3 | I
N S e 7 \ Sl —
“ .8 i N S| |
> | “ | - 8 S 7 “ 8 |
e “ |
| \
EE N |
| \
. - |
\ |
PUBLIC HEALTH | w | CHIROPODIST MAKE-UP + HAIR W w | SERVERY | 3
| | b | &
| | rl o
f | f m =
a N | =
e . &
e . =
|
— ——— =
2 Il
: T /
T —
PROPOSED HEATING COOLING PIPEWORK WITHIN EXISTING VOID
EQ. EQ.
“““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““ UNDERSIDE ORIGINAL CEILING
,\ /, ~ m ___________ EXSTING SUSPENDED VOID FORMED CIRCA 1960's % \\\\\\ ]
| (I
“ MITSUBISHI WALL MOUNT UNIT
\
\
m 2
[ | [ | [ | [ Z|
[ [ [ [ [ [ [ W ]
7
— \
Sy :
\ =
NN “ =
N “ Y
/#7 B \ o~
ol il m "z
T———— 71 i == % m m
o \
I 7 7 2 w “
= ’
7 [ IR || , il L 1IN || | T |k l) [ | L — f , , g i g L

>|> _V_NQTOMWU W_rm/\}.:oz WALNUT DESK FRAME + INFILL PANELS MATCH ROOM DIVIDERS ﬁlé ENQ@OMWU m_um/\}‘:OZ

GROUND HOOCR
WALL DIVIDER SCREENS

NEW SURFACE MOUNTED LIGHT FITTINGS TO BE AGREED WITH LPA l_IO;\Z v_l>z Z _ Zm

RETAIN ORIGINAL RECESSED UPLIGHTING DETAIL

,\ /, < ﬁ
N REV. D 26-02—18 DOOR LEAF WIDTH CLARIFICATION+ PIPEWORK ADDED
REV. C 20-02—18 UPDATE/ ADJUST DESIGN
REV. B 07-02—18 RE-DESIGN/ RE—DRAW
REV. A 29-01-18 LPA-CURVED GLASS+INTERMEDIATE DIVIDER ADDED
I I I , I I
[ [ [ [ [ [
ol
Lm AN
= AN
23 -
n
N ARCHITECTS
mm @ COPYRIGHT P ROTETCTE D
RW | —— i
& | STUDIO 1 www.metsonarchitects.co.uk
LEIGH PARK ROAD LEIGH ON SEA ESSEX SS9 2DU
01702 472714 admin@metsonarchitects.co.uk
RETAIN EXISTING HERRINGBONE PARQUET FLOOR FINISH 0 1 2 3
A-A EXISTING ELEVATION A ORGNAL SROSE _ — _
SCALE. @A1 1 :5 0 scale METRES
DATE. JAN—-2018
CLIENT. AGE CONCERN

mmoc Z D T_IOOm JOB. 138-140 HAMLET COURT ROAD, WESTCLIFF SSO 7LN
DWG NO. ‘_N‘_Gun_uvuomuo

161



This page is intentionally left blank



il

certifire

CERTIFICATE No CF 291
SCHOTT UK LIMITED

PYRAN S FIRE RESISTING GLASS

PYRAN S within Butt-Jointed Assemblies (Alternative Installation details) for periods of 30
minutes integrity

6, 8,10 and 12 mm thick PYRAN S may be used within butt-jointed assemblies up to maximum pane
dimensions as detailed within Figure 20 and within the following installation specifications.

PYRAN S

20 mm by 6 mm ceramic fibre tape

25 mm by 25 mm by 3 mm thick mild steel angle
Non-combustible packer / setting block

Minimum 50 mm long steel screws fixings at
250 mm centres

Back to Back Steel Angle Detail

50 mm long™steel screws fixings
0 mm centres

REF: 19 - Tp-GF

Chanbél Detail

Jr/‘ 7 A . th
Page 30 of 39 Signed l,/ g ;;i_..ﬁfw Issued: 9" September 2002

Reissued: 12" December 2017

C/002 Validto:  31% March 2018

This certificate is the property of Exovh@3) Limited trading as Warrington Certification
Reg. Office: Exova (UK) Limited, Lochend Industrial Estate, Newbridge, Midlothian EH28 8PL United Kingdom. Co. Reg. No. SC070429




This page is intentionally left blank



st

certifire
CERTIFICATE No CF 291
SCHOTT UK LIMITED

PYRAN § FIRE RESISTING GLASS

PYRAN S within Butt-Jointed Assemblies for periods of 30 minutes integrity

The perimeter of the system is to comprise a framing assembly of steel, concrete, stone or timber as
previously detailed within this data sheet, see page 4 (timber frames) and page 17 (steel frames).
Fireglaze Compound is produced and supplied by Sealmaster Limited.

1 PYRANS
2 Fireglaze compound

7t

Butt-Joint Glazing Details

3 Supporting concrete/stone wall

Alternative Werimeter Detail

; 0 Issued: 9" September 2002
Page 29 of 39 Signed ] Reissued: 12" December 2017

C/002 Validto:  31% March 2018

This certificate is the property of Exovk®8X) Limited trading as Warrington Certification
Reg. Office: Exova (UK) Limited, Lochend Industrial Estate, Newbridge, Midlothian EH28 8PL United Kingdom. Co. Reg. No. SC070429




This page is intentionally left blank



Bishng Gilimg -wo wivks

ON SIONIMYYO SIHL "SOMIMYYD 305 LON 00

o firghe Dol both s8¢
Wty Pasky  painf .

conctaléd Wead st
fov ql%wg %er

450
=
|
HOM ATNO “NOILYDONH3

Glimhve, steel paple . | o
15w wvisile, ednl/ <l |
oy fangy | | 1R

______ g NIL S W 25 8 x7 e : ; | % |
' Wack 1o oot m

Swmm Ppvame §' alags
e
| WMax 50m mph x Ilm Wide

N3O TI% "SNOISNIWIG 03dnald OL A50M A1

20 winvtes {’\% \mkﬂv/i@ :

©

/ 2 @A4
167 S FUPFEe- ™
’ c°  LEIGH PARK ROAD SS9 2DU

A RC

H

LR e

01702 472714

DWG NO.

H0/ONY NOWWDINEYS ANY OL HOIMd Q3¥03HD 38

NYdIHISIO ANY 40 ATALVIOYINAI LO3LHOHY JHL AJILON “MHOM NOILONHELSNOD

5310

1719-TP-09



This page is intentionally left blank



twmy all owvw//mg

§.§ New OM

:?me_‘f\,ﬁ‘( Hony wal Sooups Dwa -0l ve’nc u
T i ot w‘\b@ leve/

{ — Boit fo shvekg,
goncale e X l F & )
Box ) gus to my X :%_é‘vﬂ%\fﬁ\}mwed
M/"@H ' || L p—

=
[=]
=
-~
=
| =
e
F L 1 =
2 ==
] | 7
=
el
[+
= I
=l !
|

s e o Em e w m gm

ISNOD ¥0/ONY NOILYOIdEYS ANY OL H0Rd 03403

e
q&?‘,{;«&w Ay J “’P“”;‘r“fk fo W“"f
al W WV :
i LR
w] poidL suppovt

4 |
. _© !
Qf @A4
' oL LEIGH PARK ROAD SS9 2DU
1719-TP-10

AR C H BT EC TS 01702 472714 DWG NO.




This page is intentionally left blank



C® Uewv Clos auta, - _
06 = OWHANY flass widin Sasnd plasr W{WMW

v = NG | om—amed] |l g, U8
06

g ']
[ | | e ———— | e

R

p—

U VR G TR

: © s
@A4 \/1% oal) A—l—1 1 1
TS Sk WEBL 0 1
' 7L LEIGH PARK ROAD SS9 2DU

AR C R 1T EC TS 01702 472714 owe no. 1719-TP- ”-A




This page is intentionally left blank



@ .*mm/\, vinehaw, blinds Fited
i o, off s

===

+ 400 mm V\M)/\-"i'l

¥
rvook/w@d vy (2) W‘e’\f

TUDIO@AT @'IIGMR/
= owe vo. 1719-TP- 1.4




This page is intentionally left blank



== TUhRL/

Pw 1 W
pusted. plasfer
Stud pavthw'\ + plastty

P?NMM quv
b oallw platley praud
Pefie fo Dy

Xl
LI

J
T TTTT

m

bkio Dt (2 110 Geale fov vefmuncd gw@

N
=

RN

©

5 @A4
3 qﬁ’ 175 SAELUED |10 A

LEIGH PARK ROAD SS9 2DU
AR CH T T EE€T'S

01702 472714 DWG NO. 171 9'TP' I%




This page is intentionally left blank



hwboy st/
HLS pladeosud,

T

:H- '\\ _ 14— Wﬂlw\d’ 1o W\a-{'d/\,
;‘F J ot {wridvre

exist Shcture,
<
b

| 5 h«r :
L 7 fent ™

oA |10 Sehey

04“ 177 S WD 0 g
LEIGH PARK ROAD SS9 2DU

01702 472714 ow no. 171 9'TP' l‘{‘




This page is intentionally left blank



' Exwf wimg e

I \%um Shadew! P,
[ Plastr + Pusledomand, panted,

<A [ shadon P ‘
\'Mrhdrdf' Vol WAIW\/’( nw@

1;2 x 31 wmlm/f @W)'Mﬁ

R FU—— WAl L)D‘IN\Vﬂ ‘1‘-60%
ISy

J\ Back matal Tty glatteal
/

kle vm’nlah\/ o with o/
Py T mattn e lm%-

bmm toijhened o\t

""'““‘—‘—““—*—" 44 ¢ 44 QWW@W
b —— x4t bawe ol -

P &xis’rh@ ﬁmbeleohm?@.

oA @ \'S ¢ealts

179 STuUDIO 1

°°¢*G LEIGH PARK ROAD SS9 2DU
o vo. 1719-TP- 15(3)




This page is intentionally left blank



e
VAV

ACU

L

LT

HAVENS, 136-140 HAMLE

LIFT

2100HIGH CLEAR  OPENING ONLY

LT

or

ACU

OWURT ROAD, WESTCLIFF - ON - SEA

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

HRST HOOR PLAN

orig roller

CEILING HEAT/COOL CASSETTE
,ﬂ/\ B \\jﬂ/\ B \\j,
LN N
LN TN
LN N

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

NOTES :

KEY

HARDWOOD PARQUE FLOORING

SHEET VINYL ON CEMENT SCREED

INLAY GLASS BLOCKS

PROPOSED DEMOLITION WORKS

REV. B 26-02—-18 AHU ADDED AND FLOOR FINISHES
REV. A 19-01-18 LPA REQUESTS

0 1 2 3 4 5

[ | [ |
[ T 1 T

1:10 0 scale METRES

AASTING  HLOOR PLANS

/ 00

ARCHITETQ CTS
©

COPYRIGHT P ROTETCTED

STUDIO 1 www.metsonarchitects.co.uk

LEIGH PARK ROAD LEIGH ON SEA ESSEX SS9 2DU
01702 472714 admin@metsonarchitects.co.uk
SCALE. QA1

DATE. AUG—-2017

CLIENT. AGE CONCERN

JOB. 138—140 HAMLET COURT ROAD, WESTCLIFF SSO 7LN

DWG NO. ANA@-.ZU:XO‘_ |W

181



This page is intentionally left blank



Reference: 18/00084/FUL
Ward: West Leigh 8
Demolish existing timber workshop, erect enlarged timber
. workshop, alter elevations of existing oak framed gazebo to
Proposal: . -
create enclosed summerhouse and install juliette balcony to
rear of dwellinghouse
Address: 76A Herschell Road, Leigh-On-Sea, Essex, SS9 2PU
Applicant: Mr Oliver Beacham
Agent: N/A
Consultation Expiry: 27.02.2018
Expiry Date: 03.04.2018
Case Officer: Janine Rowley
16.109-01 A; 16.109-02; 16.109-03; 16.109-04; 16.109-05;
Plan Nos: 16.109-06; 16.109-07; 16.109-08; 16.109-09; 16.109-10;

16.109-11; 16.109-12; 16.109-13; 16.109-14; 16.0B1-15

Recommendation:

REFUSE PLANNING PERMISSION




1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

2.1

The Proposal

Planning permission is sought to demolish an existing timber workshop, erect a
larger timber workshop, alter the elevations of an existing oak framed gazebo to
create an enclosed summerhouse and install a juliette balcony to the rear.

The existing garden area serving 76a Herschell Road previously contained a timber
workshop, which has since been demolished and the concrete base has been laid
out for the new workshop. There are two other structures within the site including
an existing oak pergola and oak deck bridge over the existing pond to the centre
and an existing open gazebo to the rear of site. The existing oak pergola and oak
decking bridge to the centre of the site is to remain unchanged as part of this
application

The former existing timber workshop was 3.3m wide x 2.4m deep x 2.8m high sited
1.9m away from the rear elevation of the existing building.

The proposed workshop which is 3.3m wide x 5.7m deep x 3.1m high (2.2m to the
eaves) is to be sited 2.2m away from the rear elevation of the existing building. The
materials include larch board and batten cladding. The fenestration to the
outbuilding includes a roller shutter door to the west elevation and a window and
door to the south elevation.

The proposal includes alterations to the existing oak framed gazebo to the rear of
the site so that it becomes enclosed to provide a summerhouse 4m wide x 2.2m
deep x 2.5m high. It should be noted there is a discrepancy on the plans shown on
drawings “existing layout” 16.109-03, and “proposed layout” 16.109-09 where the
gazebo to the rear is set 0.3m away from the northern boundary however,
“proposed site plan” drawing 16.109-08 illustrates only a 0.1m separation distance
to the northern boundary. However, on balance it is not considered this would
warrant a reason for refusal taking into account it’s siting to the rear of the garden
and existing outbuildings to the north.

At first floor a Juliette balcony is proposed to the existing building to serve an
existing pair of full height windows in the first floor flat.

This application has been submitted following an enforcement complaint
(17/00233/UNAU_B), whereby the base for the workshop has been laid out within
the rear garden without planning permission.

Site and Surroundings

The site contains a two storey detached building on the eastern side of Herschell
Road which is in use as two self-contained flats, no. 76 to the ground floor and 76a
to the first floor. The garden is split into two to the rear with a shared access to the
south of the property adjacent to 74 Herschell Road which is a single family house.
The streetscene is characterised by two storey semi-detached and detached
properties.

Development Control Report Page 2 of 8

184



3.1

3.2

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

Planning Considerations

The main considerations are in relation to the principle of the development, design
and impact on the character of the area, traffic and transportation issues and
impact on residential amenity and CIL.

Flats do not benefit from permitted development rights under the Town and Country
Planning General Permitted Development Order so planning permission is required
for rear garden outbuildings and structures.

Appraisal
Principle of Development

National Planning Policy Framework (2012); Core Strategy (2007) Policies
KP2, CP4; Development Management Document (2015) Policies DM1 and
DM3, Design and Townscape Guide (2009)

The property is located within a residential area and subject to detailed
considerations; the principle of outbuildings and external alterations in this location
is acceptable subject to the other material planning considerations discussed in
detail below.

Design and impact on the character of the area

National Planning Policy Framework (2012), Core Strategy Policies KP1
(Spatial Strategy), KP2 and CP4, Development Management Document (2015)
Policies DM1 and DM3, and Design and Townscape Guide (2009)

National Planning Policy Framework states “The Government attaches great
importance to the design of the built environment. Good design is a key aspect of
sustainable development is indivisible from good planning and should contribute
positively to making places better for people”.

Policy KP2 of the Core Strategy advocates the need for all new development to
respect the character and scale of the existing neighbourhood where appropriate
and to secure urban improvements through quality design. Policy CP4 of the Core
Strategy states that development proposals will be expected to contribute to the
creation of a high quality, sustainable, urban environment which enhances and
complements the natural and built assets of Southend by maintaining and
enhancing the amenities, appeal and character of residential areas, securing good
relationships with existing development, and respecting the scale and nature of that
development.

Policy DM1 of the Development Management Document advocates the need for
good quality design that contributes positively to the creation of successful places.
All developments should respect the character of the site, its local context and
surroundings in terms of its architectural approach, height, scale, form and
proportions.

Development Control Report Page 3 of 8

185



4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

412

The proposed outbuilding is 3.3m wide, 5.7m in depth and 3.1m high. The design is
a simple form with a pitched roof. The outbuilding is to be constructed from larch
and batten cladding on a concrete base with a roller shutter to the west elevation
and window and door to the south elevation.

The design and scale of the outbuilding satisfactorily relates to the existing property
and does not result in a form of development out of keeping with the surrounding
area taking into account that there exist a number of outbuildings to the rear of
existing properties. It is therefore not considered that the outbuilding in design
terms would significantly affect the character of the area in a harmful way.

No objections are raised to the enclosure of the existing gazebo to form a
summerhouse at the bottom of the rear garden on character grounds.

For these reasons it is considered that the proposal would not cause harm to the
character or appearance of the site or the surrounding area and, it is therefore
acceptable and policy compliant in that regard.

Traffic and Transportation

National Planning Policy Framework (2012); Core Strategy (2007) Policies
KP2, CP4, CP3; Development Management Document (2015) Policy DM15,
and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009)

The existing parking to the front of the site will remain as existing providing one
parking space per flat, which is policy compliant.

The proposed development will not be detrimental to highway or pedestrian safety
and the proposed development is therefore acceptable in this regard and satisfies
the policies detailed above.

Impact on residential amenity

National Planning Policy Framework (2012), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2
and CP4, Development Management Document (2015) Policies DM1 and DM3,
Design and Townscape Guide (2009)

Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document and CP4 of the
Core Strategy refer to the impact of development on surrounding occupiers. High
quality development, by definition, should provide a positive living environment for
its occupiers whilst not having an adverse impact on the amenity of neighbours.
Protection and enhancement of amenity is essential to maintaining people's
quality of life and ensuring the successful integration of proposed
development into existing neighbourhoods.

The proposed workshop outbuilding is located to the rear garden serving the first
floor flat No. 76A Herschell Road set 2.2m from the rear elevation of the existing
building and projecting 5.7m into the garden. No. 76 Herschell Road the ground
floor flat, has windows serving a bathroom to the immediate west of the proposed
outbuilding and sitting room to the north. The proposed outbuilding has a height of
3m (eaves 2.2m high) and set 0.2m away from the boundary to the north serving
the garden of 76 Herschell Road and 1.3m away from the boundary to the south of

Development Control Report Page 4 of 8

186



4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

the site with 74 Herschell Road. It is not considered the proposal would result in a
material harmful impact on the amenities enjoyed by existing occupiers of no. 74
taking into account the existing single storey rear extension serving no. 74 and
siting of the outbuilding proposed. However, the proposed building would, by
reason of its design, siting, height and depth of rearward projection, result in an
excessively overbearing relationship, an unduly increased sense of visual
enclosure and a loss of light and outlook at 76 Herschell Road, to the detriment of
the residential amenities of the occupiers of this property. The proposal is therefore
unacceptable and contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework; Policies
KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007); Policies DM1 and DM3 of the
Development Management Document (2015); and the advice contained within the
Design and Townscape guide (2009).

In relation to impact on residents to the rear of the site in Vernon Road there is a
separation of 33m, which is sufficient to mitigate against any harm to light, outlook
or impact on the rear garden scene.

The proposed enclosure of the existing gazebo to the rear of the site will not result
in material harm to the adjacent residential occupiers surrounding the site taking
into account its siting and modest scale and increase of height from 2.3m to 2.5m
(0.2m difference) compared with the existing structure. It should be noted there is a
discrepancy on the plans shown on drawings “existing layout” 16.109-03, and
“‘proposed layout” 16.109-09 where the gazebo to the rear is set 0.3m away from
the northern boundary however, “proposed site plan” drawing 16.109-08 illustrates
only a 0.1m separation distance to the northern boundary. However, on balance it
is not considered this would warrant a reason for refusal taking into account it's
siting to the rear of the garden and existing outbuildings to the north.

In terms of overlooking and loss of privacy from the proposed Juliette balcony to the
first floor serving the habitable accommodation of no. 76A Herschell Road, on
balance the impact of this element of the proposal is found to be acceptable and no
worse than existing windows to the rear elevation of the existing property at first
floor including adjacent residential properties to the north and south of the site and
the separation distance to the rear elevations of properties in Vernon Road to the
east of the site.

The applicant has confirmed that the outbuilding will be used as a workshop for
purposes incidental to occupation of the existing flat at first floor. It is noted from the
plans and neighbours representations that the workshop is intended for use in
connection with the applicant’s hobby, keeping and maintaining motorbikes. A
motorbike is illustrated for example on the building sections submitted as part of the
application. There is potential for the introduction of a purpose built workshop to
intensify motorbike related activity and attendant noise and disturbance on the site
which could have a harmful impact on residential amenity. However, a condition
could be imposed to restrict the workshop incidental hobby related use, with no
business activity (such as the servicing and repair of motorbikes not owned by the
applicant). In these circumstances it is not considered that such a restricted use of
the building would in itself represent a specific reason for refusing planning
permission. Whilst the level of activity will increase within the rear garden it is
considered to not be harmful, taking into account the existing outbuildings in the
vicinity of the site and would not result in material harm on noise and disturbance
grounds to the existing occupiers to the north, south and west of the site.

Development Control Report Page 5 of 8

187



417

4.18

4.19

Furthermore, a condition could be imposed to ensure the outbuilding remains
incidental to the first floor flat no. 76A Herschell Road if this application was
otherwise deemed acceptable.

Other matters

A third party representation has been received stating the flat roof to the ground
floor flat is currently used as a balcony following the installation of sliding doors in
2003. Whilst this is not subject of the current planning application a condition the
formation of a balcony enclosure on the flat roof would require separate planning
permission. Furthermore, the proposal to enclose the doors with a Juliette balcony
reasonably indicates that access onto the roof is not being sought in order to
protect the amenities of nearby residential occupiers if this application is deemed
acceptable.

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
Charging Schedule.

The outbuilding equates to less than 100sgm of new floorspace the development
benefits from a Minor Development Exemption under the Community Infrastructure
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and as such no charge is payable.

Conclusion

Having taken all material planning considerations into account, it is found that the
proposed alterations to the existing gazebo to the rear of the site to enclose and
form a summerhouse and Juliette balcony to the first floor of no. 76A Herschell
Road are acceptable as they would not harm the character or amenity of the
surroundings. However, the proposed workshop outbuilding would, by reason of its
design, siting, height and depth of rearward projection represent an excessively
large and intrusive structure which would result in an unduly overbearing
relationship, increased sense of visual enclosure and a material loss of light and
outlook to 76 Herschell Road, to the detriment of the residential amenities of the
occupiers of this property. The proposal is therefore unacceptable and contrary to
the National Planning Policy Framework; Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Southend-
on-Sea Core Strategy (2007); Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Southend-on-Sea
Development Management Document (2015); and the advice contained within the
Southend-on-Sea Design and Townscape guide (2009). This application is therefore
recommended for refusal and fails to comply with development plan policies.

5 Planning Policy Summary

5.1 National Planning Policy Framework (2012)

5.2 Core Strategy (2007) CP4 (The Environment and Urban Renaissance) KP1 (Spatial
Strategy), KP2 (Development Principles)

5.3 Development Management Document (2015) policy DM1 (Design Quality), DM3
(Efficient and Effective Use of Land), DM15 (Sustainable Transport Management)

5.4 Design & Townscape Guide (2009).

Development Control Report Page 6 of 8

188



5.5 Community Infrastructure Charging Levy
6 Representation Summary
Leigh on Sea Town Council
6.1 Resolved to object to the proposal on the following basis:

The height above the fence line is considerable for much of the boundary line and
will have an adverse impact on the amenity of neighbours. With the ‘gym’
abounding the northern boundary of 76 Herschell Road, the sense of visual
enclosure is unacceptable and the use of such a large studio needs questioning in
a residential property — this will have an impact on the noise and disturbance of
neighbouring properties.  Furthermore the proposed development does not
contribute positively to the space between buildings.

As such the application is contrary to Policy DM1 of the Development Managet
Document 2015.

Public Consultation

6.2 8 neighbours were notified of the proposal and four objections have been received
stating:

e The property was converted in 1984 into two flats and as part of the leases
no obstruction should be to the sideway which is continuously blocked by Mr
Beacham of no. 76A Herschell Road [Officer Comment: This is a civil
matter and not a material planning consideration];

e The concrete base has been laid without planning permission and this

application is the result of raising the matter with the planning enforcement

team;

Appearance of the development unacceptable

Noise

Loss of privacy

The sideway could be turned into a building site, which is contrary to the

lease agreement [Officer Comment: This is a civil matter and not a

material planning consideration];

e Siting of the outbuilding is too close to the bathroom of no. 76 Herschell
Road;

e Existing outbuilding has already been removed and was previously erected
without planning permission or consent from the leaseholder;

¢ No objection to the summerhouse converted from the gazebo subject to it
not running a separate business;

e Juliet balcony is proposed to the rear first floor doors, installed in 2003 and
legal action is being sought on this matter separately;

e The flat roof of the ground floor flat is used as a balcony for occupiers of no.
76A Herschell Road at first floor;

e Too large for the area

e Height unacceptable

¢ |Installation of Juliette balcony will result in overlooking or properties in
Vernon Road

Development Control Report Page 7 of 8
189



6.3

7.1

8.1

¢ Increased height of the gazebo would result in shade to gardens to the east
in Vernon Road

These concerns are noted and they have been taken into account in the
assessment of the application.

Councillor Phillips has requested this application be dealt with by Development
Control Committee.

Relevant Planning History

Alleged unauthorised development (Erection of Outbuilding)- Pending
consideration (17/00157/UNAU_B)

Recommendation

Members are recommended to REFUSE PLANNING PERMISSION for the
following reason:

01 The proposed workshop outbuilding would, by reason of its design,
siting, height and depth of rearward projection, result in an excessively
large and intrusive structure which would create an unduly overbearing
relationship, an increased sense of visual enclosure and a material loss
of light and outlook to 76 Herschell Road, to the detriment of the
residential amenities of the occupiers of this property. The proposal is
therefore unacceptable and contrary to the National Planning Policy
Framework; Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Southend-on-Sea Core Strategy
(2007); Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Southend-on-Sea Development
Management Document (2015); and the advice contained within the
Southend-on-Sea Design and Townscape guide (2009).

Informative

You are advised that as the proposed extension(s) to your property equates
to less than 100sgm of new floorspace the development benefits from a Minor
Development Exemption under the Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010 (as amended) and as such no charge is payable. See
www.southend.gov.uk/cil for further details about CIL.

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in
determining this application by identifying matters of concern with the
proposal and determining the application within a timely manner, clearly
setting out the reason(s) for refusal, allowing the Applicant the opportunity to
consider the harm caused and whether or not it can be remedied by a
revision to the proposal. The detailed analysis is set out in a report prepared
by officers. In the circumstances the proposal is not considered to be
sustainable development. The Local Planning Authority is willing to discuss
the best course of action.

Development Control Report Page 8 of 8

190


http://www.southend.gov.uk/cil

T6T



This page is intentionally left blank



€61



This page is intentionally left blank



6T



This page is intentionally left blank



16T



This page is intentionally left blank



66T



This page is intentionally left blank



T0C



This page is intentionally left blank



€0¢



This page is intentionally left blank



S0¢



This page is intentionally left blank



L0¢



This page is intentionally left blank



60¢



This page is intentionally left blank



TT¢



This page is intentionally left blank



€T1¢



This page is intentionally left blank



GT¢



This page is intentionally left blank



LT¢



This page is intentionally left blank



6T¢



This page is intentionally left blank



Reference:

17/01115/FULM

Prittlewell 9

Ward:
Demolish existing buildings, erect three blocks of three,
four and five storeys comprising of 92 self-contained
. flats with balconies, basement parking and parking at
Proposal: . .
ground floor level, landscaping, amenity space,
associated works including highway alterations and
alteration of existing access onto Fairfax Drive
Address: Prospects House, 10 Fairfax Drive, Westcliff-on-Sea,
) Essex, SS0 9AG
Applicant: Weston Homes PLC
Agent: Weston Homes PLC

Consultation Expiry:

5 January 2018

Expiry Date: 7th February 2018

Case Officer: Patrick Keyes
AP234: P001 Rev D (Landscape and semi basement),
P002 Rev D (Ground and Upper Ground Floor), P003 Rev
D (First Floor), P004 Rev D (Second Floor), P005 Rev D

Plan Nos: (Third Floor), P006 Rev D (Fourth Floor), P007 Rev D

(Roof Plan/ Street Elevation), P008 Rev D (Elevations
Sheet 1), P009 Rev D (Elevations Sheet 2), P0010 Rev D (
Elevations Sheet 3), AP 234 P201- P240 Rev A (Flat types
1 to 40).

Recommendation:

Resolve that had the application not been appealed for
non-determination, Members would have determined to
GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to completion
of a legal agreement under S106 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 (As Amended).

221







1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

The Proposal

The applicants for this proposal have confirmed to staff that they are submitting to
the Planning Inspectorate an appeal against non-determination of their application.
This means that the decision on the application will no longer be in the Council’s
hands. At the time of preparing this report, the Council has not received any
notification from the Planning Inspectorate that a valid non-determination appeal
has yet been submitted but this is expected to occur in the very near future. As part
of the appeal process, the Council will have to confirm the decision it would have
made had a non-determination appeal not been submitted. This report accordingly
sets out an assessment and recommendation.

The application proposes to demolish existing buildings on the site and to erect 3
blocks of flats, varying between 2 and 5 storey in height, totalling 92 units (41x1-
bed, 47x2-bed and 4x3-bed), together with associated basement and surface
parking for 92 vehicles, a ratio of one per unit. The proposal includes amenity
space, landscaping and associated works. This is a stand-alone development but
the applicant has provided explanatory comments on how the scheme might tie in
to a wider redevelopment of the Roots Hall site should one come forward.

A single, five storey building (Block C) would sit directly opposite the junction of
Fairfax Drive and Prittlewell Chase flanked by two further buildings; Block A/B to
the west (2 to 3 storey) continues the form of the existing residential terrace and
then returns into the depth of the site; Block D/E to the east, which is mainly 4
storey, addresses the street frontage and then returns into the depth of the site.
Blocks A/B and D/E would step up in height rearward by roughly a half storey
equivalent as they reflect the site’s southerly rising land levels. Between these two
buildings a one-way loop road would wrap behind Block C with the main
vehicular entrance to its east by the existing Prospects House entrance, and
the exit further to its west, close to the existing service yard access.

The proposed buildings are set back to follow the established building line along
Fairfax Drive and to provide street frontage landscape and tree planting. An
element of on street, surface car parking is included towards the rear of the site.
Areas of private amenity space are provided in two enclosed, landscaped,
courtyard gardens to the eastern and western flanks of the development, stepped
to take account of ground levels.

Materials include dark and light facing brick, textured masonry, cladding, clear
glazed windows, glazed balconies, spandrel panels and aluminium louvres.
Hard landscaping materials include macadam surfacing, granite sett paving,
granite slabs, granite setts, natural stone stepping stones and gravel.

The applicant confirms that 30% of the proposed units will be affordable. They are

not obliged to submit a viability report with the application because of this policy
compliant provision of affordable housing.

223



1.7

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

The application is supported by a Planning Statement, Design and Access
Statement, Transport Assessment, Travel Plan, Phase 1 Habitats Report,
Archaeological Desk Based Assessment, Environmental Noise Assessment and
supplementary noise impact report, Contaminated Land Survey, Energy Report,
Flood Risk Assessment/Drainage Strategy, and Landscaping plans.

Site and Surroundings

The application site is the rectangular-shaped former Prospects College site (0.56
Ha/ 1.38 acres) measuring some 120m x 46.5m. The eastern half of the site is
occupied by a two storey brick building, Prospects House, which was formerly
used as a training centre and has been vacant for several years. This has a two
storey, flat roofed frontage to Fairfax Drive and also extends around a warehouse
scale element towards the western elevation. Warehouse loading bays face onto
an extensive hard standing covering the western part of the site. Two smaller
warehouse elements are next to the site’s southern boundary. Part of the site is
currently used for the storage of building materials.

The northern boundary runs along Fairfax Drive. Allotments, the Growing Together
Project, a private Hospital and an office are to the northern side of Fairfax Drive.
To the east, the site boundary is formed by a service road which accesses the rear
of two-storey buildings in Victoria Avenue. Those buildings comprise shops with
flats over. Most are unoccupied. Continuing southwards within Victoria Avenue
beyond that terrace is St Marys Court, a four storey flatted development. The
application site’s southern boundary is formed by a retaining wall to the car
park serving Roots Hall football stadium which is set between 0.4m and 1.3m
higher than the site. The application site sits at the bottom of sloping land which
rises southwards through the adjacent stadium site to West Street. To the west, in
Fairfax Drive, is a terrace of five two storey dwellings behind which is an area used
by a vehicle hire company for storage of vehicles. Further to the west, Fairfax
Drive is characterised by two storey pitched roof dwellings, both terraced and
semi-detached.

The site is in a relatively sustainable location. A bus shelter is immediately in front
the site. Prittlewell train station is some 790m to its south. The site is some 100m
from cycle tracks into Southend Town Centre and Leigh-On-Sea. The site is
readily accessible to the main road network with the A127 some 50m away. Priory
Park is close by.

The site is located within the ‘Southend Central Area’ identified within the
Southend Central Area Action Plan (SCAAP). Within this, the site together with the
wider Roots Hall site and the Victoria Avenue frontage and properties in Roots Hall
Avenue, is allocated as Opportunity Site 13 and falls within the Victoria Gateway
Neighbourhood area subject to Policy PA8. It is also within an area of
archaeological interest within the SCAAP. Properties next to the south east corner
of the site are within a secondary shopping frontage. To the south of the site, along
Victoria Avenue, is the Grade | listed St Mary’s Church, views of which are defined
as “Key Views” within the SCAAP. St Mary’s Church is also designated as a
Landmark Building within the SCAAP.

The site lies within Flood Risk Zone 1 (low risk).

224



3.1

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Planning Considerations

The main considerations are: the principle of the development; design and impact
on the character of the area including views of St Marys Church; impact on the
amenity of surrounding residents; standard of accommodation for future occupiers;
traffic generation; access and parking implications; sustainable construction
including the provision of on-site renewable energy sources; CIL (Community
Infrastructure Levy) and developer contributions.

Appraisal
Principle of the development

Planning Policies: National Planning Policy Framework (2012) (NPPF), Core
Strategy (2007) Policies KP1, KP2, CP6, CP8; Development Management
Document (2015) Policies DM1, DM3, DM5, DM7, DM10, DM11 and DM15 and
the Design and Townscape Guide (2009), Southend and Central Area Action
Plan (SCAAP) Policies PS8, DS2 and DS3.

The Core Strategy confirms that the primary focus of regeneration and growth
within Southend is in Southend Town Centre and the Central Area. The Southend
Central Area Action Plan (SCAAP) provides a more detailed and comprehensive
planning policy framework for the town centre, to guide future development
decisions. The SCAAP was agreed in December 2017 following an examination
held by an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State. The SCAAP is now being
prepared for adoption by the Council.

The application site is brownfield land within the Southend Central Area. It is also
part of the 4.22ha Roots Hall, Victoria Avenue site identified within the 2016
Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment identified for residential
development.

Policy PA8 sets principles for development in the Victoria Gateway Neighbourhood
Policy Area, of which the application site forms part. This policy confirms that the
Council will look favourably on high quality developments which can demonstrate
that they will contribute to the transformation of this area into a vibrant community,
integrated with the surrounding neighbourhood and set within a remodelled built
form, of a quality that befits this key gateway to the Town Centre.

Policy PA8 also seeks to conserve existing landmark buildings and ensure that
new development respects views to and from them, their setting and character, in
line with Policy DS3: Landmarks and Landmark Buildings.

Policy DS2 confirms that new development within Southend Central Area will be
expected to demonstrate that it is compatible with and/or enhances Key Views of
St Mary’s Church. Policy DS3 confirms that the Council will seek to conserve
landmarks and landmark buildings as identified in Table 2 and Appendix 3 from
adverse impact by: a) encouraging the provision of open spaces and public realm
improvements which provide views to landmarks or landmark buildings or enhance
their setting; b) resisting adverse impacts of new development by virtue of
excessive height, massing or bulk; and c) ensuring development proposals respect
views, setting and character.

225



4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

Policy KP1 of the Core Strategy seeks the provision of additional homes within the
Town Centre. Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy seek development that
makes the best use of land and is sustainably located. Policy CP1 of the Core
Strategy states that permission will not normally be granted for development
proposals that involve the loss of existing employment land and premises
unless it can be clearly demonstrated that the proposal will contribute to the
objective of regeneration of the local economy in other ways, including significant
enhancement of the environment, amenity and condition of the local area.

Policy CP2 seeks to support the Town Centre as a regional centre including mixed-
use development. A stated aim of Policy CP3 is to reduce reliance on the car in
new development. Policy CP8 of the Core Strategy identifies the need for 6,500
homes to be delivered within the whole Borough between 2001 and 2021 and
seeks that 80% or more of residential development be provided on previously
developed land. Policy DM1 of the Development Management Document seeks to
promote successful places.

Policy DM1 seeks design quality that adds to the overall quality of an area and
respects the character of a site and its local context. Policy DM3 seeks to support
development that is well designed and that seeks to optimise the use of land
in a sustainable manner that responds positively to local context and does not
lead to over-intensification. Policy DM7 states that the Council will seek to support
a range of dwelling sizes and types to meet the needs of people with a variety of
different lifestyles and incomes. Through Policy DM8 the Council seeks
appropriate flexibility and dimensions within internal accommodation to meet the
changing needs of residents. Policy DM10 seeks to promote sustainable economic
growth by increasing the capacity and quality of employment land, floor space, and
jobs through new development. Policy DM15 states that development will be
allowed where there is, or it can be demonstrated that there will be,
physical and environmental capacity to accommodate the type and amount of
traffic generated in a safe and sustainable manner.

The proposal would involve the loss of a potential employment-generating land
use. However the site is not a designated ‘employment-generating’ further to Policy
DM11. Loss of the D1 training centre use came about as part of the former
Prospect College relocation, in part funded by the sale of this site. Taking the
above into consideration, including that there has been no net loss of educational
space it is not considered that there is any requirement to safeguard the site as a
community facility under Policy CP6.

The principle of using this brownfield land for residential purposes is therefore
considered acceptable under Policies KP1, KP2, CP4, CP6 and CP8.

The principle of the form and nature of the application site’s redevelopment and
strategic impact also needs to be considered having regard to the effect on
landmark views of St Mary’s Church, required under Policies DS2 and DS3. The
application is supported by a visual impact assessment demonstrating that
although a development of the scale sought would be seen generally in the context
of St Mary’s, the local topography here is such that, with land rising southwards
away from the application site, the new built form on this site would not, in
principle, cause an adverse effect on views of the church when seen from vistas

226



412

4.13

414

4.15

4.16

around the application site notably from Fairfax Drive and from further beyond in
Prittlewell Chase to the north. It is not considered that the scheme would harm the
setting of the listed building.

The application site has been subject of past, comprehensive proposals which
sought to regenerate the Roots Hall stadium site together with land around its
periphery, including the current application site. All related permissions for such
wider redevelopment have expired. However submission of a further planning
application, specifically for redevelopment of the existing Roots Hall stadium site, is
anticipated during 2018 in association with the current separate planning
application under consideration for a new replacement football stadium and
associated development at Fossetts Farm (17/00733/FULM).

It would be preferable to consider the redevelopment and wider regenerative role
of the current application site simultaneously with further redevelopment proposals
for the Roots Hall site. However it is considered that this cannot be insisted upon
nor can the Council reasonably withhold determination of the current application on
that basis. This is because the proposals presented here for the Prospects College
site are entirely self-contained ie they do not rely upon the adjacent Roots Hall site
for any fundamental design components such as access. Furthermore the
essential form and layout of this proposal have been designed so as not to rely
upon, nor to materially prejudice, the redevelopment potential of the adjacent
Stadium site. For example habitable rooms in this proposed development would
not rely on outlooks across site boundaries to the south. Equally the Roots Hall site
is sufficiently large that any constraints created by the prior redevelopment and
presence of new buildings within the current application site could be addressed
through design.

Commenting on how the scheme might tie in to the wider redevelopment of the
Roots Hall site, the applicants’ Planning and Design & Access Statements confirm
that this proposal is the first phase of a potential wider redevelopment
ultimately encompassing the Roots Hall site and St Mary’s Court. Although
this is not an element being assessed under this application, the applicants
demonstrate how the lay out of their proposed development has given
consideration to the possibility of a wider masterplan for the Roots Hall site in
future. The applicant states that this ensures that the redevelopment of Roots Hall
will not be prevented by this development and that the two can be satisfactorily
integrated.

Therefore the effect of this site’s development on the future development potential
of the Roots Hall site is primarily an issue to be addressed at the appropriate time
by the designers of any future redevelopment proposals submitted for the Roots
Hall site. Whether such a proposal comes forward in practise is a matter for the
respective site developers. Officers do not consider that this issue alone would
constitute a materially defensible reason for opposing the principle of this site’s
redevelopment in its self-contained form or for the residential purposes proposed.

Housing mix
To create balanced and sustainable communities in the long term, it is important

that future housing delivery meets the needs of households that demand private
market housing and also those who require access to affordable housing.

227



417

4.18

4.19

4.20

Providing dwellings of different types, including tenure and sizes, helps to promote
social inclusion by meeting the needs of people with a variety of different lifestyles
and incomes. A range of dwelling types provides greater choice for people seeking
to live and work in Southend and will therefore also support economic growth. So
the Council seeks to ensure that all residential development provides a dwelling
mix that incorporates a range of dwelling types and bedroom sizes, including family
housing, to reflect the borough’s housing need and housing demand. Policy DM7
of the Development Management Document requires all residential development to
provide a mix of dwelling size and type.

Paragraph 159 of the NPPF requires local planning authorities to have a clear
understanding of housing needs in their area and that they should prepare a
Strategic Housing Market Assessment 2013 (‘SHMA') which identifies the scale
and mix of housing that the local population is likely to need. The Southend-on-Sea
Housing Strategy 2011, the SHMA and the Council’'s Community Plan 2011-2021
seek to provide sustainable balanced communities and advise that housing
developments will need a range of tenures and size of dwelling. The SHMA has
identified a shortage of family accommodation in Southend, despite an acute
demand for this type of dwelling. Consequently, to address this shortfall and meet
demand, residential development proposals will normally be expected to
incorporate suitable family accommodation. The provision of high quality,
affordable family homes is an important strategic housing priority in Southend
and the Core Strategy highlights a need to retain a stock of larger family
housing.

Policy DM7 states:

“The Council will promote the mix of dwellings types and sizes, taking
account of those outlined in the SHMA, ..... in all nhew major residential
development proposals. Where a proposal significantly deviates from this mix the
reasons must be justified and demonstrated to the Council.”

The Council’s preferred Private Market Dwelling Mix is:

Size/ No bedrooms 1 Bed 2 Bed 3 Bed 4 Bed

Proportion of dwellings 9% 22% 49% 20%

and the Council’s preferred Affordable Dwelling Mix is :

Size/ No bedrooms 1 Bed 2 Bed 3 Bed 4 Bed

Percentage of affordable 16% 43% 37% 4%

housing total

The proposal comprises the following (within the main figure for Block A/B the
number of proposed Affordable Housing units is identified in italics) :

Block/Building 1 Bed 2 Bed 3 Bed
A/B 18 (18 AH) 7 (7 AH) 3 (3 AH)
C/D/E 23 40 1
Total 41 (45%) 47 (51%) 4 (4%)
92 units total

228



4.21

4.22

4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26

4.27

The proposed mix has been refined since original submission of the application. It
now includes a policy compliant 30 % level of affordable housing. This comprises
11 shared ownership units (8 x 1-bedroom and 3 x 2-bedroom) and 17 social
rented units (10 x 1-bedroom, 4 x 2—bedroom and 3 x 3-bedroom) to be provided
within proposed block A/B. Taking account of the site context and nature of
development proposed, it is considered that the above mix, which now includes an
element of larger 3 bedroom units capable of family occupation plus over 50% two
bedroomed units, would make a satisfactory contribution to the Council’'s housing
policy objectives. This is supported by the Council’s Strategic Housing team.

It is therefore considered that the principle of this form of development at this
location is acceptable in light of the above policies and the SCAAP. Detailed
matters are considered specifically below.

Design, regeneration and the impact on the character of the area.

Planning Policies: National Planning Policy Framework (2012) (NPPF), Core
Strategy (2007) Policies KP1, KP2, CP4; Development Management
Document (2015) Policies DM1, DM3; Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

A core planning principle set out in Paragraph 17 of the NPPF is to seek to secure
high quality design and good standards of amenity for existing and future
occupants.

The NPPF also states at paragraph 56:

“The Government attaches great importance to the design of the built environment.
Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, is indivisible from good
planning, and should contribute positively to making places better for people.”

The need for good design is reiterated in Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document and in the
Design and Townscape Guide.

Scale and massing

The application site is on the edge of a main transport corridor leading to the Town
Centre. The mix of land uses and varying topography here have created a mixed
pattern of building types, formats, scale and massing with no overall single
distinctive urban grain. Development to the south and east is represented mainly
by the stadium site and predominantly two storey commercial buildings in Victoria
Avenue, south of which are four storey flats. To the west, Fairfax Drive contains
modest two storey housing to its south side next to the site and opposite this
moving towards the west on the north side of Fairfax Drive.

Immediately opposite the site the street scene setting is wider and more open and
spacious in aspect, reflecting the major intersection between Fairfax Drive and the
dual carriage way of Prittlewell Chase where a two storey clinic on its eastern
corner has massing which is equivalent to a three storey residential building. As
well as rising significantly towards the south, the land levels rise westward more
modestly along Fairfax Drive. When seen from a distance, development on the

229



4.28

4.29

4.30

4.31

4.32

application site would sit at the base of these surrounding, predominantly rising
land levels and surrounding built form which varies in scale and character. This
has been a significant consideration for officers when assessing the visual impact
of the new development and its effect on the prevailing character of the
surroundings.

With the exception of its relationship to No 40 Fairfax Drive and the terrace
towards its west, the proposed development would not sit immediately next to
existing built form which would otherwise set a more marked constraint for scale or
design. The site is some 120m wide. Within this area of varied character, building
forms and masses, officers consider that the site is capable of establishing its own
identity and making a transformative visual contribution within the street scene.
The site width enables the development to achieve a scale and massing and layout
relationship between the proposed new buildings on the site itself without jarring
with characteristic features of interest such as the wide setting of the intersection,
the green setting of the dual carriageway or the strategic backdrop view of St
Mary’s Church.

The proposed central pavilion (Block C), maximum plan dimensions 19.2m x 24m
is five storeys (15.25 m max) in height and incorporates two, four-storey wings
projecting over main entrances either side, each some 12.3m in height. All of the
proposed buildings, particularly the central pavilion, will appear significantly taller
than existing buildings in the Fairfax Drive street scene but the latter is purposely
designed to form the focal point in long views of the site from Prittlewell Chase with
adjoining new buildings subservient to the scale of that primary Block C.

To the east, proposed four-storey Block D/E (max 12.3m height) steps down to 3
storeys (9.5m height) in response to the scale of the existing buildings on the
Victoria Avenue frontage. It should be noted that these height dimensions for Block
D/E and those for Block A/B below refer to the building’s situation in the immediate
Fairfax Drive street scene. Both blocks would increase in height by a further 1.6m
as these two buildings extend further back into the site where the ground levels
rise by some half a storey equivalent. Block D/E would be L shaped in footprint
with maximum plan dimensions 33m x 24m.

To the west, proposed three-storey Block A/B (9.3m height) steps down to 2
storeys (6.7m height) to form a visual continuation of the existing flat-roofed
residential terrace commencing at 40 Fairfax Drive. Block A/B would have a
staggered L shaped footprint with maximum plan dimensions 35m x 22.8m.

Seen in this context the proposed 2-5 storey scale is considered to be
complimentary to the surrounding built environment and not excessive in scale,
particularly when the surrounding topography is considered. In particular it is
considered that the scales of the individual blocks and proposed disposition of built
form within the development would strike an acceptable balance between
achieving compatibility with the lower neighbouring buildings at the site margins
whilst enabling a suitably higher density development which sets its own character
and identity without materially harming the setting of the street scene.

Layout, building arrangement and external materials

230



4.33

4.34

4.35

4.36

4.37

Some 44 of the 92 on-site car parking spaces are proposed within two areas of
under croft to the rear of the site, sunk into the ground by half a level so that the
deck forming the roof of the car park and the landscaped courtyard gardens is at
the same level as the ground within the elevated Roots Hall car park to the south
and adjoining residential gardens. This car park arrangement raises the level of the
buildings in the southern portion of the site by half a storey in height responding
suitably to site levels.

Given the varying character of the site’s setting, in particular the currently
inharmonious composition of the streetscape to the eastern part of Fairfax
Drive, the design of the proposal is predicated on the basis that there are no
particularly strong architectural precedents in the locality except that there is a
predominance of white painted render in the street scene. It is in this context that
the applicant proposes a contemporary architectural approach to the design.
External finishes incorporate a dark facing brick and a contrasting light coloured
brick to reflect the wide use of render but to achieve future durability. This also
references the two short Fairfax Drive terraces of flat roofed houses on the site’s
western boundary which retain a common compositional theme comprising
central projecting square bays with setback main entrances between.

All of the new blocks will be set back to follow the established building line along
Fairfax Drive. This respects the relationship with the existing two storey terrace to
the west and enables introduction of an enhanced zone of street frontage
landscape and avenue tree planting which is welcomed. As well as providing a
setting for the development, the applicant sees this as helping to address the
scarcity of trees and landscaping within the Central Area identified in the
Borough Wide Character Study. An element of on street, surface car parking will
be included towards the rear of the site so the development would maintain a
strong, positive, landscaped street frontage, uninterrupted by car parking.

Viewed comprehensively it is considered that the resulting massing, design,
layout and use of external materials would both complete the missing street
frontage over this significant section of Fairfax Drive and is suitably
responsive to the mixed character of uses and buildings around the site and its
gateway location. The arrangement of new buildings also enables the opening up
of views south to the Roots Hall future development site, St Mary’s Church and the
town centre and beyond. The above is therefore considered to comply with
Policies KP2, DM1, DS2 and DS3 and is acceptable.

Impact on amenity of future occupiers and neighbours to the development

Planning Policies: National Planning Policy Framework (2012) (NPPF), Core
Strategy  (2007) Policies KP2, CP4, CP8; Development Management
Document (2015) policies DM1, DM3, DM8; Design and Townscape Guide
(2009); the National Technical Housing Standards DCLG

A core planning principle set out in the NPPF is that the planning system should

‘always seek to secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity for all
existing and future occupants of land and buildings”.

231



4.38

4.39

4.40

4.41

4.42

Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management DPD and CP4 of the
Core Strategy refer to the impact of development on future and surrounding
occupiers.

Policy DM1 of the Development Management Document requires that
development provide an internal and external layout that takes account of all
potential users.

Living conditions for future occupiers

Policy DM8 states that the internal environment of all new dwellings must be high
quality and flexible to meet the changing needs of residents.

Delivering high quality homes is one of the Government’s requirements within the
NPPF. From the 1st October 2015 Policy DM8 of the Development Management
DPD has been superseded by the National Housing Standards concerning internal
floor space standards.

Paragraph 17 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that “planning
should always seek to secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity
for all existing and future occupants of land and buildings”. It is considered that
most weight should be given to the Technical Housing Standards of which the
parts relevant to the proposal are:

- Requirement for 74sqm internal floor space (4 bed spaces) per three bed
dwelling, 61sgm internal floor space per two bedroom dwelling (3 bed spaces) and
50sgm internal floor space per one bedroom dwelling (2 bed spaces) to ensure the
development is in line with Building Control requirements.

- Minimum floor area for bedrooms to be no less than 7.5sgm for a single
bedroom with a minimum width of 2.15m; and 11.5sgm for a double/twin bedroom
with a minimum width of 2.75m or 2.55m in the case of a second double/twin
bedroom.

- Floor space with a head height of less than 1.5 metres should not be
counted in the above calculations unless it is solely used for storage in which case
50% of that floor space shall be counted.

- A minimum ceiling height of 2.3 metres shall be provided for at least 75% of
the Gross Internal Area.

Weight should also be given to the content of Policy DM8 which states the
following standards in addition to the national standards.

- Provision of a storage cupboard with a minimum floor area of 1.25m2
should be provided for 1-2 person dwellings. A minimum of 0.5m2 storage area
should be provided for each additional bed space.

- Amenity: Suitable space should be provided for a washing machine and for

drying clothes, as well as private outdoor amenity, where feasible and appropriate
to the scheme.

232



4.43

4.44

4.45

4.46

- Storage: Suitable, safe cycle storage with convenient access to the street
frontage.

- Refuse Facilities: Non-recyclable waste storage facilities should be provided
in new residential development in accordance with the Code for Sustainable
Homes Technical Guide and any local standards. Suitable space should be
provided for and recycling bins within the home. Refuse stores should be located
to limit the nuisance caused by noise and smells and should be provided with a
means for cleaning, such as a water supply.

- Working: Provide suitable space which provides occupiers with the
opportunity to work from home. This space must be able to accommodate a desk
and filing/storage cupboards.

All habitable rooms will be provided with sufficient windows and openings to
provide adequate light, ventilation and outlook.

Policy DM8 states that developments should meet the Lifetime Homes Standards
unless it can be clearly demonstrated that it is not viable and feasible to do so.
Lifetime Homes Standards have been dissolved, but their content has been
incorporated into Part M of the Building Regulations which requires accessible and
adaptable dwellings. It is considered that these standards should now provide the
basis for the determination of this application.

The proposal has been amended since submission to address officer feedback on
accessibility for future occupiers and visitors to the development. The updated
schedule of room units sizes supplied with the application demonstrates that all of
the proposed development will meet the National Technical standards for individual
unit and bedroom sizes. However the applicants have not fully taken on board
officers’ request that all of the blocks should be served by lifts to all floors to ensure
accessibility for all residents regardless of disability or the tenure of the units
concerned.

Lifts serve all proposed blocks with the exception of Block A/B which has raised
concerns, especially because this block contains the affordable housing units for
the development. Officers initially approached this issue concluding that, in
principle, it was not achieving a tenure-blind position and was therefore
unacceptable. Extensive discussion has taken place with the applicants as to why
they are opting not to accede to officers’ request that they incorporate a lift in block
A/B. Supported by independent responses provided by the Registered Social
Landlords (RSLs) with whom the applicants have been engaged as potentially
occupying the finished development, the applicants explain that they find that
provision of lifts has a direct impact on service charges of their schemes. The
RSLs’ position is that where schemes are 3 storey or below (as is the case with
Block A/B), they seek to avoid the provision of a lift, given the initial capital costs of
the lift (and the lift shaft and pit) as well as the ongoing future maintenance costs
that this introduces. On schemes of more than 3 storeys, the RSLs responded that
they would be happy for a lift provision as the extra cost and maintenance of the lift
can be shared between a higher number of homes, reducing the service charge
costs. They also state that they would typically request that any wheelchair homes

233



4.47

4.48

4.49

4.50

4.51

are located on ground level. It is noted that he Council’s development plan policies
on this issue make it clear that exceptions to meeting accessibility standards can
be made on grounds of viability in certain cases (Policy DM8 refers).

In response to the Council’'s concerns and the RSLs’ response the mix of
accommodation, staff suggested that the proposed layout within block A/B be
further adjusted to re-locate those units oriented more to families and those
adaptable for wheelchair users to the ground floor of the block. However the
applicant has decided to retain the proposal as submitted. Staff have remaining
concerns that the absence of a lift creates a lesser degree of accessibility for the
affordable housing units but given the explanation given by the RSLs; the fact that
Block A/B is no higher than three storeys; and the position that the operational/
tenant cost argument has been robustly posited by the applicants and their RSL
partner, it is considered that the absence of a lift in Block A/B would be unlikely to
be sustainable as a solitary reason for refusal for the proposal if it is otherwise
deemed acceptable in all other regards.

All habitable rooms will be provided with sufficient windows and openings to
provide adequate light, ventilation and outlook. The applicants have applied
daylight standards to the most affected unit within the development to demonstrate
that required day lighting levels would be met. Secondary windows have been
introduced to the south facing elevations of Block A/B and D/E to improve natural
day lighting levels for those units closest to the Roots Hall Stadium boundary.

The proposal has a good level of access for all units to outdoor amenity space
through private balconies and semi-private landscaped communal amenity space.
The majority of units benefit from a private balcony or roof terrace suitable for
seating, dining and drying clothes and are positioned conveniently, connecting to
the dining/living rooms of each unit.

In addition to the individual balcony/terrace provision above, future residents
will have access to approximately 750 sg.m of semi-private communal amenity
space, provided in enclosed gardens next to blocks A/B and D/E, plus
communal roof terraces on the 5th floor of the central block, C. The gardens are
split into different levels, landscaped to promote a degree of privacy between
different users, benefit from natural surveillance from habitable rooms, and
contribute to the urban greening of the area. The development is some 100m
walking distance from the Priory Park entrance and the local play area and some
130m from the recreation ground located off Prittlewell Chase. The total provision
of outdoor amenity space for residents is considered acceptable and compliant
with the objectives of Policies CP8, DM3 and DM8.

The Noise Assessment submitted in support of the application has considered the
site’s prevailing noise climate and assesses potential noise impacts that may affect
the proposed development and its future occupiers. The assessment concludes
that standard double glazing, as proposed, will address any potential noise
concerns related to road traffic noise, predominantly in Fairfax Drive and would
achieve the relevant internal standard in British Standard 8233. The same applies
to the development’s relationship to the southern (stadium) boundary. The Noise
Assessment’s conclusions have been reviewed by the Council’s Environmental
Health Service and have been found to be acceptable subject to the conditions
incorporated at the end of this report.

234



4.52

4.53

4.54

4.55

4.56

4.57

4.58

Impact on neighbouring occupiers’ amenity

Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document and Policy
CP4 of the Core Strategy refer to the impact of development on surrounding
occupiers. High quality development, by definition, should provide a positive living
environment for its occupiers whilst not having an adverse impact on the amenity
of neighbours as protection and enhancement of amenity is essential to
maintaining people’s quality of life and ensuring the successful integration of
proposed development into existing neighbourhoods.

The proposed development is laid out in a conventional rectilinear manner. Its
principal aspect is to the north onto Fairfax Drive with return, main building
frontages facing towards the eastern and western boundaries and inwards to the
site between these respective blocks. The rear elevation of Block C would be some
16m from the southern boundary shared with the Roots Hall Stadium site.

A minimum distance of 10.2m would exist between main habitable rooms and the
eastern boundary. The adjoining buildings here fronting Victoria Avenue contain
ground floor commercial and residential flats above. In addition there exists,
between the rear of the Victoria Avenue properties and the application site, an
access route some 3m wide such that it is considered that no materially harmful
levels of overlooking or invasion of privacy would result.

A minimum distance of 13.5m would be retained between west facing habitable
rooms and the nearest residential boundary (40 Fairfax Drive). No 40 has no main
flank windows and has a single storey rear addition. This property would
experience a changed relationship with the application site which is currently
comparatively open so there is potential for an increased perception of overlooking
as the new development projects back across four floors into this western part of
the site with a number of westward facing habitable room windows and balconies.
However those windows and balconies are designed to primarily overlook the new
development’s amenity area. Furthermore, due to the design and layout, south
facing balconies in the new development, screened to their sides, would to a
material extent, mitigate the effect of westward overlooking from windows and
balconies in the internal corner of Block A/B.

Support material has been submitted with the application showing that the oblique
relationship between habitable rooms/ balconies further into the southern depth of
the site would achieve a minimum distance of some 18m between balconies
serving the new flats and the rear wall of No 40 Fairfax Drive. It is considered that
block A/B would not unduly dominate the rear garden scene and rear outlook of
houses to the west. Nor would any levels of direct overlooking be so significant as
to represent material harm warranting refusal on privacy grounds.

Subiject to incorporation of a privacy screen strategy designed to prevent material
invasion of privacy the proposed roof terraces are considered to be acceptable.
Such a strategy can be secured through a planning condition.

Planning conditions are also recommended to control the development’s impact on

neighbours arising from construction/ demolition operating hours, construction
method and similar environmental considerations.

235



4.59

4.60

4.61

4.62

4.63

Subiject to the conditions described above and reflected in Section 10 of this report,
the development’s impact on the amenity of future occupiers and neighbours to the
development is therefore considered acceptable and compliant with policy
objectives.

Traffic and Transportation

National Planning Policy Framework, Policies KP2 and CP3 of the Southend-
on-Sea Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP3, Policy DM15 of the
Southend-on-Sea Development Management Document (2015) and the
Design and Townscape Guide (2009)

Policy CP3 of the Core Strategy (2007) seeks to widen travel choice and improve
road safety. Policy DM15 of the Development Management Document states that
one off-street parking space should be provided for each dwelling.

The following comments take on board revisions made to the scheme to address
queries and initial points of concern :

Access

The proposal has been amended in response to concerns about access/ egress
arrangements, particularly conflict of the west egress with Fairfax Drive and
Prittlewell Chase. A Stage 1 Road Safety Audit has demonstrated using swept
path analysis that large vehicles can exit in one manoeuvre onto Fairfax Drive in
either direction. Proximity to existing junctions and traffic islands have been all
been assessed and considered acceptable. As an improvement upon the
originally submitted proposal, a small traffic island is now proposed on the eastern
access point coupled with kerb re-alignment and a splitter island to be constructed
within Fairfax Drive itself. This is to prevent right turn vehicle movements into or
out of the eastern access whilst maintaining satisfactory bus swept path movement
at the Fairfax Drive/Prittlewell Chase junction together with maintained operational
integrity of the yellow box markings. This has been reviewed by the Council’s Road
Safety Team and is considered to be acceptable and will ensure the free flow of
traffic on Fairfax Drive and Prittlewell Chase.

Traffic generation

Consideration has been given to the previous use of the site which was formerly
Prospects College, a vehicle hire company overflow parking and now is a storage
facility for construction materials. All previous uses generated a significant number
of daily vehicle movements using a similar western egress onto Fairfax Drive as
the proposed development. When comparing the previous uses with the proposed
use there is an increase in the vehicle movements generated as a result of the
development. However this is not considered to have a detrimental impact upon
the public highway in the vicinity and surrounding areas of the site. The site
benefits from its sustainable location for public transport with good links to bus and
rail services in close proximity and the Prittlebrook cycle route network that
provides wider access to the town centre and Leigh on Sea.

Car Parking

236



4.64

4.65

4.66

4.67

4.68

4.69

The development provides 92 (one to one) parking spaces in line with the
Council’'s policy including 10 spaces for disabled users conveniently dispersed
within the layout. The proposal has been amended to incorporate 10% active
Electric Vehicle (EV) parking spaces and a further 10% of the total parking spaces
with passive EV charging points which is welcomed.

The proposal has been amended to include a raised table formal square designed
to prevent indiscriminate parking within the access road circulation route intended
to deter vehicles from parking inappropriately within the development site. As
failure to control parking within the site may lead to large vehicles such as refuse
freighters having difficulty access the site as such a parking management scheme
for the site is proposed to be secured through a planning condition.

Cycle Parking

Covered facilities for 100 cycles are provided within the development. These can
be secured and controlled by a planning condition.

Servicing/ refuse

Refuse storage is provided within each residential block. The applicant will be
required to contact the Council’'s waste service provider, Viola to ensure that
access is granted to the secure refuse storage areas to enable waste collection.
The waste contractor will also seek assurances that the road structure will be
suitable to accommodate a fully laden refuse freighter and will also need
assurances that full access will be granted to the site. Inconsiderate parking which
obstructs the internal operation of the site would lead to collections not being
made. This will need to be addressed within a car park management scheme and
would be secured via a condition.

Bus stops

Bus stops outside the site are no longer proposed to be relocated as part of any of
the proposed highway works.

Conclusion

The applicant has worked with the Highway Authority during the application
process. Having regard to the applicant’s detailed application and the information
supplied with their Design and Access Statement it is considered that the proposal
will not have a detrimental impact on the local highway network. Therefore given
the information contained within the report no highway objections are raised. The
applicant will be required to enter into the appropriate highway agreement to carry
out all work on the public highway. A Financial Sum associated with any Traffic
Regulation Order deemed necessary in association with the highway works which
would involve carriageway /footpath re-alignment and physical measures and road
markings to prevent right turn movements is association with the development, is
covered by the Section 106 agreement heads of terms described in para 4.23
below.

237



4.70

4.71

4.72

4.73

4.74

4.75

Sustainable Construction

National Planning Policy Framework (2012) (NPPF), Policy KP2 of the
Southend-on-Sea Core Strategy (2007), Policies DM1 and DM2 of the
Southend-on-Sea Development Management Document (2015) and the
Southend-on-Sea Design and Townscape Guide (2009)

Policy KP2 of the Core Strategy states that “All development proposals should
demonstrate how they will maximise the use of renewable and recycled energy,
water and other resources. This applies during both construction and the
subsequent operation of the development. At least 10% of the energy needs of
new development should come from on-site renewable options (and/or
decentralised renewable or low carbon energy sources), such as those set out in
SPD 1 Design and Townscape Guide”.

The submitted proposals are supported by an Energy Statement which is intended
to support and explain how the scheme responds to the requirements of the local
council and Building Regulations ADL1A. It acknowledges that there is a specific
policy requirement from this Council for new developments to reduce CO2
emissions by 10% using renewable technologies. The Energy Statement has taken
a different approach to this Council’s core strategy stating that the applicants wish
to take a fabric first approach to meet the majority of the 10% reduction in CO2 and
then utilise renewable energy technology if necessary.

Using this fabric first approach the development would concentrate on reducing the
heating demand through a highly efficient building fabric meaning the amount of
CO2 produced by space heating will be decreased rather than constructing
an inefficient building with a high heat demand counteracted by renewable energy
technologies. The applicants state that the Energy Statement thus demonstrates
compliance with Building Regulations ADL1A 2013 and a 10% reduction in CO2
site wide.

However this approach would deliver only 2.99% through renewable technology
(photovoltaics) itself, a level which falls materially below with the Council’'s 10%
policy threshold. Notwithstanding the merits of the applicants fabric first approach
and as there is scope for additional photovoltaics to be accommodated within the
development, a condition is recommended to secure 10% through renewable
technologies so complying with the Council’s policy. Subject to this the proposal
would be acceptable in this regard.

The site is located in flood risk zone 1 (low risk). Policy KP2 of the Core Strategy
states all development proposals should demonstrate how they incorporate
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) to mitigate the increase in surface water
runoff, and, where relevant, how they will avoid or mitigate tidal or fluvial flood risk.
A condition is proposed to ensure the proposed development mitigates against
surface water runoff.

Policy DM2 of the Development Management Document part (iv) requires water
efficient design measures that limit internal water consumption to 105 litres per
person per day (Ipd) (110 Ipd when including external water consumption).
Such measures will include the use of water efficient fittings, appliances and water

238



4.76

4.77

4.78

4.79

4.80

recycling systems such as grey water and rainwater harvesting. This can be
secured by condition.

In summary subject to imposition of conditions the sustainable construction
implications will be acceptable and policy compliant.

Other matters
Archaeology

The Archaeology desk top study submitted in support of the application concludes
that the site has a low theoretical archaeological potential and does not identify any
need for additional mitigation measures.’

Biodiversity and Nature Conservation

The NPPF states that the planning system should contribute to and enhance the
natural environment including protecting biodiversity. Planning decisions must
therefore prevent unacceptable harm to biodiversity and impose adequate
mitigation measures where appropriate. The site itself has no ecological
designation.

An ecologist's Phase 1 habitat survey has been carried out in support of the
application. The site is not subject of ant statutory ecological designations. On the
basis of field observations the ecological report concludes that the site is of low
nature conservation importance. It therefore recommends that there are
opportunities to increase the biodiversity of the site as follows. For bats it
recommends : installation of bat boxes within the development; that residential
lighting is downward facing so as not to disrupt bats’ movements; new site
landscaping include trees and shrubs producing insects on which bats prey; and
the formation of residential gardens will increase the biodiversity of flora and fauna.
Further measures will include landscaping to incorporate foodplants for the Holly
Blue butterfly, a BAP (Biodiversity Action Plan) species found on site plus
installation of bird boxes to encourage three BAP bird species found on site ( swift,
House sparrow and Herring gull). Subject to these measures being controlled
through a proposed planning condition, the ecological considerations of the
proposal are found to be acceptable and policy compliant.

Contaminated Land

The site has previously been used for bus depot, storage and commercial activities
so a Tier 1 Contamination Study has been undertaken in support of the application
to consider the potential for contamination on site. The site has been assessed as
having a moderate risk of contamination. The Tier 1 report recommendations
advise that further soil testing and gas monitoring is warranted. This Council’s
Environmental Health service has no objection to the development and request
conditions to address the findings and other contents of the Tier 1 report. Those
are incorporated into the list of conditions at Section 10 of this report. Subject to
the developer satisfactorily discharging and adhering to the requirements of those
conditions it is found that the contamination considerations of the proposal would
be acceptable and policy compliant.

239



4.81

4.82

4.83

4.84

4.85

Developer contributions
Planning Policies: NPPF; Core Strategy (2007) Policy KP3.

Core Strategy Police KP3 requires that:
“In order to help the delivery of the Plan’s provisions the Borough Council will:

2. Enter into planning obligations with developers to ensure the provision of
infrastructure and transportation measures required as a consequence of the
development proposed.

This includes provisions such as; a. roads , sewers, servicing facilities and car
parking; b. improvements to cycling, walking and passenger transport facilities and
services; c. off-site flood protection or mitigation measures, including sustainable
drainage systems (SUDS); d. affordable housing; e. educational facilities; f. open
space, ‘green grid’, recreational, sport or other community development and
environmental enhancements, including the provision of public art where
appropriate; g. any other works, measures or actions required as a consequence
of the proposed development; and h. appropriate on-going maintenance
requirements.”

The following S106 contributions are proposed :

e 28 units of affordable housing (14 x 1 bed, 6 x 2 bed, 3 x 3 bed) of which 11
for shared ownership and 17 for rent)

e £46,154.03 contribution towards secondary education

e £4000 associated with any Traffic Regulation Order deemed necessary in
association with the highway works

The above addresses the specific mitigation for the site for matters not addressed
within the Regulation 123 Infrastructure List.

The contributions proposed are considered to meet the tests set out in the CIL
Regulations 2010. Without the contributions that are set out above the
development could not be considered acceptable.

Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations

The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 came into force on 6 April
2010. The planning obligation discussed above and as outlined in the
recommendation below has been fully considered in the context of Part 11 Section
122 (2) of the Regulations, namely that planning obligations are:

a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; and
b) directly related to the development; and
C) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development

The conclusion is that the planning obligation outlined in this report would meet all
the tests and so that if the application were otherwise consider to be acceptable
this would constitute a reason for granting planning permission in respect of
application.

240



4.86

5.0
5.1

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

This application is CIL liable and there will be a CIL charge payable. In accordance
with Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended by
Section 143 of the Localism Act 2011) and Section 155 of the Housing and
Planning Act 2016, CIL is being reported as a material ‘local finance consideration’
for the purpose of planning decisions. The application site is located within Zone 1
therefore a CIL rate of £24.08 per sqgm is required for the proposed development.
The proposed development equates to 7415 sqm of residential floors pace which
may equate to a CIL charge of approximately £ 178,553 (subject to confirmation).
Any existing floor area that is being retained/demolished that satisfies the “in-use
building ” test, as set out in CIL Regulation 40, may be deducted from the
chargeable area thus resulting in a reduction in the chargeable amount.

Conclusion

Having taken all material planning considerations into account, it is found that
subject to compliance with the attached conditions, the proposed development
would be acceptable and compliant with the objectives of the relevant development
plan policies and guidance. The mix of units is found to be acceptable taking into
account the history of the site and current housing need. The proposal would
provide adequate amenities for future occupiers and would have an acceptable
impact on the amenities of neighbouring occupiers and the character and
appearance of the application site, the street scene and the locality more widely.
The highways impacts of the proposal are considered to be acceptable. It is
therefore recommended that Members resolve that permission would have been
granted subject to conditions following completion of a Section 106 legal
agreement had the application not been appealed for non-determination.

Planning Policy Summary

NPPF - National Planning Policy Framework: Achieving sustainable development,
Core Planning Principles, Policies: 1.Building a strong, competitive economy; 4.
Promoting sustainable transport, 6. Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes;
7. Requiring good design; 8. Promoting healthy communities; 10. Meeting the
challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change; 11. Conserving and
enhancing the natural environment.

Core Strategy (2007) Policies- Key Policies, KP1 (Spatial Strategy); KP2
(Development  Principles); KP3 (Implementation and Resources); CP1
(Employment Generating Development); CP3 (Transport and Accessibility); CP4
(The Environment and Urban Renaissance); CP6 (Community Infrastructure); CP8
(Dwelling Provision).

Development Management Document (2015) Policies: Policy DM1 — Design
Quality; Policy DM2 — Low Carbon Development and Efficient Use of Resources;
Policy DM3 - Efficient and Effective Use of Land; Policy DM5 — Historic
Environment; Policy DM7 — Dwelling Mix, Size and Type; Policy DM8 — Residential
Standards; DM10 — Employment Sectors; Policy DM11 — Employment Areas;
Policy DM15 — Sustainable Transport Management.

Design & Townscape Guide (2009).

241



6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

7.0

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

Planning Obligations (2010)
CIL Charging Schedule 2015, Regulation 123 List
National Housing Technical Standards 2015

Southend and Central Area Action Plan (SCAAP) Revised Proposed Submission
Document (2016). Policies PS8, DS2 and DS3.

Representation Summary

Essex and Suffolk Water - Our records show that we do not have any apparatus
located in the proposed development. This is not in our area of mains. We have no
objection to this development subject to compliance with our requirements,
consent is given to the development on the condition that a water connection is
made onto our Company network for the new dwelling for revenue purposes.

Airport Director — No safeguarding objections to proposal. If a crane or piling rig
is required for construction then airport safeguarding to be considered separately.

Environment Agency (EA) — The applicant has overcome the EA’s initial holding
objection by confirming that the development will be connected to the main sewer.

Fire Brigade — Comment on hydrant provision and fire appliance access required
to meet Building Regulations

Natural England - The Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended)
The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as amended)

Natural England’s comments are:
Statutory nature conservation sites — no objection

Natural England has assessed this application using the Impact Risk Zones data
(IRZs). Natural England advises your authority that the proposal, if undertaken in
strict accordance with the details submitted, is not likely to have a significant effect
on the interest features for which Benfleet & Southend Marshes (SPA and Ramsar)
has been classified. Natural England therefore advises that your Authority is not
required to undertake an Appropriate Assessment to assess the implications of this
proposal on the site’s conservation objectives.

In addition, Natural England is satisfied that the proposed development being
carried out in strict accordance with the details of the application, as submitted, will
not damage or destroy the interest features for which the Benfleet & Southend
Marshes SSSI has been notified. We therefore advise your authority that this SSSI
does not represent a constraint in determining this application. Should the details
of this application change, Natural England draws your attention to Section 28(1) of
the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), requiring your authority to re-
consult Natural England

242



This reply comprises our statutory consultation response under provisions of
Article 20 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure) (England) Order 2010, Regulation 61 (3) of the Conservation of
Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as amended), (The Habitat Regulations)
and Section 28(l) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended).

Protected species

We have not assessed this application and associated documents for impacts on
protected species. Natural England has published Standing Advice on protected
species.

You should apply our Standing Advice to this application as it is a material
consideration in the determination of applications in the same way as any
individual response received from Natural England following consultation.

The Standing Advice should not be treated as giving any indication or providing
any assurance in respect of European Protected Species (EPS) that the proposed
development is unlikely to affect the EPS present on the site; nor should it be
interpreted as meaning that Natural England has reached any views as to whether
a licence is needed (which is the developer’s responsibility) or may be granted.

Local sites
If the proposal site is on or adjacent to a local site, e.g. Local Wildlife Site,
Regionally Important Geological/Geomorphological Site (RIGS) or Local Nature
Reserve (LNR) the authority should ensure it has sufficient information to fully
understand the impact of the proposal on the local site before it determines the
application.

Biodiversity enhancements

This application may provide opportunities to incorporate features into the design
which are beneficial to wildlife, such as the incorporation of roosting opportunities
for bats or the installation of bird nest boxes. The authority should consider
securing measures to enhance the biodiversity of the site from the applicant, if it is
minded to grant permission for this application. This is in accordance with
Paragraph 118 of the National Planning Policy Framework. Additionally, we would
draw your attention to Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural
Communities Act (2006) which states that ‘Every public authority must, in
exercising its functions, have regard, so far as is consistent with the proper
exercise of those functions, to the purpose of conserving biodiversity’. Section
40(3) of the same Act also states that ‘conserving biodiversity includes, in relation
to a living organism or type of habitat, restoring or enhancing a population or
habitat’.

Landscape enhancements

This application may provide opportunities to enhance the character and local
distinctiveness of the surrounding natural and built environment; use natural
resources more sustainably; and bring benefits for the local community, for
example through green space provision and access to and contact with nature.
Landscape characterisation and townscape assessments, and associated
sensitivity and capacity assessments provide tools for planners and developers to
consider new development and ensure that it makes a positive contribution in

243



7.6

terms of design, form and location, to the character and functions of the landscape
and avoids any unacceptable impacts.

Sites of Special Scientific Interest Impact Risk Zones

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)
(England) Order 2015 requires local planning authorities to consult Natural
England on “Development in or likely to affect a Site of Special Scientific Interest”
(Schedule 4, w). Our SSSI Impact Risk Zones are a GIS dataset designed to be
used during the planning application validation process to help local planning
authorities decide when to consult Natural England on developments likely to affect
a SSSI.

Traffic and Highways — The following comments take on board revisions made to
the scheme to address queries and initial points of concern :

Access

The proposal has been amended in response to initial officer concerns about
access/ egress arrangements, particularly conflict of the west egress with Fairfax
Drive and Prittlewell Chase. A Stage 1 Road Safety Audit has been completed
which has been demonstrated using swept path analysis that large vehicles can
exit in one manoeuvre onto Fairfax drive in either direction. Proximity to existing
junctions and traffic islands have been all been assessed and considered
acceptable. In addition a small traffic island is now proposed on the eastern
access point coupled with kerb re-alignment and a splitter island to be constructed
within Fairfax Drive itself to prevent right turn vehicle movements into or out of the
eastern access whilst maintaining satisfactory bus swept path movement at the
Fairfax Drive/Prittlewell Chase junction together with maintained operational
integrity of the yellow box markings. This approach has been reviewed by the
Council’'s Road Safety Team and is considered to be acceptable and will ensure
the free flow of traffic on Fairfax Drive and Prittlewell Chase.

Traffic generation

Consideration has been given to the previous use of the site which was formally
Prospects College, a vehicle hire company overflow parking and now is a storage
facility for construction materials. All previous uses have generated a significant
number of daily vehicle movement’s utilising a similar western egress onto Fairfax
Drive as the proposed development. When comparing the previous uses with the
proposed use there is an increase in the vehicle movements generated as a result
of the development but this is not considered to have a detrimental impact upon
the public highway in the vicinity and surrounding areas of the site. The site
benefits from being in a sustainable location regard to public transport with good
links to bus and rail services in close proximity and the additional of the Prittlebrook
cycle route network that provides wider access to the town centre and Leigh on
Sea.

Car Parking
The development provides 92 (one to one) parking spaces in line with the

Council’s policy and the proposal has been amended to incorporate 10% active
Electric Vehicle (EV) parking spaces and a further 10% of the total parking spaces

244



7.7

with passive EV charging points which is welcomed.

The proposal has been amended to include a raised table formal square designed
to prevent indiscriminate parking within the access road circulation route intended
to deter vehicles from parking inappropriately within the development site. The
applicant should be made aware that failure to control parking within the site may
lead to large vehicles such as refuse freighters having difficulty access the site as
such a parking management scheme for the site is requested which can be
secured through a planning condition.

Cycle Parking

Covered facilities for 100 cycles are provided within the development. The
applicant is advised to ensure these cycle spaces are secure. This can be secured
by a planning condition.

Travel Packs

Travel Packs will need to be provided for each residential unit, to include but not be
limited to maps of the local area, bike routes, walking routes, bus stop locations,
train station locations etc. Also to include free bus and rail tickets for the residents
to use to encourage them to use public transport.

Servicing

Refuse storage has been provided within each residential block. The applicant will
be required to contact the Council’s waste service provider, Viola to ensure that
access is granted to the secure refuse storage areas to enable waste collection.
The waste contractor will also seek assurances that the road structure will be
suitable to accommodate a fully laden refuse freighter and will also need
assurances that full access will be granted to the site. Inconsiderate parking which
obstructs the internal operation of the site will lead to collections not being made.
This will need to be addressed within the car park management scheme mentioned
earlier and will be secured via condition.

Bus stops

The applicant confirms that bus stops outside the site are no longer proposed to be
relocated as part of any of the proposed highway works.

Conclusion

The applicant has worked proactively with the Highway Authority during the Pre-
Application process. Having reviewed the applicant’s detailed application and the
information supplied with the Design and Access Statement it is considered that
the proposal will not have a detrimental impact on the local highway network.
Therefore given the information contained within the report no highway objections

are raised. The applicant will be required to enter into the appropriate highway
agreement to carry out all work on the public highway.

Design and Regeneration — made range of design and accessibility comments

245



7.8

7.9

which have resulted in amendments to the originally submitted proposal.

Environmental Health — No objection in principle to the development. However,
the Tier 1 Contaminated Land Study Report ref, CON1-046 version1 of 1 Sept
2016 have [sic] highlighted a number of potential contaminants on the site as result
of its former uses and therefore conditions are recommended relating to: Further
assessment of contamination, remediation of contamination, gas monitoring,
underground fuel storage tanks to be removed, completion of mediation and
submission of validation report prior to commencement, asbestos survey, noise
mitigation measure to be implemented including for road traffic and windows
otherwise subject to stadium noise, hours of work, mitigation measure for
noise/dust, no burning of waste, plus informative re compliance with other
regulatory frameworks.

Strategic Housing — The Department for People welcomes the provision of
Affordable Housing. It is noted that the proposals has been revised since
submission so that 28 affordable units are now provided which represents a
minimum of 30% in accordance with Core Strategy Policy CP8.

In terms of the dwelling mix, the SHMA Review 2013 undertook an assessment of
affordable dwelling needs and consequently set out a recommended affordable
dwelling mix for Southend on Sea, the percentages Indicated below are the
affordable housing provision by bedroom size for the borough.

The percentage of affordable housing element required within the borough: -
1 2 Dbed | 3 bed | 4+ bed

bed

43% | 37% | 4%

16%

Further to the SHMA data above, consideration is given to the housing need as
defined by the high priority bands within Southend Borough Councils Housing
Register data (below).

% of
MinBedSiz Band A Band Band Grand | Need
e B C Total (bed

need)
01 87 32 267 386 34.34
2 28 69 340 437 38.88
3 1 37 222 260 23.13
4 1 15 22 38 3.38
5 1 2 3 0.27
CGrand 117 154 853 1124
Total

246




7.10

7.11

8.0
8.1

It is clear that there is substantial need for 1 and 2 bedroom properties, and
therefore we support the scheme in terms of the type of housing provision.

The proposal has been amended since submission to accord with the Strategic
Housing Team’s preference for a housing type breakdown of 17 units for affordable
rent (10 x 1 bed, 4 x 2 bed and 3 x 3 bed) plus 11 units for shared ownership (8 x 1
bed, and 3 x 2 bed) and is now supported as it complies with Development
Management DPD Policy DM7 which seeks a tenure mix of 60/40% (60% rented,
40% intermediate housing).

Other Comments:

Registered Providers (RP’s) should be contacted as early as possible with regards
to understanding their requirements. Generally RP’s will prefer to have their
affordable dwellings contained within one block (per tenure). Mixing affordable rent
with other tenures can cause issues with service charges. It is worth noting that
RP’s may be interested in taking on additional units particularly where it would
result in the ownership of an entire block.

We would advise that affordable housing units must meet the latest National
Technical Housing standards, for more information please visit:
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/5245
31/160519_Nationally Described_Space_Standard Final_Web_version.pdf

It is noted that Block A/B containing the affordable housing is not served by lift
access and that the applicants have made submissions in conjunction with their
identified registered social landlord setting out a maintenance and tenant charges
case as to why they do not propose to provide a lift in this instance because the
block is no higher than three storeys.

In order to maintain accessibility for all however and “accessible” units within Block
A/B should be located on the ground floor. We would also recommend that any
larger family type units within Block A/B should similarly be located on the ground
floor.

Education - Require £46,154.03 financial contribution towards secondary
education on following basis. This application sits with in the catchment of The
Westborough Primary School and Chase High School (Secondary). Whilst primary
places are tight they are available in most year groups. The secondary school
pupil numbers are increasing rapidly and a programme of expansion is currently
being worked through with all non-selective schools in the borough. A secondary
contribution towards work at Chase High School is requested as this area of the
town generally sees local resident secondary pupils attending this secondary
school and from September 2018 all other secondary schools within an acceptable
travel distance will be at or near capacity.

Other consultations - Consultations with the following were also carried out and
no comments were received: Parks; Police Architectural Liaison and Community
Safety officers; Anglian Water; EDF Energy; Essex Wildlife Trust; Building Control,
Curator Central Museum; Drainage Engineer.

Public Consultation

The applicant was called into Committee by Clir David Garston also with a request
for a Committee site visit.

247


https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/524531/160519_Nationally_Described_Space_Standard____Final_Web_version.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/524531/160519_Nationally_Described_Space_Standard____Final_Web_version.pdf

8.2

9.0
9.1

Site notices were first displayed on 5 September 2017 and 59 neighbours were
notified including following revised plans. No representations have been received.

Relevant Planning History

There is an extensive planning history including applications for discharge of
conditions both for the current application site and in regard to the site’s part of
larger development proposals for Roots Hall Stadium to the south. Most relevant
are :

11/01540/RESM: Demolish Football Stadium, Flats, Shops And College;
Redevelop Site With 3 Storey Retail Food Store, 6,976m2 (Net) Retail
Floorspace); Incorporating Parking And Associated Servicing At Ground Floor
Level, Sales Area At First Floor Level And Staff Facilities At Mezzanine Level,
Erect Petrol Filling Station With Kiosk, Cycle Parking, Form Vehicular
Accesses / Egresses Onto Fairfax Drive, Roots Hall Avenue And Victoria Avenue
And Modify Access To Shakespeare Drive For Emergency And Pedestrian Only
Access, Lay Out Associated Landscaping And Erect Retaining Walls To
Southern Part Of Site (Approval Of Reserved Matters Following Grant Of
Outline Permission 07/01111/Out Dated 24/06/11) Prospects, Fairfax Drive,
299,301,341-365,1-37 St. Marys Court, Roots Hall Victoria Avenue Approve
reserved matters — Approved

08/00272/RS0O: Redevelop Site With Retail Food Store, Petrol Filling Station
And Associated Works (Request For Screening Opinion) — Screening/ Scoping
Opinion issued

07/01111/OUTM: Demolish Football Stadium, Flats, Shops And College;
Redevelop Site With Retail Food Store At First Floor Level (10,113 Sq. Metres);
And Petrol Filling Station With Kiosk, Two Standalone Units Fronting Fairfax
Drive For Class A3, A4,B1 And D1 Uses, A Total Of 272 Residential Units
Comprising Flat, Semi Detached And Terraced Houses (Including Affordable
Housing), Layout Parking Spaces (Some Below Buildings) And Lay Out
Security Areas, Form Vehicular Accesses / Egresses Onto Fairfax Drive,
Roots Hall Avenue And Victoria Avenue And Modify Access To Shakespeare
Drive For Emergency And Pedestrian Only Access, Lay Out Associated
Landscaping And Erect Retaining Walls To Southern Part Of Site — Approved

06/01335/0U: Demolish Football Stadium, Flats, Shops And College;
Redevelop Site With Retail Food Store At First Floor Level (9290 Sq. Metres);
And Development Of Up to 7 Storeys Incorporating 402 Residential Units
Including Affordable Housing, 8 Retail Units (Class A1), Fitness Club, Lay
Out Parking Spaces And Servicing Area, Associated Landscaping And Form
Vehicular Accesses Onto Fairfax Drive, Victoria Avenue And Roots Hall
Avenue (Outline) - Approved

05/00909/FU: Site Temporary Building In Car Park For Training Purposes —
Approved

92/0906: Erect Two Storey Extension To And Alter Elevations Of Main Building
And Erect Detached Workshop All In Connection With Use As Industrial
Training Workshop (Class D1) With Incidental Industrial (Class B1 And B2) And
Storage (Class B8) Uses.- Approved

92/0655: Erect Two Storey Extension To And Alter Elevations Of Main Building
And Erect Detached Workshop All In Connection With Use As Industrial

248



10.0

(a)

(b)

01

02

03

Training Workshop (Class D1) With Incidental Industrial (Class B1 And B2) And
Storage (Class B8) Uses - Approved

Recommendation
Members are recommended to:

Resolve that had the application not been appealed for non-determination
they would have determined to GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to
completion of a PLANNING AGREEMENT UNDER SECTION 106 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and all appropriate legislation
to seek the following:

¢ A minimum of 28 units of affordable housing units, of which 17 (10 x 1
bed, 4 x 2 bed and 3 x 3 bed) shall be for affordable rent or social rent
and 11 (8 x 1 bed and 3 x 2 bed) shall comprise shared ownership
dwellings

e Contribution of £46,154 towards secondary education

o Traffic Regulation Order contribution of £4,000

Upon completion of the obligation planning permission would have been
granted subject to the following conditions:

The development hereby permitted shall be begun not later than 3 years
beginning with the date of the original permission (7t March 2018).

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

The development shall be carried solely out in accordance with the approved
plans: AP234: P001 Rev D (Landscape and semi basement), P002 Rev D
(Ground and Upper Ground Floor), P003 Rev D (First Floor), P004 Rev D
(Second Floor), P005 Rev D (Third Floor), P006 Rev D (Fourth Floor), P007
Rev D (Roof Plan/ Street Elevation), P008 Rev D (Elevations Sheet 1), P009
Rev D (Elevations Sheet 2), P0010 Rev D ( Elevations Sheet 3), AP 234 P201-
P240 (Flat types 1 to 40).

Reason: To ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the
development plan.

Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise
hereby approved, no construction works above the lower ground floor
(parking) slab level shall take place until samples of the materials to be used
in the construction of the external elevations of the building hereby
permitted, including balconies, balustrades, screening and fenestration,
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. Development shall only be carried out in full accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: To safeguard character and appearance of surrounding area in

249



04

05

06

accordance with Policies KP2 and CP4 of the BLP and policies DM1 and DM3
of the Development Management DPD 2015.

No construction works above the lower ground floor (parking) floor slab level
shall take place until full details of both hard and soft landscape works to be
carried out in accordance with this permission have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These details shall
include: proposed finished levels or contours; means of enclosure (including
any gates to the car parks); car parking layouts; other vehicle and
pedestrian access and circulation areas; hard surfacing materials; minor
artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, loggia, bollards, play equipment,
refuse or other storage units, signs, lighting etc.) Details for the soft
landscape works shall include the number, size and location of the trees,
shrubs and plants to be planted together with a planting specification, the
management of the site (e.g. the uncompacting of the site prior to planting)
and the initial tree planting and tree staking details. The hard landscaping
shall be completed prior to first occupation of the development and soft
landscaping/planting shall be completed within the planting season
following first occupation of the development. (or within any other time limit
agreed in writing with the local planning authority). If any trees are removed
or found to be dying, severely damaged or diseased within 5 years of
planting them, they must be replaced with trees of a similar size and species
as may be agreed with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To safeguard character and appearance of surrounding area in
accordance with Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy 2007, Policy DM1
and DM3 of the Development Management Document 2015 and the Design
and Townscape Guide 2009

The development hereby approved shall be carried in accordance with
drawing AP234-P0002 Revision D dated 20/12/17 Ground and Upper Floor
Plan in relation to the highways works and new access road shown for the
development in accordance with a timescale that has been submitted to the
local planning authority and approved in writing before the development is
first occupied.

Reason: In the interests of highways management and safety in accordance
with Core Strategy (2007) policy KP2, CP3, CP4; Development Management
Document (2015) policies DM13 and the advice contained within the Design
and Townscape Guide (2009).

The development shall not be occupied until 92 car parking spaces, of which
10 shall be for disabled users, have been provided at the site in accordance
with drawings AP234-P001 Revision D (dated 20/12/17) Landscape and Semi-
Basement Parking and AP234-P0002 Revision D (dated 20/12/17) Ground and
Upper Floor Plan, together with properly constructed vehicular accesses to
the adjoining highway, all in accordance with the approved plans. The
parking spaces shall be permanently retained thereafter for the parking of
occupiers of and visitors to the development.

Reason: To ensure that adequate car parking is provided and retained to

250



07

08

09

10

serve the development in accordance with policy CP3 of the Core Strategy
(2007) and policy DM15 of the Council’s Development Management
Document (2015).

The development shall not be occupied until details of all balcony and
terrace areas within the development and how they will be served by privacy
screens have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The screens, as approved, shall be erected prior to first
occupation of those balconies/ terrace areas, and retained thereafter in
perpetuity. No flat roof areas within the development shall be used for the
purposes of a sitting out, balcony or amenity area unless it has been
specifically approved as part of the above details.

Reason: In the interest of the visual amenities and character of the area, and
to protect the amenities of surrounding occupiers in accordance with
policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy DPD1 and with CP4 of the Core
Strategy DPD1 and Policies DM1 of the Development Management DPD 2015.
The development shall not be occupied until a waste management plan for
the dwellings has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The waste management and servicing of the
development shall thereafter be carried out solely in accordance with the
approved details including the provision of all refuse storage facilities which
shall be maintained in perpetuity.

Reason: to ensure that the development is satisfactorily serviced and that
satisfactory waste management is undertaken in the interests of highway
safety and visual amenity and to protect the character of the surrounding
area, in accordance with Policies KP2 and CP3 of the Core Strategy DPD1
and Policy DM15 of the Development Management DPD 2015.

The development shall not be occupied until the secure, covered cycle
parking spaces to serve the development as shown on drawings AP234-P001
Revision D (dated 20/12/17) Landscape and Semi-Basement Parking and
AP234-P0002 Revision D (dated 20/12/17) Ground and Upper Floor Plan have
been provided at the site in full accordance with the approved plans. The
approved scheme shall be permanently maintained thereafter.

Reason: To ensure that adequate cycle parking is provided and retained to
serve the development in accordance with Policies CP3 of the Core Strategy
DPD1 and Policy DM15 of the Development Management DPD 2015.

No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in
writing by, the local planning authority. The approved Statement shall be
adhered to throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide,
amongst other things, for:

i) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors

ii) loading and unloading of plant and materials

iii) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
iv) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding

V) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction

251



11

12

vi) a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and
construction works that does not allow for the burning of waste on site.
vii) hours of work

Reason: A pre-commencement condition is needed in the interests of visual
amenity and the amenities of neighbouring occupiers and to ensure a
satisfactory standard of landscaping pursuant to Policy CP4 of the Core
Strategy DPD1 with CP4 of the Core Strategy DPD1 and Policy DM1 of the
Development Management DPD 2015.

No development, other than demolition and site clearance works, shall take
place until details of the implementation, maintenance and management of a
scheme for surface water drainage works incorporating Sustainable Urban
Drainage (SUDS) Principles have been submitted to and approved by the
local planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance
with the approved details before the development is occupied and brought
into use and be managed and maintained as such thereafter. Those details
shall include:

i) An investigation of the feasibility of infiltration SUDS as the preferred
approach to establish if the principles of any infiltration based surface water
drainage strategy are achievable across the site, based on ground
conditions. Infiltration features should be included where infiltration rates
allow;

ii) Drainage plans and drawings showing the proposed locations and
dimensions of all aspects of the proposed surface water management
scheme. The submitted plans should demonstrate the proposed drainage
layout will perform as intended based on the topography of the site and the
location of the proposed surface water management features;

iii) a timetable for its implementation; and

vii) a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development
which shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public body or
statutory undertaker, or any other arrangements to secure the operation of
the sustainable drainage scheme throughout its lifetime.

Reason: To prevent flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage and
disposal of surface water from the site for the lifetime of the development
and to prevent environmental and amenity problems arising from flooding in
accordance with Policy KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy 2007 and area in
accordance with policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy DPD1 and Policy
DM2 of the Development Management DPD 2015.

A scheme detailing how at least 10% of the total energy needs of the
development will be supplied using on site renewable sources must be
submitted to and agreed in writing prior to occupation of the development
hereby approved by the Local Planning Authority and implemented in full
prior to the first occupation of the development. This provision shall be
made for the lifetime of the development.

252



13

14

15

Reason: In the interests of providing sustainable development in accordance
with Policy KP2 of the Core Strategy and Development Management
Document policy DM2.

Before the development is occupied or brought into use, the dwellings in
blocks C and D/E hereby approved shall be carried out in a manner to ensure
that the development complies with building regulation M4 (2).

Reason: To ensure the residential units hereby approved provides high
quality and flexible internal layouts to meet the changing needs of residents
in accordance with National Planning Policy Framework, DPD1 (Core
Strategy) policy KP2, DPD2 (Development Management Document) policy
DM2 and SPD1 (Design and Townscape Guide).

Prior to occupation of the development hereby approved details of the water
efficient design measures set out in Policy DM2 (iv) of the Development
Management Document to limit internal water consumption to 105 litres per
person per day (lpd) (110 Ipd when including external water
consumption), including measures of water efficient fittings, appliances and
water recycling systems such as grey water and rainwater harvesting shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details
before it is occupied and be retained as such in perpetuity.

Reason: To minimise the environmental impact of the development through
efficient use of water in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework, DPD1 (Core Strategy) policy KP2, DPD2 (Development
Management Document) policy DM2 and SPD1 (Design and Townscape
Guide).

Notwithstanding the details shown in the plans submitted and otherwise
hereby approved, the development hereby granted consent shall not be
occupied or brought into use unless and until plans are submitted to the
Local Planning Authority and approved in writing which clearly specify all
the windows and other openings in the development that are to be
permanently glazed with obscured glass and fixed shut or provided with only
a fanlight (or other similar) opening and the manner and design in which
these windows and openings are to be implemented. The development herby
permitted shall be implemented in full accordance with the details approved
under this condition before it is first occupied or brought into use and shall
be permanently retained as such thereafter. The windows included within
such agreed scheme shall be glazed in obscure glass which is at least Level
4 on the Pilkington Levels of Privacy, or such equivalent as may be agreed in
writing with the local planning authority. Top hung lights agreed within such
scheme shall be a minimum of 1.7 metres above internal floor level. In the
case of multiple or double glazed units at least one layer of glass in the
relevant units shall be glazed in obscure glass to at least Level 4. The
windows shall be retained in accordance with the agreed details in perpetuity
thereafter.

Reason: To avoid overlooking and the resultant loss of privacy of the
adjoining residential properties, in accordance with the National Planning

253



16

Policy Framework, DPD1 (Core Strategy) 2007 policies KP2 and CP4, and
DPD2 (Development Management Document) 2015 policy DM1 and advice
contained within the Design and Townscape Guide SPD1.

a) Prior to development (including site clearance; construction; demolition
etc.) commencing, detailed intrusive investigation must be undertaken on
the site and the result, in the form of a Phase Il contaminated land
assessment report submitted to the LPA for approval. The investigation must
include detailed soil sampling for a suite of hydrocarbons (including PAHs
and TPHs); heavy metals and asbestos. The investigation must be
undertaken by a competent person as stipulated in the National Planning
Policy Framework, Annex 2 and in accordance with BS10175:2011
(Investigation of potentially contaminated sites — Code of Practice) and the
Environment Agency/DEFRA ‘Model Procedures for the Management of Land
Contamination - CLR 11.

b) If any contaminant is found on the site to be above the relevant standard,
no development shall take place until a detailed remediation scheme to bring
the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by removing
unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and the
natural and historical environment has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation scheme must
include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and
remediation criteria, an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the
preferred option(s), and a timetable of works and site management
procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as
contaminated land under Part IIA of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in
relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.

c) Due to the potential for ground gas migration from the former nearby sand
pit, gas monitoring must be undertaken in accordance with the methodology
outlined in the Tier 1 Contaminated Land Study Report in order to assess the
risk of ground gas at the at site. Where elevated levels of gas are detected on
the site, adequate gas protection measures must be undertaken to prevent
gas ingress into the building(s).

d) All underground fuel storage tanks present on the site must be removed
and disposed off-site. The waste transfer certificate must be included in the
validation report.

e) All approved remediation works must be implemented in their entirety
prior to development commencing unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
LPA.

f) Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the LPA, a validation report shall be
submitted to the LPA prior to development commencing. The report shall
contain details of the works carried out to make the site suitable for the
intended development and a demonstration of the effectiveness of the
remediation works undertaken.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of

254



17

18

19

20

the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to
workers, neighbours and other off-site receptors in accordance with Core
Strategy (2007) policy KP2 and Policies DM1 and DM14 of the Development
Management Document (2015)

All the noise mitigation measures outlined in the Environmental Noise
Assessment Report No. ENV1-SOUT-040 version 1 of 7 July 2017 to protect
future residents of the building from the impact of vehicular noise along
Fairfax Drive and noise from football stadium activity must be implemented
in their entirety prior to occupation of the buildings hereby approved to
achieve an internal noise level of no greater than 30dB and the approved
measures implemented shall be maintained in perpetuity.

Reason: In order to protect the amenities of occupiers of the development
surrounding occupiers and to protect the character the area in accordance
with policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy DPD1 and Policies DM1 and
DM3 of the Development Management DPD 2015.

The development shall not be occupied until a car park management plan for
the development has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall only be occupied in accordance
with the agreed management plan.

Reason: To ensure that the car parking is satisfactorily managed in the
interests of traffic management and highway safety in accordance with
Policies KP2 and CP3 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM15 of the
Development Management Document (2015)

With reference to British Standard 4142, the noise rating level arising from all
plant and extraction/ventilation equipment installed at this site in accordance
with this consent shall be at least 5dB(A) below the prevailing background
noise level at 3.5 metres from ground floor fagades and 1 metre from all
other fagades of the nearest noise sensitive property with no tonal or
impulsive character.

Reason: In order to protect the amenities of occupiers of the development
surrounding occupiers and to protect the character and visual amenities of
the area in accordance with Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007)
and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document
(2015.)

Notwithstanding the details shown in the drawings submitted and otherwise
herby approved the development shall not to commence unless and until
details of the levels of the proposed building, footpaths and other
landscaped areas relative to adjoining land and any other changes proposed
in the levels of the site associated with the works permitted by this
permission have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in full
accordance with the details approved under this condition before it is first

255



21

22

occupied or brought into use.

Reason: A pre-commencement condition is needed to ensure that the
development is carried out at suitable levels in relation to adjoining land and
the highway having regard to drainage and the amenities of the area and
neighbouring occupiers.

Before the development hereby approved is occupied bird and bat boxes
shall be installed at the site in accordance with the Page 16
recommendations on Page 16 of the Phase 1 Habitats Survey (extended) by
Wildlife Matters dated 15 June 2017 submitted with this application. The
installed boxes shall be permanently maintained thereafter.

Reason: To ensure that the development contributes to local ecology in
accordance with the national Planning Policy Framework, Policy KP2 and
CP4 of the Council’s Core Strategy (2007)

No development shall commence unless and until details of the works to
provide access to the site and associated alterations to the public highway
consistent with Drawing No AP234-P0002 have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local planning Authority. The approved works
shall be implemented in full accordance with the approved details before any
of the dwellings hereby approved is first occupied.

Reason: To ensure that traffic flow generated by the approved development
does not prejudice the free flow and safety of traffic movement outside the
site in accordance with Policies CP3 of the Core Strategy DPD1 and Policy
DM15 of the Development Management DPD 2015.

Informatives

Please note that the development the subject of this application is liable for a
charge under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as
amended). A Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Liability Notice will be
issued as soon as practicable following this decision notice. This contains
details including the chargeable amount, when this is payable and when and
how exemption or relief on the charge can be sought. You are advised that a
CIL Commencement Notice (CIL Form 6) must be received by the Council at
least one day before commencement of development. Receipt of this notice
will be acknowledged by the Council. Please ensure that you have received
both a CIL Liability Notice and acknowledgement of your CIL
Commencement Notice before development is commenced. Most claims for
CIL relief or exemption must be sought from and approved by the Council
prior to commencement of the development. Charges and surcharges may
apply, and exemption or relief could be withdrawn if you fail to meet
statutory requirements relating to CIL. Further details on CIL matters can be
found on the Council's website at www.southend.qgov.uk/cil.

The applicant is reminded that this permission does not bestow compliance
with other regulatory frameworks. In particular your attention is drawn to the

256


http://www.southend.gov.uk/cil

statutory nuisance provisions within the Environmental Protection Act 1990
(as amended) and also to the relevant sections of the Control of Pollution Act
1974. The provisions apply to the construction phase and not solely to the
operation of the completed development. Contact 01702 215005 for more
information.

You are advised that a Highways Licence/Agreement needs to be in place
before any works are carried out to the public highway and any works to
public transport infrastructure (e.g. bus stops) will need to be carried out by
a Council approved contractor.

This permission is governed by a legal agreement between the applicant and
the Borough Council under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990. The agreement relates to a financial contribution towards
affordable housing and secondary education.

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in
determining this application by assessing the proposal against all material
considerations, including planning policies and any representations that
may have been received and subsequently determining to grant planning
permission in accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable
development, as set out within the National Planning Policy Framework. The
detailed analysis is set out in a report on the application prepared by
officers.

In relation to condition 06 above, the works to existing highway will require a
Section 278 agreement or Highways Licence.

257



This page is intentionally left blank



6S¢

S\
A '/ ’
O

Builders
Yard

16.8m Shelter

17.1m

N 5%

N

© Q

O Tank

S

o
2 2

26 29 [27 30 |28 31
32 35 3336 (3437

14 17 |15 18 |16 19

2RI

368

268

380

—

El Sub Sta

10m 30m 50m

20m 40m

rev description by

date

PLANNING
ISSUE

Title

Site Location Plan

Site
Prospects College, Southend

D8 \WH1xx/17/P/05.01

Date Rev
June 2017 -

Drawn Scale
AR 1:1250 @ A3

The Weston Group Business Centre,

Parsonage Road, Takeley, Essex. CM22 6PU.
Tel: 01279 873333 Fax: 01279 873378

K info@weston-homes.com /




This page is intentionally left blank



T9¢



This page is intentionally left blank



€9¢



¥9¢



G9¢



99¢



L9¢



89¢



69¢



04¢



T.¢



clec



€Le



vic



G/l¢



9/.¢



Ll



8.¢



6.¢



08¢



T8¢



28¢



€8¢



8¢



G8¢



98¢



18¢



88¢



68¢



06¢



162



26¢



€6¢



62



G6¢



96¢



L6¢



86¢



66¢



00€



TOE



c0g



€0



This page is intentionally left blank



S0€



This page is intentionally left blank



L0€



This page is intentionally left blank



60€



This page is intentionally left blank



T1€



This page is intentionally left blank



€Te



This page is intentionally left blank



GTE



This page is intentionally left blank



LT€



This page is intentionally left blank



6T€E



This page is intentionally left blank



Tce



This page is intentionally left blank



Reference: 18/00045/ADV

Ward: Victoria 1Q
Install 1 x internally illuminated Totem Sign, 2 x internally
iluminated single faced logo disk signs, 2 x internally

Proposal: illuminated double sided high directional signs, 1 x high

P ) single sided directional sign, 1 x illuminated LED lettering

sign, 1 x illuminated building directional sign and vinyl
graphics

Address: Unit 4, Greyhound Trading Park, Greyhound Way, Southend-

) On-Sea, Essex, SS2 5PY

Applicant: 23.5 Degrees Limited

Agent: 23.5 Degrees Limited

Consultation Expiry: 29.03.2018

Expiry Date: 05.04.2018

Case Officer:

Janine Rowley

Plan Nos:

Siteplans Revision A 01; A-1001 Architectural Site Plan; A-
2001 External Elevations Revision A 14.02.2018; A-2002-
External Elevations Revision A 14.02.2018; Signage Details-
Southend Greyhound RP Revision A 14.02.2018

Recommendation:

GRANT ADVERTISEMENT CONSENT

JOUND A

Greyhound Park

b

Development Control Report

=

) ]
29
* 13
27 Tm 3 1

Click to start drawing - i

&
o

224

274

o4

Q8

el

Aty

Page 13¥%



1.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

4.1

4.2

This application was deferred from the 7% March 2018 Development Control
Committee meeting to allow for an update of the application site plan and to verify
the siting of the totem pole within the application. Residents have been renotified of
the updated proposal.

The Proposal

This application seeks to install 1 x internally illuminated 5m high totem Sign, 2 x
internally illuminated single faced logo disk signs, 2 x internally illuminated double
sided high directional signs, 1 x high single sided directional sign, 1 x illuminated
LED lettering sign, 1 x illuminated building directional sign and vinyl graphics

Site and Surroundings

The application site is within the Greyhound Retail Park, which consists of several
large retail buildings, associated parking areas, located to the north east of the town
centre. The application relates to a new drive through facility being built with
planning permission, in the eastern corner of the southern side of the Greyhound
Retail Park.

To the north, south and west of the site is the remainder of the Greyhound Retail
Park buildings and associated car park. Within the northern part of the retail park is
a KFC restaurant and drive through and immediately to the south is Mecca Bingo,
whilst the remainder of the park is predominantly in retail use.

To the east of the site are two storey terrace dwellings which front Sutton Road.
Planning Considerations

The main considerations in relation to this application relate to amenity and public
safety.

Appraisal
Amenity

National Planning Policy Framework (2012), Core Strategy (2007) Policies
KP2 and CP4; Development Management Document (2015) Policy DM1,
Design and Townscape Guide (2009)

The National Planning Policy Framework paragraph 67 states that poorly placed
advertisements can have a negative impact on the appearance of the built and
natural environment. Control over outdoor advertisements should be efficient,
effective and simple in concept and operation. Only those advertisements which will
clearly have an appreciable impact on a building or on their surroundings should be
subject to the local planning authority’s detailed assessment. The National Planning
Policy Framework advises advertisements should be subject to control only in the
interests of amenity and public safety, taking account of cumulative impacts.

The Design and Townscape Guide require advertisements to be well designed and
sited to respect the character and appearance of buildings and the street scene.

Development Control Report Page 2 of 6

324



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

The Council’s Design and Townscape Guide states;

“Low quality poorly sited or excessive signage can have an adverse effect on both
the image of the business and the wider area”.

“Large numbers of adverts add clutter to the streetscene and will not be considered
appropriate’.

The Design and Townscape Guide states signage should not have a detrimental
impact on townscape and should have adequate regard to their setting. It also
states the acceptability of illuminated fascia signs will depend on their location and
appropriateness to the character of the building.

The proposed signage on the building is typical of that of similar chain cafes and is
of a design which relates appropriately to the contemporary style of the building.
The advertisements on the building would be of a scale commensurate with that of
similar units within the Greyhound Estate, most notably KFC to the immediate north
of the site, and are typical of the area. The 5m high totem sign would consist of a
round disk atop a comparatively modest width supporting column. It would be
positioned forward of the building on top of the grassed area adjacent to the Sutton
Road frontage. The two internally illuminated single faced logo disk signs would
measure some 1.5m in diameter, affixed one either side of the buildings upward
projecting, integral totem feature. The high single-sided directional sign would be
fixed to the eaves level of the building, above its glazed shopfront, as would the
LED lettering sign. Other vinyl graphics would be located on the building and for the
direction of customers within the drive through access route. The level of internal
illumination proposed and siting of the advertisements are not considered to harm
the amenity of the surrounding area nor detract from the character of the proposed
building. With regards to the impact of the signage on residential properties, there
are no residential properties which would be materially and directly affected by the
proposed signage, given that there is sufficient distance between the application
site and the opposite properties fronting Sutton Road.

The proposed 5m totem sign has been amended during the course of the
application, reduced from 7m, and is now in keeping with existing adverts to the
north of the site.

Given the nature of the advertisement it is considered that the advertisement would
not result in any undue noise or disturbance and would not therefore result in any
harm to aural amenity in this respect.

The proposal is considered acceptable on amenity grounds and compliant with the
development plan.

Public Safety

National Planning Policy Framework (2012), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2
CP3, and CP4; Development Management Document (2015) Policy DM15

Development Control Report Page 3 of 6

325



4.9

The proposed advertisements and totem sign are considered acceptable on public
safety grounds. The Councils Highway Officer has raised no objection to the
proposed advertisements and the luminance levels would not impact harmfully on
the public highway.

Conclusion

410 The proposed advertisements are not considered to have a detrimental impact on
the amenity of the surrounding area or on public safety and therefore subject to
appropriate conditions, the proposal is considered acceptable and it is
recommended that advertisement consent is granted.

5 Planning Policy Summary

5.1 National Planning Policy Framework 2012

5.2 Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 (Development Principles), CP3 (Transport and
Accessibility), CP4 (The Environment and Urban Renaissance).

5.3 Development Management Document (2015) Policies DM1 (Design Quality), DM15
(Sustainable Transport Management)

54 Design & Townscape Guide (2009)

6 Representation Summary
Traffic and Transportation

6.1 No objections.

Public Consultation

6.2 A site notice was displayed on the 25" January and no letters of representation
have been received.

6.3 Councillor Borton has requested this application be dealt with by Development
Control Committee.

7 Relevant Planning History

7.1 Install one air conditioning unit and associated equipment to east elevation-
Pending consideration (18/00044/FUL)

7.2 Replace plan numbers 14557-103D, 14557-106B and 14557-108 with 14557-
103E, 14557-106C and 14557-108A alterations due to operational requirements
and as a result of detailed design (Non-material Amendment to Planning
Permission 16/01952/FUL dated 20.01.2017- Allowed (17/02257/NON)

7.3 Replace plan numbers 14557-103D, 14557-106B and 14557-108 with 14557-
103E, 14557-106C and 14557-108A alterations due to operational requirements
and as a result of detailed design (Non-material Amendment to Planning
Permission 16/01952/FUL dated 20.01.2017- Allowed (17/01182/AD)

Development Control Report Page 4 of 6

326



7.4 Replace plan numbers 14557-103D, 14557-106B and 14557-108 with 14557-
103E, 14557-106C and 14557-108A alterations due to operational requirements
and as a result of detailed design (Non-material Amendment to Planning
Permission 16/01952/FUL dated 20.01.2017- Allowed (17/01124/NON)

7.5 Replace plan numbers 14557-103D, 14557-106B and 14557-108 with 14557-
103E, 14557-106C and 14557-108A alterations due to operational requirements
and as a result of detailed design (Non-material Amendment to Planning
Permission 16/01952/FUL dated 20.01.2017- Allowed (17/00253/NON)

7.6 Demolition of existing building, erect single storey coffee shop (Class A1/A3) with
drive-through take away facility, servicing area, car parking, outdoor seating,
landscaping, bin store and associated works- Granted (16/01952/FUL)

7.7 Demolition of existing building, erect single storey restaurant (Class A3) with drive-
through take away (Class A5), servicing area, car parking, landscaping and
associated works- Granted (14/01723/FUL)

8 Recommendation

8.1 GRANT ADVERTISEMENT CONSENT subject to the following conditions:

1 This consent is granted for a period of 5 years beginning from the date
of this consent.

Reason: To comply with Regulation 14(7) of the Town and Country
Planning (Control of Advertisements) Regulations 2007.

2 The advertisements shall be displayed in accordance with the approved
plans: Siteplans Revision A 01; A-1001 Architectural Site Plan; A-2001
External Elevations Revision A 14.02.2018; A-2002-External Elevations
Revision A 14.02.2018; Signage Details-Southend Greyhound RP
Revision A 14.02.2018.

Reason: To ensure that the advertisements are displayed in accordance
with the policies outlined in the development plan.

3 (a) Any advertisement displayed, and any site used for the display of
advertisements, shall be maintained in a clean and tidy condition to the
reasonable satisfaction of the local planning authority.

(b) Any structure or hoarding erected or used principally for the

purpose of displaying advertisements shall be maintained in a safe

condition.

(c) Where any advertisement is required under the Regulations to be

removed, the removal shall be carried out to the reasonable satisfaction

of the local planning authority.

(d) No advertisement is to be displayed without the permission of the

owner of the site or any other person with an interest in the site entitled

to grant permission.

(e) No advertisement shall be sited or displayed so as to obscure, or

hinder the ready interpretation of, any road traffic sign, railway signal or

aid to navigation by water or air, or so as otherwise to render hazardous
Development Control Report Page 5 of 6

327



the use of any highway, railway, waterway (including coastal waters) or
aerodrome (civil or military).

Reason: Required to be imposed to comply with Regulation 14 of the
Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) Regulations
2007.

4 No advertisement is to be displayed without the permission of the owner
of the site or any other person with an interest in the site entitled to
grant permission.

Reason: Required to be imposed to comply with Regulation 14 of the
Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) Regulations
2007.

5 Any advertisement displayed, and any site used for the display of
advertisements, shall be maintained in a condition that does not impair
the visual amenity of the site.

Reason: Required to be imposed to comply with Regulation 14 of the
Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) Regulations
2007.

6  Any structure or hoarding erected or used principally for the purpose of
displaying advertisements shall be maintained in a condition that does
not endanger the public.

Reason: Required to be imposed to comply with Regulation 14 of the
Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) Regulations
2007.

7 Where an advertisement is required under these Regulations to be
removed, the site shall be left in a condition that does not endanger the
public or impair visual amenity.

Reason: Required to be imposed to comply with Regulation 14 of the
Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) Regulations
2007.

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in
determining this application by identifying matters of concern within the
application (as originally submitted) and negotiating, with the Applicant,
acceptable amendments to the proposal to address those concerns. As
a result, the Local Planning Authority has been able to grant planning
permission for an acceptable proposal, in accordance with the
presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the
National Planning Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set out in
a report on the application prepared by officers.

Development Control Report Page 6 of 6
328



6¢€

10 20 30 40

SITE PLAN, 1:1250

ayhound Trading Park

SUTTON RoAD

D Shelte

5 10 15

BLOCK PLAN, 1:500

NOT INTENDED FOR CONSTRUCTION

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT ONLY -

®

(C)2011 STARBUCKS COFFEE COMPANY

STARBUCKS COFFEE

COMPANY
2401 UTAH AVENUE SOUTH
SEATTLE, WASHINGTON 98134
(206) 318-1575

THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE
CONFIDENTIAL AND SHALL REMAIN THE SOLE
PROPERTY OF STARBUCKS CORPORATION,
WHICH IS THE OWNER OF THE COPYRIGHT IN
THIS WORK. THEY SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED
(IN WHOLE OR IN PART), SHARED WITH THIRD
PARTIES OR USED IN ANY MANNER ON OTHER
PROJECTS OR EXTENSIONS TO THIS PROJECT
WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF
STARBUCKS CORPORATION. THESE DRAWINGS
AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE INTENDED TO
EXPRESS DESIGN INTENT FORA
PROTOTYPICAL STARBUCKS STORE (WHICH IS
SUBJECT TO CHANGE AT ANYTIME) AND DO NOT
REFLECT ACTUAL SITE CONDITIONS. NEITHER
PARTY SHALL HAVE ANY OBLIGATION NOR
LIABILITY TO THE OTHER (EXCEPT STATED
ABOVE) UNTIL A WRITTEN AGREEMENT IS FULLY

EXECUTED BY BOTH PARTIE:

ARCHITECT OF RECORD

THIS DRAWING IS A DESIGN DEVELOPMENT
DOCUMENT. SITE SPECIFIC MODIFICATIONS
MADE UNDER THE RESPONSIBLE CHARGE OF
THE ARCHITECT AND/OR ENGINEER-OF-
RECORD WILL BE REQUIRED PRIOR TO USING
THIS DOCUMENT FOR BIDDING, PERMITTING,

OR CONSTRUCTION.

Rev| Date By Description

Southend -Greyhound Trade Park

&
i
] 4
z 8  ggia
o
P4 < g & g Qw0
= =
o 5 3%¢2Q
w mw _-92-0¢p
=) 2 £ E£5C
o QO =TS g
o X coc®500
o o O0FnH®
STORE #: 49166
PROJECT #: 73085-001
CONCEPT:
PALETTE:
ISSUE DATE: JAN 2018
DESIGN MANAGER:
LEED® AP
PRODUCTION DESIGNER: ADL
CHECKED BY: EG
SHEET TITLE:
Siteplans RevA
SCALE: As indicated

SHEET NUMBER:

01




This page is intentionally left blank



TEE

04/A-2002

EXTERIOR SIGNAGE - "S"

Iso TopPlan | Design ID | Count Description Resp Comments
— 11589 1 SIGN - STACKED ILLUMINATED ON RACEWAY - 14IN 355MM Ss
SIGN - DISK SF ILLUMINATED FLUSH MOUNTED EVOLVED - 60IN
waean | | 13164 2 1535MM ss
SIGN - DT DIRECTIONAL EXIT SIGN ILLUMINATED ARROW SERIES - 46IN
B = e | 1 Ti7onin ss
i = 14093 2 DT EVOLVED STAR PATTERN Ss
I\ e——i-t—| 14106 1 SIGN - DT CLEARANCE BAR ARROW SERIES FREESTANDING Ss
T M 14110 1 SIGN - PYLON DISK DRIVE THRU ILLUMINATED ARROW SERIES - 72IN ss
MENU BOARD - DT 5 PANEL FREESTANDING 108X65IN 2745X1650MM -
Ay == 14110 1 R IS ss
% 14120 1 MENU BOARD - DT PRE MENU FREESTANDING 36X65IN 915X1650MM - ss
FLAT BLACK MTOO:!
ﬂ m 14163 1 DT ORDER POINT CANOPY FREESTANDING - FLAT BLACK MT0028 Ss
=V g 14323 2 DT WAYFINDING GRAPHIC DIRECTIONAL DOUBLE ARROW - GREEN Ss
B 1| 14327 2 SIGN - DT DIRECTIONAL ILLUMINATED ARROW SERIES - 46IN 1170MM Ss
SIGN - DT DIRECTIONAL ARROW - PAINTED ONTO EXTERIOR WALL
Ky || sso 1 e ss
03/A-2002

1

SITE PLAN OVERVIEW

Scale: 1:250

c

=

feE RF

ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN

Scale: 1:100

01/A-2001

02/A-2001

ARCHITECTURAL
SITE PLAN NOTES

A. REFER TO EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS ON SHEET A-2001
FOR BUILDING SIGNAGE LOCATION AND DESIGN ID.
REFER TO ELECTRICAL PLANS FOR ELECTRICAL
REQUIREMENTS.

B. DRIVE-THRU EQUIPMENT INCLUDING VEHICLE
DETECTION LOOP, WIRELESS COMMUNICATION AND
MONITORS COORDINATED BY STARBUCKS
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER. REFER TO ELECTRICAL
SPECIFICATIONS FOR ELECTRICAL REQUIREMENTS.

C. LANDLORD TO PROVIDE 6" (150MM) THICK CONCRETE
PAVING THE LENGTH OF THE DRIVE-THRU LANE,
EXTENT TO INCLUDE DRIVE-THRU WINDOW STANDING

D. GENERAL CONTRACTOR TO APPLY CONCRETE
SEALER TO ALL EXTERIOR CONCRETE PATIO AND
WALKWAY SURFACES.

E. SEE SHEET A-5001 FOR ARCHITECTURAL SITE
DETAILS.

SHEET NOTES

1. PROVIDE PROTECTIVE BOLLARDS ON BOTH SIDES OF
EXTERIOR ELECTRICAL/UTILITY SERVICE ADJACENT
TO VEHICULAR TRAFFIC. EXAMPLES INCLUDE FIRE
STAND PIPE, GAS AND ELECTRICAL METERS, SITE
TRANSFORMERS, ETC...

2. MAIN ENTRANCE

3. SIDE ENTRANCE

4. STARBUCKS INTERNAL DEMISE

5. OUTDOOR SEATING AREA

CM CONSTRUCTION MANAGER
GC GENERAL CONTRACTOR

LL LANDLORD

SBUX STARBUCKS

WH STARBUCKS WAREHOUSE (3PL)
VD STARBUCKS VENDOR DIRECT
CS CASEWORK SUPPLIER

FZ FRANCHISEE

AS ARTWORK SUPPLIER

Ss SIGNAGE SUPPLIER

LICENSEE'S PM TO CONFIRM ALL

DIMENSIONS TO STARBUCKS

0 1 2

3M

™ e

Scale: 1:100

FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES

®

(© 2015 STARBUCKS GOFFEE COMPANY

STARBUCKS COFFEE
COMPANY
2401 UTAH AVENUE SOUTH

SEATTLE, WASHINGTON 98134
(206) 318-1575

THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS
ARE CONFIDENTIAL AND SHALL REMAIN
THE SOLE PROPERTY OF STARBUCKS
CORPORATION, WHICH IS THE OWNER OF
THE COPYRIGHT IN THIS WORK. THEY
SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED (IN WHOLE
OR IN PART), SHARED WITI THIRD

PARTIES OR USED IN ANY MANNI
OTHER PROJECTS OR EXTENSIONS TO
THIS PROJECT WITHOUT THE PRIOI
ITTEN CONSENT OF STARBUCKS
CORPORATION THESE DRAWINGS AND
SPECIFICATIONS ARE INTENDED TO
EXPRESS DESIGN INTENT FOR A
PROTOTYPICAL STARBUCKS STORE
(WHICH IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE AT
ANYTIME) AND DO NOT REFLECT ACTUAL
SITE CONDITIONS. NEITHER PARTY SHALL
HAVE ANY OBLIGATION NOR LIABILITY TO
THE OTHER (EXCEPT STATED ABOVE)
UNTIL A WRI'I'I'EN AGREEMENT IS FULLY
EXECUTED BY BOTH PARTIES.

STARBUCKS TEMPLATE VERSION m2016-05-27

ARCHITECT OF RECORD

THIS DRAWING ISA DESIGN
DEVELO! T DOCUI T. SITE
SPECIFIC MODIFICATIONS MADE

CHARGE OF THE ARCHITECT
AND/OR ENGINEER-OF-RECORD
WILL BE REQUIRED PRIOR TO
USING THIS DOCUMENT FOR
BIDDING, PERMITTING, OR
CONSTRUCTION.

>
X o
o=
o
=2
< 85
o] &> _8
= =
T c2l
© ¢ 230
[ 8 3¥Y AN
. O b o9
Y5 T >Sg0
= Q
< a 200
Z 3 < (5 ¥ c
= O = [0}
o Cc O < c =
w = w o=
=2 2 EES
g8 SES3
T T
a O [ N Y]
STORE #: 49166
PROJECT #: 73085-001
CASEWORK CONCEPT: Casework Concept
ISSUE DATE: 071117
DESIGN MANAGER: Duncan Maskell
LEED R AP: Leed AP
PRODUCTION DESIGNER:  Production Designer
CHECKED BY: Checked By

Revision Schedule

Rev | Date | By | Description
A |2ami17 Revised to comments
A |23@n7 pesoss tB%BMr?ems
B |5017 [

B |5/017 Wé‘\ﬁ%’&‘ I%ScBﬂquYems

c |enon7 s R5COBMT

c |onon7 ﬁ’é‘\ﬁ%’@ (BScEWr?ems
reCeived05:10:17-

SHEET TITLE:

Architectural Site Plan

SCALE:1:100

SHEET NUMBER:

A-1001




This page is intentionally left blank



€ee

5000mm

GENERAL NOTES

EXTERIOR SIGNAGE - "S"
Iso TopPlan | Design ID | Count Description Resp Comments
1. PROVIDE 3" (75MM) HIGH BLACK ACRYLIC STORE ADDRESS
- 11589 1 SIGN - STACKED ILLUMINATED ON RACEWAY - 14IN 355MM ss (F?EIQ(IIIQZEIIIEN?% PER LOCAL JURISDICTIONAL CODE
. 13164 5 SIGN - DISK SF ILLUMINATEDﬁI’}SUNS”\I;II MOUNTED EVOLVED - 60IN ss 5 MAIN ENTRANCE.
SIGN - DT DIRECTIONAL EXIT SIGN ILLUMINATED ARROW SERIES - 46N 3. SIDE ENTRANCE.
B == 100 1 1170MM Ss
> 4. ARTWORK XGO01 SB LOGO ON EXTERNAL SCREEN. SEE
E 14093 2 DT EVOLVED STAR PATTERN sS GRAPHICS AND ARTWORK SCHEDULE ON I-1105 FOR
DETAILS.
> |e—uu—| 14106 1 SIGN - DT CLEARANCE BAR ARROW SERIES FREESTANDING ss
5. MANIFESTATION DOTS TO FULL HEIGHT WINDOWS.
I [EEE| 14110 4 SIGN - PYLON DISK DRIVE THRU ILLUMINATED ARROW SERIES - 72IN ss
MENU BOARD - DT 5 PANEL FREESTANDING - 108X65IN 2745X1650MM - NOTE:
| 14119 1 ss NUTE:
® FLAT BLACK MT0028 LICENSEE'S PM TO CONFIRM ALL DIMENSIONS
g % 14120 y MENU BOARD - DT PRE MENU FREESTANDING - 36X65IN 915X1650MM - ss ON SITE AND ADVISE STARBUCKS OF ANY
FLAT BLACK MT0028 CHANGES.
| m 14163 1 DT ORDER POINT CANOPY FREESTANDING - FLAT BLACK MT0028 ss
= a cM CONSTRUCTION MANAGER
= a 14323 2 DT WAYFINDING GRAPHIC DIRECTIONAL DOUBLE ARROW - GREEN ss &e GENERAL CONTRACTOR
LL LANDLORD
B 1| 14327 2 SIGN - DT DIRECTIONAL ILLUMINATED ARROW SERIES - 46IN 1170MM ss SBUX STARBUCKS
th | sso1 4 SIGN - DT DIRECTIONAL AFIRO\;\II'\]IEQINTED ONTO EXTERIOR WALL ss %’I gﬁsgﬂgﬁg y/vgﬁgggglsé(g?u
cs CASEWORK SUPPLIER
FZ FRANCHISEE
AS ARTWORK SUPPLIER
ss SIGNAGE SUPPLIER
[S[13164
[S[14110 [S[14163 [S[14119 [S[14120 [s[11589
@ ©
&C 2 £ . 7
=
L TD:DR@] O N «© \ J!L!jl §
' — perd Yo _
T ™
T
7A [ — E E
R ] S s
== el O B e Rt | N e | N B | PR | £ R PR PR PREES| EEPPEPPREPS e .- -
(%
h) (%
™
T - I 1 = N =

EXTERIOR ELEVATION NOTES

A.  GENERAL CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE AND SCHEDULE
SIGNAGE INSTALLATION WITH THE SIGNAGE CONTRACTOR
PROVIDING A MINIMUM SCHEDULING NOTICE OF 4 WEEKS

ND 1 WEEK PRIOR TO SCHEDULED DATE OF INSTALLATION.
STARBUCKS CONSTRUCTION MANAGER TO PROVIDE GENERAL
CONTRACTOR WITH SIGNAGE CONTRACTOR CONTACT
INFORMATION.

B. GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH
ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR TO FURNISH AND INSTALL
ELECTRICAL CIRCUITS INCLUDING ALL CONDUIT, WIRE,
CONNECTIONS, AND BREAKER AT PANEL BOARD
NECESSARY TO SERVE SIGNAGE.

C. GENERAL CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE FIRE TREATED
WOOD STUD BLOCKING, OR EQUIVALENT TO SUPPORT
SIGNAGE.

D. SIGNAGE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY SIZE AND
LOCATION OF ANY AND ALL ALLOWABLE MONUMEN
POLE SIGNAGE WITH LANDLORD AND PROVIDE SHOP DRAWING
(S) PRIOR TO FABRICATION TO STARBUCKS DESIGNER FOR
APPROVAL.

E. SIGNAGE CONTRACTOR TO INSTALL SIGNAGE IN
COMPLIANCE WITH LOCAL JURISDICTIONAL REQUIRMENTS
AND OBTAIN PERMIT AND LANDLORD APPROVAL.

F. SIGNAGE CONTRACTOR TO SUPPLY SHOP DRAWINGS TO
STARBUCKS CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AND TO THE GENERAL
CONTRACTOR AS NEEDED. GENERAL CONTRACTOR TO
NOTIFY STARBUCKS CONSTRUCTION MANAGER
IMMEDIATELY IF SHOP DRAWINGS OR INSTALLATION IS IN
DISCREPANCY WITH STARBUCKS ARCHITECTURAL
DRAWINGS.

G. GENERAL CONTRACTOR TO CLEAN, PATCH AND
REPAIR EXISTING EXTERIOR AS REQUIRED.

Front Elevation [sfiai0s [s[14327 [S[14097
Scale: 1:100
v,
[(C=mwEd )
(-

East Elevation
<:> Scale: 1:100

1540mm

. 316@

1525mm

6070mm

5000mm
=N
%
g

0 1 2 3M

o —

Scale: 1:100

FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES

®

(© 2015 STARBUCKS COFFEE COMPANY

STARBUCKS COFFEE
COMPANY

2401 UTAH AVENUE SOUTH
SEATTLE, WASHINGTON 98134
(206) 318-1575

THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS
ARE CONFIDENTIAL AND SHALL REMAIN
E SOLE PROPERTY OF STARBUCKS
CORPORATION WHICH IS THE OWNER OF
THE COPYRIGHT IN THIS WORK. THEY
SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED (IN WHOLE
OR IN PART), SHARED WITI THIRD
PARTIES OR USED IN ANY MANNE|
OTHER PROJECTS OR EXTENSIONS TO
THIS PROJECT WITHOUT THE PRIOR
WRITTEN CONSENT OF STARBUCKS
CORPORATION. THESE DRAWINGS AND
SPECIFICATIONS ARE INTENDED TO
RESS DESIGN INTENT FOR A
PROTOTYPICAL STARBUCKS STORE
(WHICH IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE AT
ANYTIME) AND DO NOT REFLECT ACTUAL
SITE CONDITIONS. NEITHER PARTY SHALL
HAVE ANY OBI_IGATION NOR LIABILITY TO
THE OTHER (EXCEPT STATED ABOVE,
UNTIL A WRITTEN AGREEMENT IS FULLY
EXECUTED BY BOTH PARTIES.

STARBUCKS TEMPLATE VERSION m2016-05-27

ARCHITECT OF RECORD
THIS DRAWING IS A DESIGN

CHARGE OF THE ARCHITECT
AND/OR ENGINEER-OF-RECORD
WILL BE REQUIRED PRIOR TO
USING THIS DOCUMENT FOR
BIDDING, PERMITTING, Ol

CONSTRUCTION.

Sutton Road, Greyhound Way

PROJECT NAME:

Greyhound Retail Park
PROJECT ADDRESS:

Unit 4 Greyhound Retail Park
Southend SS25P7

STORE #:
PROJECT #:

CASEWORK CONCEPT:
ISSUE DATE:

DESIGN MANAGER:

LEED R AP:

PRODUCTION DESIGNER:
CHECKED BY:

49166
73085-001

Casework Concept
071117

Duncan Maskell
Leed AP

Production Designer
Checked By

Revision Schedule

Rev | Date | By | Description
A |2am117 Revised to comments
A |2s@n7 FREoNES ﬂﬂ\?r?ems
B |5017 Reeivad 0608
B |s6017 REoYES B %?r?ems
received 25.08.17
SHEET TITLE:

Exterior Elevations

SCALE:1:100

SHEET NUMBER:

A-2001




This page is intentionally left blank



GEE

EXTERIOR SIGNAGE - "S"
Iso TopPlan | Design ID | Count Description Resp Comments
— 11589 1 SIGN - STACKED ILLUMINATED ON RACEWAY - 14IN 355MM ss
[ 13164 B SIGN - DISK SF ILLUMINATED FLUSH MOUNTED EVOLVED - 60IN ss
1525MM

SIGN - DT DIRECTIONAL EXIT SIGN ILLUMINATED ARROW SERIES - 46IN
[E_F1| 14091 1 1170MM Ss
> = 14093 2 DT EVOLVED STAR PATTERN ss
M |—=| 14108 1 SIGN - DT CLEARANCE BAR ARROW SERIES FREESTANDING ss
I [EEEm| 14110 5 SIGN - PYLON DISK DRIVE THRU ILLUMINATED ARROW SERIES - 72IN ss

MENU BOARD - DT 5 PANEL FREESTANDING - 108X65IN 2745X1650MM -
Ry || 14110 1 N DING ss
% 14120 5 MENU BOARD - DT PRE MENU FREESTANDING - 36X65IN 915X1650MM - | gg

FLAT BLACK MT0028

| m 14163 1 DT ORDER POINT CANOPY FREESTANDING - FLAT BLACK MT0028 ss
=V A 14323 2 DT WAYFINDING GRAPHIC DIRECTIONAL DOUBLE ARROW - GREEN ss
B 1| 14327 2 SIGN - DT DIRECTIONAL ILLUMINATED ARROW SERIES - 46IN 1170MM ss
th | ssot 5 SIGN - DT DIRECTIONAL ARRO\;\IIA]IEQINTED ONTO EXTERIOR WALL ss

S[14091

S[14327

GENERAL NOTES

1. PROVIDE 3" (75MM) HIGH BLACK ACRYLIC STORE ADDRESS
ON GLAZING OR PER LOCAL JURISDICTIONAL CODE
REQUIREMENTS.

2. MAIN ENTRANCE.

3. SIDE ENTRANCE.

4. ARTWORK XG01 SB LOGO ON EXTERNAL SCREEN. SEE

GRAPHICS AND ARTWORK SCHEDULE ON I-1105 FOR
DETAILS.

NOTE:

CM TO CONFIRM ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE AND ADVISE

STARBUCKS OF ANY CHANGES

CM CONSTRUCTION MANAGER

GC GENERAL CONTRACTOR

LL LANDLORD

SBUX STARBUCKS

WH STARBUCKS WAREHOUSE (3PL)
VD STARBUCKS VENDOR DIRECT
CS CASEWORK SUPPLIER

FZ FRANCHISEE

AS ARTWORK SUPPLIER

Ss SIGNAGE SUPPLIER

[S[14120 [S[14119 [S[14163

g 0 0 U U o 0 o 0 o opu U0 0 10 I
°
Rear Elevation
Scale: 1:100
[S[14119 S[14163 S[13164 [s[14129 S[14327 [s14327
1540mm
b
SENE
ﬁ@gﬂg
)“I N
\ 8 ‘._f_;
[
//
////
—
/ £
o
=] - li '\ ——
I in (¢:0]
- 1 \ o 7
)]
1
AL i u

West Elevation
( > Scale: 1:100

EXTERIOR ELEVATION NOTES

A.  GENERAL CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE AND SCHEDULE
SIGNAGE INSTALLATION WITH THE SIGNAGE CONTRACTOR
PROVIDING A MINIMUM SCHEDULING NOTICE OF 4 WEEKS

ND 1 WEEK PRIOR TO SCHEDULED DATE OF INSTALLATION.
STARBUCKS CONSTRUCTION MANAGER TO PROVIDE GENERAL
CONTRACTOR WITH SIGNAGE CONTRACTOR CONTACT
INFORMATION.

B. GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH
ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR TO FURNISH AND INSTALL
ELECTRICAL CIRCUITS INCLUDING ALL CONDUIT, WIRE,
CONNECTIONS, AND BREAKER AT PANEL BOARD
NECESSARY TO SERVE SIGNAGE.

GENERAL CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE FIRE TREATED
WOOD STUD BLOCKING, OR EQUIVALENT TO SUPPORT
SIGNAGE.

D. SIGNAGE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY SIZE AND
LOCATION OF ANY AND ALL ALLOWABLE MONUMEN
POLE SIGNAGE WITH LANDLORD AND PROVIDE SHOP DRAWING
(S) PRIOR TO FABRICATION TO STARBUCKS DESIGNER FOR
APPROVAL.

E. SIGNAGE CONTRACTOR TO INSTALL SIGNAGE IN
COMPLIANCE WITH LOCAL JURISDICTIONAL REQUIRMENTS
AND OBTAIN PERMIT AND LANDLORD APPROVAL.

F. SIGNAGE CONTRACTOR TO SUPPLY SHOP DRAWINGS TO
STARBUCKS CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AND TO THE GENERAL
CONTRACTOR AS NEEDED. GENERAL CONTRACTOR TO
NOTIFY STARBUCKS CONSTRUCTION MANAGER
IMMEDIATELY IF SHOP DRAWINGS OR INSTALLATION IS IN
DISCREPANCY WITH STARBUCKS ARCHITECTURAL
DRAWINGS.

G. GENERAL CONTRACTOR TO CLEAN, PATCH AND
REPAIR EXISTING EXTERIOR AS REQUIRED.

0 1 2 3M

o —

Scale: 1:100

FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES

®

(© 2015 STARBUCKS COFFEE COMPANY

STARBUCKS COFFEE
COMPANY

2401 UTAH AVENUE SOUTH
SEATTLE, WASHINGTON 98134
(206) 318-1575

THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS
ARE CONFIDENTIAL AND SHALL REMAIN
E SOLE PROPERTY OF STARBUCKS
CORPORATION WHICH IS THE OWNER OF
THE COPYRIGHT IN THIS WORK. THEY
SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED (IN WHOLE
OR IN PART), SHARED WITI THIRD
PARTIES OR USED IN ANY MANNE|
OTHER PROJECTS OR EXTENSIONS TO
THIS PROJECT WITHOUT THE PRIOR
WRITTEN CONSENT OF STARBUCKS
CORPORATION. THESE DRAWINGS AND
SPECIFICATIONS ARE INTENDED TO
RESS DESIGN INTENT FOR A
PROTOTYPICAL STARBUCKS STORE
(WHICH IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE AT
ANYTIME) AND DO NOT REFLECT ACTUAL
SITE CONDITIONS. NEITHER PARTY SHALL
HAVE ANY OBI_IGATION NOR LIABILITY TO
THE OTHER (EXCEPT STATED ABOVE,
UNTIL A WRITTEN AGREEMENT IS FULLY
EXECUTED BY BOTH PARTIES.

STARBUCKS TEMPLATE VERSION m2016-05-27

ARCHITECT OF RECORD
THIS DRAWING IS A DESIGN

CHARGE OF THE ARCHITECT
AND/OR ENGINEER-OF-RECORD
WILL BE REQUIRED PRIOR TO
USING THIS DOCUMENT FOR
BIDDING, PERMITTING, Ol

CONSTRUCTION.

>
X ©
o=
o
=2
<< 85
© & _8
e =S~
= T o
© c 55
© g 30
Q ) N
. W c -d (%)
u T >Sgh
el [l
< a 200
z 3 < HK c
= O = [)
o C O < c c
w = w O =
2D [IEES
o Y O 'S5 0o
T T
a O o DN
STORE #: 49166
PROJECT #: 73085-001
CASEWORK CONCEPT: Casework Concept
ISSUE DATE: 071117
DESIGN MANAGER: Duncan Maskell
LEED R AP: Leed AP
PRODUCTION DESIGNER:  Production Designer

CHECKED BY: Checked By

Revision Schedule

Rev | Date | By | Description
A |2am117 Revised to comments
A |2s@n7 FREoNES ﬂﬂ\?r?ems
B |57 Reeiad 0608
B |swen7 REoYES B %?r?ems
received 25.08.17.
SHEET TITLE:

Exterior Elevations

SCALE:1:100

SHEET NUMBER:

A-2002




This page is intentionally left blank



LEE

@

Key
@ 5m Totem
@ @ 1525mm Sren
@ Directional ﬁ U
STARBUCKS
WHITE 305mm Wordmark
No Entry/ Thank
You Directional
Wall mounted ¢ DRIVE
Directional

-
\.

Client: Starbucks Drawing no: 18-009 Revision notes: 0) Initial issue All site dimensions to be verified prior to manufacture.
A) Pylon reduced to 5m Do not scale from this drawing Copyright 2018
Address: Unit 4 Greyhound Retail Job location: Jobs/Starbucks/Southend, Greyhound Retail Park This document is the property of Nis Signs
Sutton Rd, Greyhound Way and must not be used, reproduced or disclosed
Southend to any persons without the written consent of Nis Signs.

SS25P7 Drawn by: DW Rev no: A Date: 08/01/18



8€¢

@ Item A | 1 Off 5metre Internally llluminated Totem Pole Sign - 1:50

Base details

Plan View

1500mm

f W‘

5000mm high mild steel post with box section frame top and drop arms to carry siren roundel
and drive thru box.

1500mm

Siren Logo :

2x fret cut aperture face trays with 50mm trim to

accept 5mm opal 050 acrylic roundall in rear with applied

Starbucks Green Siren logo to face.

Sign illuminated by LED’s positioned on clear acrylic divider

suspended from within. Carcass Painted Satin Black outside, White inside.

Drive Thru Box :

2x fret cut face trays with aluminium carcass designed to fit around post.
Painted white inside and satin black outside. Aluminium face trays backed up
with 5mm 050 opal acrylic and internally illuminated by tridonic led’s.

GROUND LEVEL

wwooos

1500mm

1500mm

wwoege

wwooos

-

Y 359mm

NOTE: .
Allow 150mm studding Front Elevation

1 above concrete level
| | €
i<H359 mm POWER (buildng)
I Ductingrequifgd through
| centre of cradfe.

Cage supplied

Ground Level

-

359mm

Rear Elevation

FINISH LEVEL
750 mm
%—330 mm—ﬁ—aao mm—?w Ductingrequired through
/ centre of cradle.

g POWER =

B i - S
3 e |, £ @J (building TECH LKR)  §

3 o2}
3 D n 3
3 ) o
g
A ' ® UE}S mm Q J A
L ——————— 40x40angle
Cage supplied
1000mm Deep
Section AA
2500mm \/
Client: Starbucks Drawing no: 18-009 Revision notes: 0) Initial issue All site dimensions to be verified prior to manufacture.
A) Pylon reduced to 5m Do not scale from this drawing Copyright 2018
Address: Unit4 Greyhour;\d Retail Job location: Jobs/Starbucks/Southend, Greyhound Retail Park This document is the property of Nis Signs
. gu'fttohn R‘djr Greyhound Way and must not be used, reproduced or disclosed
. outhen . . .
Drawn by: DW Rev no: A Date: 08/01/18 to any persons without the written consent of Nis Signs.

SS25P7



6€€

1525mm O/all Height

FRONT VIEW BACKTRAY FRONT VIEW

1525mm O/all Width 1525mm O/all Width

80mm

SECTION THROUGH

K

A
Y
A

Y

A

Y

1525mm O/all Height

Fixing holes

Y

Power cable entry hole

@ ITEM B | 2 Off 1525mm Internal
Single Sided Roundel
SPECIFICATION

Black plastic trim, fixed to aluminium carcass using small pan
head screws with heads painted Black

ISOMETRIC VIEW

EXPLODED ISOMETRIC VIEW

2mm thick Aluminium carcass finished White inside and
Satin Black RAL 9005 externally.

Tridonic P560 Crystal White LED, 38 off modules required. &
1 Off Tridonic Talex LCU 060/12 D010
120/240V converter required.

3mm thick 050 Opal perspex face with face applied translucent
vinyl 3M scotchal vinyl Holly Green 3630-76

SCALE 1:1

T

=

Ll

=

S S
o ©

o

e

Client: Starbucks

Revision notes: 0) Initial issue
A) Pylon reduced to 5m

Drawing no: 18-009

Address: Unit 4 Greyhound Retail
Sutton Rd, Greyhound Way

Southend
SS25P7 Drawn by: DW

Job location: Jobs/Starbucks/Southend, Greyhound Retail Park

@

Rev no: A Date: 08/01/18

All site dimensions to be verified prior to manufacture.

Do not scale from this drawing Copyright 2018.

This document is the property of Nis Signs

and must not be used, reproduced or disclosed

to any persons without the written consent of Nis Signs.



Front Elevation Side Elevation (arrow side) Rear Elevation

1000mm O/all Width 1000mm O/all Width

| ’i 190mm ‘ \ |

480mm
167mm
wwoze

@ 'TEMC|20ff 1500 High Directional Sign - 1:10

2 Off 1500mm Double sided entrance directional sign

internally illuminated via LED's. g
o
3
3
o
o
T
o
«Q
=
Block paving
Note: Blocks cut
around legs
POWER Junction box
w (building TECH LKR)
@se details 6mm plates Ducting required Armoured
4 cable Sand screed
FINISH LEVEL
£
] /
" 41ommcc \ Note: Hardcore/Groundworks by others
: ° 210 x 210 x 6mm thick
3 base plates. Chemical fix &
A g _ Ao bolted to concrete
5 :
I I g Concrete by MC
| 410mm C.C. |
Ducting
F 950mm ‘
v v
Section DD POWER
) 950mm ! (building TECH LKR)
Client: Starbucks Drawing no: 18-009 Revision notes: 0) Initial issue Al site dimensions to be verified prior to manufacture.
A) Pylon reduced to 5m Do not scale from this drawing Copyright 2018
Address: Unit 4 Greyhound Retail Job location: Jobs/Starbucks/Southend, Greyhound Retail Park This document is the property of Nis Signs l
. §Uﬂ;n Rj’ Greyhound Way and must not be used, reproduced or disclosed
§ outhen i ; s G
Drawn by: DW Rev no: A Date: 08/01/18 to any persons without the written consent of Nis Signs.

SS25P7



e

ITEM H | LED Wordmark Lettering - 1:20

Face illuminated LED wordmark.

3258mm

Section Through - Scale 1:2

110mm

]

wt
=l
y

355mm

Sl

@

Client: Starbucks

Address: Unit 4 Greyhound Retail
Sutton Rd, Greyhound Way
Southend
SS25P7

L LSS L

Drawing no: 18-009
Job location: Jobs/Starbucks/Southend, Greyhound Retail Park
Date: 08/01/18

Drawn by: DW Rev no: A

Revision notes: 0) Initial issue
A) Pylon reduced to 5m

Specification:

Black plastic trim, fixed to aluminium carcass using small pan
head screws with heads painted Black.

Tmm thick aluminium carcass finished White inside and Satin
Black RAL 9005 externally.

@ Tridoni LED, see next page for type quantities and convertors
required for each letter set.

@ Tmm thick aluminium backing finished White inside, pressed
fixed to carcass.

@ 3mm thck 050 opal perspex face.

All site dimensions to be verified prior to manufacture.

Do not scale from this drawing Copyright 2018.

This document is the property of Nis Signs

and must not be used, reproduced or disclosed

to any persons without the written consent of Nis Signs.



ITEM I | 1500mm High Single Sided Directional Sign - 1:10

832mm O/A Width

832mm O/A Width

480mm O/A Height

FINISH LEVEL

125mm

Yy

DA

700mm

%
A

950mm

Section DD

g

WbISH v/0 wwoshy

Base details

190mm

s 1

6@@@@@@@@@\@@ 00 0O0e \

Section Through

O
wwooz

-]

Client: Starbucks

Address: Unit 4 Greyhound Retail
Sutton Rd, Greyhound Way
Southend
SS25P7

a

-y

950mm

Drawing no: 18-009
Job location: Jobs/Starbucks/Southend, Greyhound Retail Park
Date: 08/01/18

Drawn by: DW Rev no: A

Revision notes: 0) Initial issue
A) Pylon reduced to 5m

Key

Chiplite CL-ELI Modules

Folded Aluminium back to back trays finished
RAL 9005 Gloss Black.

Inlaid flush Opal 050 Acrylic Lettering

Inlaid flush Opal 050 Acrylic Symbols

Inlaid flush Opal 050 Acrlic Siren complete
with S/A translucent vinyl to match
3MTranslucent Green

40mm x 40mm Box section frame finished
RAL 9005 Gloss Black

3M Opal 050 Acrylic Backing

Base Details Key
Junction box
Armoured cable
Block paving (NOTE: Block cut around legs)
Sand screed

210mm x 210mm x 6mm thick base plates.
Chemical fiz & bolted to concrete.

Concrete by MC

Ducting
Power (building TECG LKR)

6mm plates

(POWER building TECH LKR) Ducting required

RAL 9005 SATIN BLACK

VINYL 3M SCOTCHAL
HOLLYGREEN 3630 - 76

OPAL 050 ACRYLIC

All site dimensions to be verified prior to manufacture.

Do not scale from this drawing Copyright 2018.

This document is the property of Nis Signs

and must not be used, reproduced or disclosed

to any persons without the written consent of Nis Signs.



eve

ITEM J | 585m High llluminated Building Directional Sign - 1:10

RV
HR

585mm

263mm

wweogl

@

1200mm

Client: Starbucks

Address: Unit 4 Greyhound Retail
Sutton Rd, Greyhound Way
Southend
SS25P7

Drawing no: 18-009

Job location: Jobs/Starbucks/Southend, Greyhound Retail Park

Drawn by: DW

Rev no: A

Date: 08/01/18

/
0
L2
PN o

Key

3mm Opal 050 Acrylic Symbol/ Letters

3M Opal 050 Acrylic backing

LED Modules

3mm thick folded Aluminium tray finished
RAL 9005 Satin Black.

Revision notes: 0) Initial issue
A) Pylon reduced to 5m

! RAL 9005 SATIN BLACK

OPAL 050 ACRYLIC

All site dimensions to be verified prior to manufacture.

Do not scale from this drawing Copyright 2018.

This document is the property of Nis Signs

and must not be used, reproduced or disclosed

to any persons without the written consent of Nis Signs.



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	 Introduction
	 Reports on Applications following Pre-Meeting Site Visits
	4 17/02179/FULM - Crowstone Preparatory School, 121-123 Crowstone Road, Westcliff-on-Sea, Essex, SS0 8LH (Chalkwell Ward)
	Location Plan
	Proposed ground floor and site plan
	Proposed first floor plan
	Proposed second floor plans
	Propsoed site and roof plan
	Proposed streetscene plans
	Elevations of flats
	House elevations
	Proposed sections

	5 18/00076/FUL - 423-425 Sutton Road, Southend-on-Sea, Essex (Victoria Ward)
	Appeal decision 1700163FUL
	Site and location plan
	Site Layout Plan
	Existing elevations floorplans and layout
	Previously refused scheme site plan 1700263FUL
	Previously Refused Scheme1700263FUL
	Proposed floorplans
	Proposed ground first and second floor
	Proposed front and rear elevations
	3d visuals

	6 17/02280/FUL - Scout Hall 52 High Street, Leigh-on-Sea, Essex SS9 2EP (Leigh Ward)
	site and location plans
	existing elevations
	proposed elevations
	proposed floorplans

	7 1.  17/02074/FUL and 2. 17/02075/LBC - 138 - 140 Hamlet Court Road, Westcliff-on-Sea, Essex SS0 7LN (Milton)
	1719 TP-01-B
	1719 TP-04
	1719 TP-05-D
	1719 TP-07
	1719 TP-08
	1719 TP-09
	1719 TP-10
	1719 TP-11-A
	1719 TP-12-A
	1719 TP-13
	1719 TP-14
	1719 TP-15-A
	1719 TP-X01-B

	8 18/00084/FUL - 76A Herschell Road, Leigh-on-Sea, Essex, SS9 2PU (West Leigh Ward)
	Existing site plan
	Existing front and side elevations
	Existing ground floor layout
	Existing rear and side elevations
	Existing 3d views
	Existing Sections
	Site Plan
	Proposed site and location plan
	Proposed elevations
	Proposed front and side elevation
	Proposed Ground Floor Layout
	Proposed north and south section
	Proposed rear and side elevation
	Proposed 3d 1
	Proposed 3d 2

	9 17/01115/FULM - Prospects House, 10 Fairfax Drive, Westcliff-on-Sea, Essex, SS0 9AG (Prittlewell Ward)
	Location Plan
	Sheets and Views
	A3 LAND PLANNING


	Flat Type 1
	Flat Types 2-40 & Screening Details
	Ground and Upper Ground Floor
	Proposed Landscape and Semi Basement Plan
	Proposed First Floor Plan
	Proposed Second Floor Plan
	Proposed Third Floor Plan
	Proposed fourth floor plan
	Proposed Roof Plan and Street Elevation
	Proposed Elevations Sheet 1
	Proposed Elevations Sheet 2
	Proposed Elevations Sheet 3

	10 18/00045/ADV - Unit 4, Greyhound Trading Park, Greyhound Way, Southend-on-Sea, Essex, SS2 5PY (Victoria Ward)
	Siteplans RevA
	A-1001
	A-1001 [Architectural Site Plan]
	1/I-1108
	1/19
	1/23


	A-2001 External elevations REVA
	A-2001 [Exterior Elevations]
	1/I-1109
	1/A-2001
	2/A-2001


	A-2002 External elevations
	A-2002 [Exterior Elevations]
	1/I-1123
	3/A-2002
	4/A-2002


	Signage details-Southend Greyhound RP REVA




